
 

 
 
A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE will 
be held in THE CIVIC SUITE, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S 
STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29 3TN on MONDAY, 14 OCTOBER 
2019 at 7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of 
the following business:- 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PLEASE NOTE THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY CHANGE 
 
 
APOLOGIES 
 

1. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 16th 
September 2019. 
 

2. MEMBERS' INTERESTS  
 

To receive from Members declarations as to disclosable pecuniary or other 
interests in relation to any item. Please see Notes below. 
 

3. DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATION  
 

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development 
Management). 
 

(a) Warboys - 19/01449/HHFUL (Pages 9 - 22) 
 

Removal of conservatory and erection of two single storey extensions - 47 School 
Road, Warboys, PE28 2SX. 
 

4. APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

 
To consider reports by the Planning Service Manager (Development 
Management). 
 

(a) St Neots and Abbotsley - 16/01507/OUT (Pages 23 - 72) 
 

Residential development of site for up to 79 dwellings and associated open space 
with all matters reserved except access to be from Potton Road - Land Between 
The Railway Line and St Neots Bypass and Potton Road, Eynesbury. 



 

 
(b) Alconbury Weston - 18/01946/FUL (Pages 73 - 94) 

 
AMENDED PLANS AND ELEVATIONS received on 5.2.2019 and 22.3.2019, 
Preliminary ecological appraisal of November 2018, Tree survey and amended 
Statement received on 22.3.2019. AMENDED DESCRIPTION: The erection of 
three dwellings, change of use of stable yard to livery parking area and 
construction of an extension to the access road to the proposed livery parking area 
- 50 Hamerton Road, Alconbury Weston, PE28 4JD. 
 

(c) Godmanchester - 19/01476/S73 (Pages 95 - 104) 
 

Removal of condition 3 (deregister common land) for application 18/02381/FUL - 
Land South of Bridge Place Car Park, Bridge Place, Godmanchester. 
 

(d) Somersham - 18/00717/FUL (Pages 105 - 128) 
 

First floor domestic accommodation and erection of a conservatory to the rear - 
The Centurian Hall, High Street, Somersham, PE28 3EE. 
 

(e) Hemingford Grey - 19/01168/FUL (Pages 129 - 154) 
 

Amendments to water based activity centre allowed by appeal; including 
alterations to approved changing rooms, and construction of a storage building, 
viewing hut and control shed - Lake Ashmore, Gore Tree Road, Hemingford Grey, 
PE28 9BP. 
 

(f) Ramsey - 19/01300/OUT (Pages 155 - 174) 
 

Erection of three dwellings with garaging (one detached and two semi-detached) 
(access matters only) - Land South of 75 Herne Road, Ramsey St Marys. 
 

5. CHANGES TO SCHEME OF DELEGATION (Pages 175 - 198) 
 

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development 
Management) recommending changes to the Planning Service Scheme of 
Delegation and updates to post titles. 
 

6. APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 199 - 200) 
 

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development 
Management). 
 
LATE REPRESENTATIONS 
 

2 day of October 2019 

 
Head of Paid Service 

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non-Statutory Disclosable Interests 
 



 

Further information on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non - Statutory 
Disclosable Interests is available in the Council’s Constitution 
 
Filming, Photography and Recording at Council Meetings 
 
The District Council permits filming, recording and the taking of photographs at its 
meetings that are open to the public. It also welcomes the use of social networking 
and micro-blogging websites (such as Twitter and Facebook) to communicate with 
people about what is happening at meetings. 
 
Arrangements for these activities should operate in accordance with guidelines 
agreed by the Council.  
 

Please contact Anthony Roberts, Democratic Services, Tel: 01480 388015 / 
email Anthony.Roberts@huntingdonshire.gov.uk if you have a general query 
on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence from the 
meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the 
Committee/Panel. 

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards 
the Contact Officer. 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except 
during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business. 

 
Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website. 
 

Emergency Procedure 
 

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting 
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest 

emergency exit. 

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/3744/constitution.pdf
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/media/1365/filming-photography-and-recording-at-council-meetings.pdf
http://applications.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/moderngov/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
held in the the Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 
3TN on Monday, 16th September 2019 
 
PRESENT:  Councillor E R Butler – Chairman. 
 

Councillors J D Ablewhite, L A Besley, Mrs S Conboy, 
S J Corney, R Fuller, K P Gulson, Dr N Johnson, 
C J Maslen, J Neish, K I Prentice, Mrs S Smith and 
R J West. 
 

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on 
behalf of Councillors M J Humphrey, T D Sanderson and 
R G Tuplin. 

 
 

28 MINUTES  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 19th August 2019 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

29 MEMBERS' INTERESTS  
 
Councillor Mrs S J Conboy declared a non-statutory disclosable interest in 
Minute No 31 by virtue of the fact that the application related to the Ward she 
represented. 
 
Councillor S J Corney declared non-statutory disclosable interests in Minute Nos 
30 and 32 (a) by virtue of his Membership of Ramsey Town Council. 
 

30 Development Management - Deferred Item - Construction of New Chalet 
Bungalow – Starcross, Daintree Road, Ramsey St Marys, PE26 2TF - 
19/00702/OUT  
 
(Councillor J Clarke, Ward Member, and Mrs J Massey, representing the 
applicants, addressed the Committee on the application). 
 
See Minute No 29 for Members’ interests. 
 
Pursuant to Minute No 26 (d), the Committee considered a report by the 
Planning Service Manager (Development Management), which included 
assessments of the applicants’ medical evidence and further highway 
information. A copy of the report is appended in the Minute Book. 
 
Members noted that on the basis of the highway information, the Local Highway 
Authority had withdrawn its objection subject to the imposition of conditions. 
Having discussed relevant national and local planning policies, it was 
 
RESOLVED 

Page 5 of 200

Agenda Item 1



 

 
that the application be refused for the following reasons: 

 
1. The proposed residential development would represent an 

encroachment of built development in the countryside outside the 
built up area of Ramsey St Marys in an unsustainable location. The 
proposal does not meet any of the other specific opportunities 
identified within the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 and the 
proposal would therefore be contrary to the NPPF 2019, and 
Policies LP2, LP9 and LP10 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 
2036. 

 
2. The proposed residential dwelling would intensify the existing 

sporadic and ribbon residential development within the countryside 
outside the village of Ramsey St Marys. This would have a harmful 
impact on the rural character and sporadic nature of development 
in the vicinity. The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary 
with policies LP9, LP10, LP11 and LP12 of the Huntingdonshire 
Local Plan to 2036. 

 
31 Development Management - Section 106 Agreement - Outline planning 

permission with all matters other than access reserved for the erection of 
up to 59 residential dwellings, including affordable housing (use class C3), 
together with parking areas, landscaping, pumping station and other 
associated infrastructure - Land East of 1 Cardinal West, Godmanchester, 
(1 Cardinal Way postcode PE29 2XF) - 19/00489/OUT  
 
(Councillor D Taplin, Godmanchester Town Council, and Mr P Belton, agent, 
addressed the Committee on the application). 
 
See Minute No 29 for Members’ interests. 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Planning Service Manager 
(Development Management) on an application for outline planning permission 
with all matters other than access reserved for the erection of up to 59 residential 
dwellings, including affordable housing (use class C3) together with parking 
areas landscaping, pumping station and other associated infrastructure. The 
application had been submitted to the Committee for determination because the 
Officer’s recommendation of approval was contrary to Godmanchester Town 
Council’s recommendation of refusal. A copy of the report is appended in the 
Minute Book. 
 
Councillor K Gulson informed the Committee of the views of the Section 106 
Agreement Advisory Group on the terms of a proposed Section 106 obligation. 
Members then discussed the amount of affordable housing, noise, access to 
education and the suggested conditions. Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 

that, subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 obligation relating to 
affordable housing, provision of open space and maintenance 
contribution, wheeled bins, formal green space, primary education 
including early years, Secondary Education, libraries and lifelong learning 

Page 6 of 200



 

and health, the application be approved subject to conditions to be 
determined by the Head of Development to include those listed in 
paragraph 8 of the report now submitted or refused in the event that the 
obligation has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree 
to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the 
applicant is unwilling to complete the obligation necessary to make the 
development acceptable. 

 
32 APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT 

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  
 
The Planning Service Manager (Development Management) submitted reports 
(copies of which are appended in the Minute Book) on applications for 
development to be determined by the Committee. Members were advised of 
further representations, which had been received since the reports had been 
prepared. Whereupon, it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
a) Partial demolition of existing semi-detached dwelling No.143a, 

retention of No.143 as a detached dwelling, construction of a 
replacement detached dwelling No.143a and construction of a small 
extension to the rear of No.143 - Land at and Including 143 And 143A 
Great Whyte, Ramsey, PE26 1HP - 19/01318/FUL  

 
See Minute No 29 for Members’ interests. 

 
that the application be approved subject to conditions to be determined by 
the Head of Development to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the 
report now submitted. 

 
b) Proposed change of use from beauty salon to beauty salon and hair 

salon. Single storey side extension forming hair salon – Three Wells, 
Old Gt North Road, Sawtry - 19/01394/FUL  

 
that the application be approved subject to conditions to be determined by 
the Head of Development to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the 
report now submitted. 

 
c) Residential development (maximum 1000sqm) - 10 dwellings -Land 

at Fenton Fields Farm, Bencroft Lane, Warboys - 18/02245/OUT  
 

that the application be approved subject to conditions to be determined by 
the Head of Development to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the 
report now submitted. 

 
d) Installation of new play area - retrospective application - South East 

of Devoke Close, Huntingdon - 19/01404/FUL  
 

(Councillor Juliet Cole, Huntingdon Town Council, addressed the 
Committee on the application). 

 

Page 7 of 200



 

that the application be approved subject to conditions to be determined by 
the Head of Development to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the 
report now submitted. 

 

 
Chairman 

 
 

Page 8 of 200



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019 

Case No: 19/01449/HHFUL  (Householder (Full)) 

Proposal: Removal of conservatory and erection of two single storey 

extensions 

Location: 47 School Road Warboys  Huntingdon  PE28 2SX 

Applicant: Mr Kevin Simpson 

Grid Ref: 530587   280382 

Date of Registration:   16.07.2019 

Parish: WARBOYS 

RECOMMENDATION  -  APPROVE 

This application is referred to the Development Management 
Committee (DMC) in accordance with the current Scheme of 
Delegation as the application is submitted by a member of the 
Council's staff who is involved in the planning or development process.  

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION 

1.1 The dwelling is a two-storey semi-detached dwellinghouse with single 

garage, within the built-up area of Warboys. The application proposes 

to remove the existing conservatory and then the erection of two 

single-storey extensions to the rear of the dwelling; one to replace the 

existing conservatory, and the other to the rear of the existing breakfast 

room. Officers have scrutinised the plans and have familiarised 

themselves with the site and surrounding area. 

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (19th February 2019) 

(NPPF 2019) sets out the three objectives - economic, social and 

environmental - of the planning system to contribute to the 

achievement of sustainable development. The NPPF 2019 at 

paragraph 10 provides as follows: 'So that sustainable 

development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 

Page 9 of 200

Agenda Item 3a



Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development (paragraph 11).'  

2.2 The NPPF 2019 sets out the Government's planning policies for 

(amongst other things):  

• delivering a sufficient supply of homes;  
• achieving well-designed places;  
• conserving and enhancing the natural environment;  
• conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

2.3 Planning Practice Guidance is also relevant and a material 

consideration. 

For full details visit the government website National Guidance 

3. PLANNING POLICIES 

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted 15th May 2019) 
• LP11: Design Context 
• LP12: Design Implementation 
• LP14: Amenity 

3.2 Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning 

Document (2017): 

• Place Making Principles - Part 3.7 Building Form 

 

Local For full details visit the government website Local policies 

4. PLANNING HISTORY 

4.1 02/00349/FUL – planning permission granted for the erection of 

a conservatory 

5. CONSULTATIONS 

5.1 Warboys Parish Council: recommend approve (ATTACHED) 

does not conflict with Development Plan 

6. REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 No objections received at time of writing this report. 

Page 10 of 200

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government
https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/


7. ASSESSMENT  

7.1 The main issues to consider in the determination of this 

application are:  
• Design and Visual Amenity 

• Residential amenity  

Design and Visual Amenity 
7.2 One of the proposed extensions would be sited in the same 

position as the existing conservatory which is to be removed; and 

the other to the rear elevation. The proposed extensions are very 

similar in its design and scale to the existing flat roof element of 

the dwelling. As such it is considered that the proposed 

extensions would not detract from the host building, and due to 

the restrained bulk and scale, would not harm the general 

character of the area. 

Residential Amenity  
7.3 Due to the single-storey scale and siting of the proposed 

extensions, at the rear of the existing dwelling, and due to the 

positioning of neighbouring dwellings, the development is 

considered acceptable in terms of overshadowing, overlooking, 

loss of privacy, loss of light and would not have a significant 

impact upon residential amenity.  

Conclusion 
7.4 The proposed development is considered to be compliant with 

the relevant national and local policy as it: 
• Is of an appropriate scale and design 

• Would not have a harmful impact upon the character and 

appearance of the area; and 

• Would not have a significantly detrimental impact upon the amenity 

of neighbours. 

7.5 Taking national and local planning policies into account, and 

having regard for all relevant material considerations, it is 

Page 11 of 200



recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to 

the imposition of appropriate conditions. 

8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to 
conditions to include the following 

• Time limit 

• Approved pla ns 

• Materials to match existing  

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or 

an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to  

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Enquiries about this report to Dallas Owen Senior Development 
Management Officer 01480 388468 

 

 

Page 12 of 200



Page 13 of 200



43

El

23 2515

45

8

33
34

SC
HO

OL
 R

OA
D

6

Sub Sta

55

11

Sub

34

2

14

22

34

2

48

58

24

41

15

39

49

20

1 
to

 3
1

51

HUMBERDALE WAY

31

21

De
 R

am
se

y C
ou

rt

El

12

14

18

7

Sta

Warboys Community
Primary School

Warboys

13

Walk
Flaxen

14

18

33

13

1

Bowling Green

Application Ref:19/01449/HHFUL
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 

Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

1:1,250Scale = 
Date Created: 30/09/2019

Development Management Committee

Location:Warboys

Key
The Site

Conservation Area
Listed Building

Page 14 of 200



Page 15 of 200



Page 16 of 200



Page 17 of 200



P
age 18 of 200



P
age 19 of 200



P
age 20 of 200



P
age 21 of 200



P
age 22 of 200



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019 

Case No: 16/01507/OUT  (OUTLINE Planning Application) 

Proposal: Residential development of site for up to 79 dwellings and 

associated open space with all matters reserved except 

access to be from Potton Road 

Location: Land Between The Railway Line And St Neots Bypass 

And Potton Road, Eynesbury, St Neots 

Applicant: The Bank trustees, Little staughton Farms  LTd 

Grid Ref: 519027   258385 

Date of Registration:   09.08.2016 

Parish: St Neots 

RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE  
subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Agreement 
relating to affordable housing, green space, formal green space 
and bins and subject to conditions. 

OR 

RECOMMENDATION – REFUSE  
in the event that the S106 Agreement referred to above has not 
been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an 
extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the 
applicant is unwilling to complete the agreement necessary to 
make the development acceptable. 

This application is referred to the Development Management 
Committee (DMC) as St Neots Town Council object to the 
application contrary to the officer recommendation of approval. 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION 

1.1 The application site is a triangular shaped parcel of agricultural 

land covering an area of approximately 4 hectares located in the 

Page 23 of 200

Agenda Item 4a



open countryside however within the built up area of St Neots. 

The site is approximately 2.2km south of St Neots town centre.  

1.2 The site is bound on the western side by the East Coast Mainline 

Railway, to the south by the A428 and the B1046 classified 

Potton Road to the east.  

1.3 The site slopes down from east to west by approximately 10 

metres. A set of electricity pylons bisect the site from south west 

to north east.  The land is classified by the Natural England 

Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) map for the eastern region 

as Grade 2 land. 

1.4 The site lies within the National Character Area profile 88 

Bedfordshire and Cambridgeshire Claylands and within two 

local Landscape Character Areas, the Ouse Valley and the 

South East Claylands as defined by the Huntingdonshire 

Landscape and Townscape Assessment 2007. It is considered 

that the site is more characteristic of the South East Claylands.  

1.5 The land on the opposite side of Potton Road is better known as 

Wintringham Park which benefits from outline planning 

permission (reference 17/02308/OUT) and subsequent reserved 

matters applications are being considered (see further detail in 

history section). 

1.6 Access to the site is proposed from Potton Road. 

1.7 The site falls within Flood Zone 1. Table 1 of the Technical 

Guidance to the NPPF defines land located within Flood Zone 1 

as areas which are outside the flood plain and have little or no 

chance of flooding. These are areas with an indicative 

probability of flooding of 1 in 1000 years or greater (i.e. less 

than 0.1% chance in any given year) from fluvial sources.  

 

Page 24 of 200



1.8 The application is supported by the following documents: 

• Planning Statement 
• Design and Access Statement 
• Archaeology Trial Trench Evaluation 
• Biodiversity Offsetting Calculations 
• Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment 
• Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment 
• Flood Risk Assessment 
• Arboricultural Assessment 
• Ecology Assessment 
• Air Quality Assessment  
• Transport Assessment and Addendum 
• Transport Statement  
• Transport Technical Note 

1.9 During the lifetime of the application there have been protracted 

negotiations on highways matters (discussed later in this 

report). Revised details and information have been submitted 

and re-consultation has been undertaken accordingly with all 

relevant consultees.  

1.10 With regard to the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 

Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 the development does 

not meet the relevant thresholds or criteria to require a detailed 

screening opinion. The development is therefore not considered 

to be EIA development. 

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2019) sets out 

the three economic, social and environmental objectives of the 

planning system to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 

development. The NPPF confirms that ‘So sustainable 

development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 

Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development.  

2.2 The NPPF sets out the Government's planning policies for 

(amongst other things):  

• delivering a sufficient supply of homes;  

Page 25 of 200



• achieving well-designed places;  
• conserving and enhancing the natural environment;  
• conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

2.3 Planning Practice Guidance is also relevant to the assessment 

of all planning applications.   

For full details visit the government website National Guidance 

3. PLANNING POLICIES 

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (adopted 15/05/2019) 

• LP1 Amount of development 
• LP2 Strategy for development 
• LP3 Green Infrastructure 
• LP4 Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery 
• LP5 Flood Risk 
• LP6 Waste Water Management 
• LP7 Spatial Planning Areas 
• LP11 Design Context 
• LP12 Design Implementation  
• LP13 Placemaking 
• LP14 Amenity 
• LP15 Surface Water 
• LP16 Sustainable Travel  
• LP17 Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement 
• LP24 Affordable Housing Provision 
• LP25 Housing Mix 
• LP29 Health Impact Assessment 
• LP30 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
• LP31 Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows 
• LP34 Heritage Assets and their Settings 
• LP36 Air Quality 
• LP37 Ground Contamination and Groundwater Pollution 

3.2 St Neots Neighbourhood Plan 2014 – 2029 

• Policy A2 Gateway to St Neots 
• Policy A3 Design 
• Policy A4 Landscape Backdrops 
• Policy PT1 Sustainable Travel 
• Policy PT2 Vehicle Parking Standards for Residential  

Development 
• Policy P2 Open Space 
• Policy P4 Flooding 

 

Page 26 of 200

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government


3.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and Guidance: 

• Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape 
Assessment SPD (2007) 

• Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2017) 
• Developer Contributions SPD (2011) 
• Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD (2017) 
• Noise Policy Statement for England (NPSE) 2010 
• British Standard 8233: 2014 ‘Guidance on Sound 

Insulation and noise reduction for buildings’ 
• December 2018 Annual Monitoring Review regarding 

housing land supply 
• RECAP CCC Waste Management Design Guide (CCC 

SPD) 2012 

For full details visit the government website Local policies 

4. PLANNING HISTORY 

4.1 8500745OUT - Industrial Development - REF 02/07/1985 

 13/07342/PENQ – EIA Screening Opinion – 30/10/2013 – 

concludes not EIA development  

4.2 Wintringham Park: 

17/02308/OUT – Hybrid planning application comprising: 

1) Application for outline planning permission for development 

of a mixed use urban extension to include: residential 

development of up to 2,800 dwellings (C3), up to 63,500 

sqm of employment development (B1-B8), District Centre 

including shops, services, community and health uses (A1-

A5, D1 & D2), Local Centre (A1-A5), Temporary Primary 

School, Two Permanent Primary Schools, open space, play 

areas, recreation facilities and landscaping, strategic access 

improvements including new access points from Cambridge 

Road & A428, associated ground works and infrastructure. 

All matters reserved with the exception of means of access: 

and 

2) Application for full planning permission for the construction 

of new roads, hard & soft landscaping, creation of SUDS 

Page 27 of 200

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/


and all associated infrastructure and engineering works 

including creation of haul routes.  

Permission granted 06/11/2018. 

18/02448/REM - Application for Reserved Matters approval for 

the creation of a landscape corridor to include: hard and soft 

landscaping, creation and upgrade of footpaths and cycleways, 

and all ancillary works, associated infrastructure and 

engineering works (Part Retrospective). 

Details approved 21/08/2019. 

CCC Highways have fully considered the Wintringham Park 

access as part of their assessment of this application. 

4.3 A428 – Black Cat to Caxton Gibbet Highways England 

Improvements   

The proposed Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project 

scheme for a new 10 mile dual carriageway connecting the 

Black Cat junction and Caxton Gibbet junction is being 

developed by Highways England and an application for a 

Development Consent Order (DCO) is anticipated to be 

submitted in early 2020. Full details can be viewed on 

the Highways England website  -  

With respect to this application site, the existing A428 between 

St Neots and Caxton Gibbet that runs along the south boundary 

of the site, will be returned to local road status and retained for 

local traffic, public transport and cyclists.  

5. CONSULTATIONS 

5.1 St Neots Town Council – (COPIES ATTACHED) object due to 

lack of pedestrian access and highway safety 

Page 28 of 200

https://highwaysengland.co.uk/a428-black-cat-to-caxton-gibbet-home/


5.2 Abbotsley Parish Council – recommend refusal for the 

following reasons: 

• housing should not encroach on the open countryside to 
the east of the railway line, which is a natural boundary 
for development 

• proposed single land for traffic over the railway bridge 
would cause congestion 

• traffic from the proposed development would travel 
through Abbotsley for journeys to Cambridge and the 
east, thereby increasing the traffic flow through the 
village 

• the A428 proposal remains undetermined and therefore 
any wider implications on roads in the surrounding area 
remain unknown 

• the children’s play area is located next to the mainline 
railway tracks 

• there is limited public transport in close proximity to the 
development 

5.3 Bedford Borough Council – No comments to make and no 

objection. 

5.4 Cambridgeshire Police – Designing Out Crime Officer – No 

comments regarding access proposals and no objection. Would 

wish to be consulted on further reserved matters applications.  

5.5  CCC Archaeology – No objection or requirements. 

5.6  Natural England – No comments 

5.7  Environmental Agency – No comments 

5.8 Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue Service – Seeks provision 

be made for fire hydrants. Note that a non-standardised Fire 

Appliance is used by this service. 

5.9  Highways England – no objection 

5.10   HDC Urban Design – No objection 

5.11 HDC Landscape – No objection subject to conditions. 

Page 29 of 200



5.12 HDC Environmental Health – No objection subject to  

conditions. 

5.13 CCC Highways – No objections subject to conditions (COPIES   

OF MOST RECENT COMMENTS ATTACHED) 

5.14 CCC Lead Local Flood Authority – No objection subject to 

conditions. 

5.15 HDC Operations (Green Space) – No objection subject to 

securing green space on site through S106 Agreement. 

5.16 HDC Housing – No objection subject to securing 40% provision 

and appropriate tenure split through S106 Agreement 

5.17 HDC Active Lifestyles – Financial contribution sought towards 

off-site formal green space to be secured through S106 

Agreement 

 Health and Safety Exec - Do not advise against the granting of 

planning permission in this case 

5.18 National Grid – No objection subject to full engagement from 

the developer prior to REM submissions 

5.19 Network Rail – No objection in principle subject to detailed 

requirements 

5.20 Wildlife Trust – No objection subject to a condition securing 

habitat creation and ongoing maintenance to achieve a net gain 

in biodiversity 

6. REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 1 neighbour representation has been received objecting to the 

application. The comments raised state that Potton Road bridge 

should not be reduced to singe carriageway, this will increase 

Page 30 of 200



traffic noise to the local residents due to stop start traffic. 

Suggestion made to build another footbridge / cycleway 

adjacent to the current bridge. This road will be relied on more 

and more with the planned and current developments. The 

Council should make sure infrastructure is suited to all future 

developments.  

7. ASSESSMENT 

7.1 When determining planning applications it is necessary to 

establish what weight should be given to each plan’s policies in 

order to come to a decision. The following legislation, 

government policy and guidance outline how this should be 

done.  

7.2  As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 (Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 (Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the 

Local Planning Authority shall have regard to have provisions of 

the development plan, so far as material to the application, and 

to any other material considerations. This is reiterated within 

paragraph 47 of the NPPF (2019). The development plan is 

defined in Section 38(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as “the development 

plan documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or 

approved in that area”.  

7.3 In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan consists of: 
• Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 (2019) 
• Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Minerals and Waste  

Development Plan Core Strategy (2011) 
• St Neots Neighbourhood Plan 2014-2029 
• Godmanchester Neighbourhood Plan (2017) 
• Houghton and Wyton Neighbourhood Plan (2018) 
• Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan (2019) 

7.4 The statutory term ‘material considerations’ has been broadly 

construed to include any consideration relevant in the 

circumstances which bears on the use or development of the 

land: Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for 

Page 31 of 200



Communities and Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97 

(Admin); [2011] 1 P. & C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst 

accepting that the NPPF does not change the statutory status of 

the Development Plan, paragraph 2 confirms that it is a material 

consideration and significant weight is given to this in 

determining applications.  

7.5 The main issues to consider in assessing this application are 
whether there is any conflict with Development Plan policies. If 
there is any conflict, whether the application can be considered 
to be in accordance with the Development Plan when taken as 
a whole. If the application is not in accordance with the 
Development Plan, whether there are any material 
considerations, including the NPPF (2019), which indicate that 
planning permission should be granted. With this in mind, the 
report addresses the principal, important and controversial 
issues which are in this case: 

• The Principle of Development 
• Indicative Layout 
• Landscape and Visual Impact 
• Trees and Open Space 
• Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity 
• Archaeology 
• Flood Risk and Drainage 
• Ground Conditions, Gas Pipelines and Contamination 
• Access and Highway Safety 
• Ecology and Biodiversity 
• Health Impact Assessment 
• Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations 

The Principle of Development 

 Loss of Agricultural Land 
7.6 Agricultural Land Classification provides a framework for 

classifying land according to the extent to which its physical or 

chemical characteristics impose long term limitations on 

agricultural use. The classification is well established and 

provides an appropriate framework for determining the physical 

quality of land at national, regional and local levels. Grade 1 is 

excellent quality agricultural land and Grade 5 is land of very 

poor quality. Grade 3 constitutes about half of the agricultural 

land in England and Wales, is subdivided into two subgrades – 

Page 32 of 200



3a and 3b. The NPPF 2019 advises in paragraph 170 that the 

economic and other benefits of best and most versatile 

agricultural land should be taken into account. The NPPF 2019 

within paragraph 171 (footnote 53) states that where significant 

development of agricultural land is demonstrated to be 

necessary, Local Planning Authorities should seek to use areas 

of poorer quality land in preference to those of higher quality. 

 

7.7 The Council’s Local Plan to 2036 – Sustainability Appraisal (SA) 

Scoping Report, sets out that there is little brownfield land in the 

District and that some 79% of the brownfield land within the 

area is located at former RAF bases at Alconbury and Upwood, 

which are proposed allocations for development of mainly 

housing, with the land at Alconbury benefitting from planning 

permissions. This Scoping Report explains the strong 

agricultural history of the District, with most of Huntingdonshire 

comprising of good quality agricultural land, mostly classed as 

Grade 2 with only small areas classed as Grade 4.  

7.8 The DEFRA provisional Agricultural Land Classification for the 

site is Grade 2 agricultural land. Grade 2 soil is very good 

quality agricultural land with minor limitations which affect crop 

yield, cultivations or harvesting. A wide range of agricultural and 

horticultural crops can usually be grown, but on some land in 

this grade there may be reduced flexibility due to difficulties with 

the production of more demanding crops such as winter 

harvested vegetables and arable root crops. The land cover of 

the site is approximately 4ha.  

7.9 The loss of the identified Grade 2 area of agricultural land is not 

considered to be significant when assessed with the remaining 

availability of good agricultural land in the vicinity and wider 

local area. It is unlikely that any countryside sites around 

Huntingdon to come forward for this proposed development 

would result in the loss of a lower value of agricultural land. The 

Page 33 of 200



application site and loss of 4ha of agricultural land is not 

considered to be significant in this context.  

7.10 There is no relevant Development Plan policy relating to loss of 

agricultural land. The NPPF (2019) paragraph 170 (footnote 53) 

states that where significant development of agricultural land is 

demonstrated to be necessary, areas of poorer quality land 

should be preferred to those of a higher quality. There is 

considered to be limited conflict with this part of the NPPF 2019 

due to the size and scale of the site and the lack of availability 

of lower grade land. 

7.11 The application site is not allocated for development within 

Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036. As part of the supporting 

work for the Local Plan, the Housing and Economic Land 

Availability Assessment 2017 analysed the application site and 

assessed its constraints as below: 

 “…site is situated between the East Coast mainline railway, the 

A428 and the B1046 and is crossed by high voltage electricity 

transmission lines and a high pressure gas pipeline. Together 

these form substantial constraints making the site unsuitable for 

residential development although it may have limited potential 

for employment uses.” 

This application addresses the constraints at the site and these 

are detailed further on in this report.  

7.12 The site is within the St Neots Spatial Planning Area which 

incorporates the whole parish of St Neots. It is also within the St 

Neots Neighbourhood Area as delineated in the St Neots 

Neighbourhood Plan. 

7.13 The application site is bordered by the East Coast Main Line to 

the west (beyond which lies residential development), the A428 

trunk road to the south (beyond which lies agricultural land) and 

Potton Road to the east (beyond which lies the Strategic 

Page 34 of 200



Expansion Location of St Neots East – allocation SEL2 in 

Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 – Wintringham Park). 

With regard to the accompanying text in Huntingdonshire’s 

Local Plan to 2036, the site is considered to be a development 

opportunity that is physically, functionally and visually related to 

existing buildings. It is therefore considered that the application 

site relates more to the built environment of St Neots in its use, 

form, character and connectivity and therefore is within the Built 

Up Area of St Neots.  St Neots Neighbourhood Plan states that 

St Neots has the opportunity to benefit from the planned new 

developments in the area covered by the Neighbourhood Plan. 

7.14 Whilst the planning application was advertised as a departure 

from the Development Plan, this was undertaken on a 

precautionary basis and due to the evolution of the 

Development Plan throughout the lifetime of this application the 

site is now considered to be within the Built Up Area of St 

Neots.  

7.15 Further development is encouraged within the built-up area 

where there are opportunities to maximise the potential for 

development in locations where people may be able to access 

shops, services and employment locally and so reduce the 

need to travel. The location of this site is some 690 metres from 

the nearest supermarket and 739 metres from a Doctors 

Surgery, also Middlefield Community Primary School is 330 

metres north-west and St Neots High Street is approximately 

2km away. The site is located 2.5km from St Neots railway 

station providing direct access to London Kings Cross (45 

minutes) and Peterborough (25 minutes). Regular buses run 

along Potton Road (the bus stop is 220m from the site), 

providing a daily service, Monday to Saturday into the centre of 

St Neots. The site is considered to be in a sustainable location.  

Page 35 of 200



7.16 The proposed residential development is therefore supported in 

principle in this location in accordance with St Neots 

Neighbourhood Plan and Policy LP7 of Huntingdonshire’s Local 

Plan to 2036 subject to the development being in accordance 

with other relevant policies.   

Indicative Layout 
7.17 An illustrative masterplan has been submitted illustrating the 

quantum and potential arrangement of units on the site. Units 

are arranged around a series of perimeter blocks located to the 

south of the site with a proposed area of public open space to 

the north adjacent to the East Coast Mainline. The proposal for 

up to 79 dwellings would result in a net density of approximately 

41 dwellings per hectare. 

7.18 The site is triangular in shape and is bounded by the B1046 

Potton Road to the northeast, the A428 to the south and East 

Coast Mainline to the west. In the main, the noise impacts have 

dictated the indicative layout of development. The noise report 

states that “the layout of buildings and the orientation should be 

considered in order to ensure gaps between dwellings are 

reduced such that no garden area has a line of sight / 

overlooking the road”. Whilst the continuous built frontage is 

acceptable in principle, it is unclear if the gaps created by the 

undercroft tandem parking spaces have been considered as 

this could allow road and railway noise to permeate into rear 

gardens. Alternative means of parking may be required.  

7.19 Vehicular access is provided from Potton Road together with 

two new pedestrian and cycle connections. The new 3m wide 

cycle/footpath on the southwestern side of Potton Road, to the 

north of the new junction, will facilitate pedestrian movements 

from the northern most link.  

7.20 The Design and Access Statement refers to proposed building 

heights being predominantly 2 and 2.5 storey with localised 3 

Page 36 of 200



storey dwellings. The scale and massing is acceptable in design 

terms and accords with the building heights parameter plan for 

the adjacent  Wintringham Park development. Variation in 

character should be achieved by a combination of different 

dwelling typologies, spatial arrangement of units, boundary 

types, parking typology, building heights, setbacks and 

thresholds, as well as materials and fenestration, road and 

footpath treatments and soft landscaping. These elements 

should be set out in detail in the future reserved matters 

submission(s).  

Housing mix: 

7.21 The Cambridge sub-region Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment (SHMA) 2013 provides guidance on the mix of 

housing required for Huntingdonshire up to 2031. This gives 

broad ranges reflecting the variety of properties within each 

bedroom category. This indicates a requirement for the 

following mix: up to 4% 1 bedroom  homes, 16-42% 2 bedroom 

homes, 26-60% 3 bedroom homes and up to 30% 4 or more 

bedroom homes. The indicative mix set out within the Design 

and Access Statement suggests: 44% 2 bedroom (zero 1 bed 

proposed), 38% 3 bedroom and 18% 4 bedroom. The final mix 

of housing on this site as detailed in policy LP25 of 

Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 would be determined at 

reserved matters stage however it is considered that this 

indicative mix broadly accords with the SHMA guidance on the 

mix of housing expected on qualifying sites. 40% affordable 

housing provision is proposed and whilst the indicative mix 

appears to show too many apartments, this is not a detail that is 

to be approved at this stage. The development should reflect 

the needs of a variety of households and the planning obligation 

will secure the tenure to be 70% rented housing and 30% 

shared ownership in accordance with Huntingdonshire’s Local 

Plan to 2036 policy LP24. 

Page 37 of 200



7.22 The requirements within policy LP25 of Huntingdonshire’s Local 

Plan to 2036 relating to accessible and adaptable homes are 

applicable to all new dwellings. This states that all dwellings 

should meet Building Regulation requirement M4(2) ‘accessible 

and adaptable dwellings’. These include design features that 

enable mainstream housing to be flexible enough to meet the 

current and future needs of most households, including in 

particular older people and those with some disabilities, and 

also families with young children. Homes meeting M4(3)(a) 

‘wheelchair user adaptable dwellings’ include further design 

features so that homes are capable of simple adaptation to 

meet the needs of wheelchairs users, or M4(3)(b) which are 

built to fully ‘wheelchair accessible’ standards where affordable 

housing for a known user is to be constructed. Policy LP 25 

seeks a further uplift above the M4(2) ‘accessible and 

adaptable’ standard for a proportion of new dwellings unless 

site specific factors demonstrate achieving this is impractical or 

unviable. The starting point for negotiations for provision of 

M4(3)(a) ‘wheelchair adaptable dwellings’ is set at 9% for 

market  dwellings and 30% for affordable dwellings. As this 

application is in outline, with only access details submitted for 

approval, a condition is therefore recommended to ensure that 

the submission of reserved matters applications comply with 

this policy. 

7.23 Overall it is considered that the illustrative masterplan 

demonstrates that the quantum of development proposed could 

be satisfactorily accommodated within the application site. The 

proposal is therefore considered acceptable in this regard and 

the ‘appearance’, ‘landscaping’, ‘layout’ and ‘scale’ would be 

considered in detail as part of reserved matters should outline 

planning permission be granted. 

Page 38 of 200



    Landscape and Visual Impact 
7.24 A Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) has been 

prepared to support this application. This identifies the 

landscape and visual issues of the proposed development and 

assesses the significance of those effects. The report considers 

the existing baseline conditions and seeks to identify the likely 

effects on landscape resource, specific views and visual 

amenity.  

7.25 The LVIA summarises that views of the site from the existing 

urban edge of St Neots are limited to properties directly to the 

east of the site. Views from the wider landscape are restricted 

to a small number of public rights of way and highways to the 

north and east of the site. Transient views are available to users 

of the East Coast Mainline. The existing visual amenity of the 

site is assessed to offer fair visual amenity where the quality of 

the existing views is such that there are a number of 

incongruous elements and local people are likely to be 

indifferent to the view.  

7.26 A mitigation strategy is set out in the LVIA to address potential 

adverse landscape and visual effects and help to integrate the 

proposed development into the surrounding landscape. – 

reserved matters relating to layout and landscaping should 

accord with this.  

7.27 The LVIA concludes that there will be a neutral visual effect 

once the construction of the proposed development is complete 

and once landscape proposed have become established, a 

slight beneficial effect on visual amenity and would represent a 

consistent extension to the eastern urban edge of St Neots.  

7.28 The Council’s Landscape Officer considers that the scheme is 

acceptable in principle.  

Page 39 of 200



7.29 Policy A4 of the St Neots Neighbourhood Plan (2016) identifies 

that landscape buffers are encouraged for all development and 

are particularly important for major developments (50 or more 

dwellings) to help ensure that the development integrates well 

with the surroundings. The proposed development is already 

well screened by existing vegetation and new planting is also 

proposed which accords with this requirement. The indicative 

masterplan also shows strong buffer areas around all sides of 

the site. Reserved matters submissions would be assessed in 

light of this requirement.   

7.30 The proposed development is considered to comply with 

policies LP11 and LP12 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 

2036 and policy A4 of the St Neots Neighbourhood Plan (2016) 

  Trees and Open Space 
7.31 The application is supported by an Arboricultural Assessment 

which concludes that the proposal allows for the retention and 

protection of most of the trees. The trees provide important 

landscape amenity and the boundary plantation trees in 

particular are likely to grow quickly into maturity forming good 

screening from the surrounding roads and wider landscape. The 

hedgerows that form part of the tree belts to the east and south 

of the site will be protected during development. They are of 

landscape value and will provide considerable wildlife and 

conservation benefits linking areas of green space throughout 

the wider locality.  

7.32 Although there will be a loss of a small number of trees to 

facilitate the construction of new access routes such as the 

footpaths and roads, it is considered that these losses will be 

mitigated by replacement planting of both trees and shrubs. 

This will be submitted through the landscaping reserved 

matters.  

 

Page 40 of 200



7.33 The Council’s Landscape Officer has reviewed the 

Arboricultural information and advises that the conclusions are 

acceptable and that the adverse tree impacts of the scheme are 

minor and much outweighed by the indicative planting and open 

space proposals. Tree protection details must wait until a more 

detailed layout is available through submission of reserved 

matters. It is therefore recommended that a condition be 

imposed to secure the submission of tree survey details and an 

arboricultural impact assessment as part of any reserved 

matters application for layout or landscaping. In this regard, the 

proposed development is considered to comply with policies 

LP11, LP12 and LP31. 

7.34 In accordance with Policy LP4 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan 

to 2036 and the Developer Contributions SPD (Part B) 

proposals are required to provide the development specific land 

for informal and formal green space. Based on a scheme of up 

to 79 dwellings of unknown size properties and the 

requirements of the Developer Contributions SPD, the 

development generates a requirement for in the region of 

3700m2 of POS including 1400m2 of continuous green space 

where children can stretch their legs and play. The submitted 

illustrative masterplan demonstrates that the full quantum of 

development could be accommodated to meet the requirement. 

As such, the on-site open space could be provided which 

complies with policy LP4 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 

2036, policy P2 of the St Neots Neighbourhood Plan and the 

Developer Contributions SPD.  

  Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity 
7.35 The NPPF (2019) and Policy LP14 of Huntingdonshire’s Local 

Plan to 2036  seek to protect the amenity of neighbouring 

occupiers and ensure a high standard of amenity for future 

occupiers of new developments.  

Page 41 of 200



7.36 This application has been submitted in outline form, will all 

matters reserved except access, therefore the illustrative 

masterplan submitted for the site is indicative only.  

7.37 With consideration to the distances of the site to the nearest 

neighbouring properties which are located on the other side of 

the East Coast Mainline and will be located to the north east on 

the other side of Potton Road as part of the Wintringham Park 

development, it is considered that the proposed use of the site 

for residential purposes will be compatible. 

7.38 With regard to the amenities of future occupiers of the site, the 

application is accompanied by a Noise and Vibration Impact 

Assessment and Air Quality Statement to establish the existing 

climate at the proposed development site in order to determine 

its suitability for residential development due to its location 

bordering the B1046, A428 and the East Coast Mainline.  These 

conclude that there are areas of the site suitable for residential 

development following the implementation of a variety of noise 

mitigation measures, and there are no vibration or air quality 

constraints to the proposed development.  

7.39 Policy LP14 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 also seeks 

to ensure that adverse impacts from a range of sources will be 

made acceptable through the proposal. These include noise, 

contamination, pollution amongst others.  

7.40 The HDC Environmental Health Team has considered the 

proposal, having regard to impacts upon future residents in 

relation to air quality, noise and overheating issues. They 

advise that subject to detailed design and inclusion of 

appropriate noise mitigation measures, residential development 

could be acceptable within the site and made acceptable in 

noise and air quality terms.  

Page 42 of 200



7.41 Based on the illustrative masterplan layout, the proposed 

mitigation details both glazing and ventilation requirements. Any 

reserved matters application would need to be accompanied by 

a Noise Mitigation Scheme to show that noise impacts would be 

satisfactorily mitigated within the properties and external 

amenity spaces. Alternative means of ventilation may need to 

be considered and this would also need to demonstrate that 

impacts from overhearing can also be made acceptable. A 

condition is therefore recommended to require reserved matters 

application(s) to be accompanied by a ventilation scheme to 

demonstrate how adequate ventilation and cooling will be 

achieved for dwellings without undermining the performance of 

the Noise Mitigation scheme. It is anticipated that at reserved 

matters stage, the layout of the scheme would be carefully 

considered, including the orientation of the dwellings affected by 

noise to minimise the number of units where noise mitigation 

measures and an alternative means of ventilation would be 

required.  

7.42 A gas main pipeline runs along the boundary of the application 

site with the East Coast Mainline. The Health and Safety 

Executive (HSE) is a statutory consultee on certain 

development within the vicinity of major hazard sites and major 

accident hazard pipelines. The outcome of the consultation with 

the HSE on this application is that they advise that they do not 

advise against the granting of planning permission, on safety 

grounds, in this case. There are requirements and limitations on 

layouts of development in proximity of gas pipelines however as 

this application is in outline with only access approved, this will 

be a matter for consideration relating to the reserved matters 

submissions.  

7.43 Overall, it is considered that the proposed use of the site would 

not have a significant detrimental impact upon the amenities of 

future occupiers of the land subject to the imposition of 

Page 43 of 200



conditions. In this regard the development is considered to 

accord with the NPPF (2019), policy LP14 of Huntingdonshire’s 

Local Plan to 2036 and policy A3 of the St Neighbourhood Plan.  

  Archaeology 
7.44 Cambridgeshire County Council advised that the site is located 

in a landscape of high archaeological potential. An 

Archaeological Assessment and Trial Trench Evaluation were 

undertaken for the site. These identified no significant 

archaeology at the site. Cambridgeshire County Council 

therefore advises that no significant archaeological remains 

survive in the area and that no further works are necessary and 

they have no objection to the application and do not consider 

that any conditions are necessary.  

7.45 The proposed development is considered to be acceptable with 

regards to archaeological impacts. In this regard, the proposed 

development is considered to be compliant with the NPPF 

(2019) and Policy LP34 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 

2036.  

  Flood Risk and Drainage 
7.46 The application site is in Flood Zone 1 as confirmed by the 

SFRA 2017, which means it has a low probability of flooding. 

The application is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment as 

the site area is greater than 1 hectare. The proposed 

development will incorporate SuDS for the surface water 

drainage, designed to the 1 in 100 annual probability plus 30% 

allowance for climate change rainfall event, and limiting runoff 

to the greenfield runoff rate. The proposed construction and 

mitigation arrangements demonstrate a robust solution that will 

minimise the risk of flooding to the proposed development and 

its occupants, and ensure the proposals do not cause an 

increase to flood risk to the surrounding area.  

 

Page 44 of 200



7.47 Cambridgeshire County Council as the Lead Local Flood 

Authority (LLFA) have no objection in principle to the proposed 

development. The masterplan suggests that there is capacity 

within the areas surrounding the pond and swale to 

accommodate some additional storage following inclusion of a 

40% allowance for climate change and therefore they are 

satisfied that this can be conditioned. The LLFA are supporting 

of the use of a swale through the site, discharging into a pond 

and would also encourage the use of permeable paving. 

Conditions are recommended to secure surface water drainage 

details (including maintenance).  

  Access and Highway Safety 
7.48 Paragraph 108 of the NPPF (2019) advises that in assessing 

applications for development, it should be ensured that 

‘appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport 

modes can be – or have been – taken up, given the type of 

development and its location’ and that ‘safe and suitable access 

to the site can be achieved for all users’, and that any significant 

impacts from the development on the transport network (in 

terms of capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be 

cost effectively mitigated to an acceptable degree.  

7.49 Paragraph 109 goes on to state that development should only 

be prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be 

an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual 

cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.  

7.50 Policy LP16 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 

encourages sustainable transport modes and Policy PT1 of the 

St Neots Neighbourhood plan requires development proposals 

to demonstrate how opportunities for the use of sustainable 

modes of transport are maximised.  

7.51 The main consideration (in terms of access and highway 

matters) is whether there would be any severe adverse impacts 

Page 45 of 200



on highway safety or on the transport network, as a result of 

traffic flows arising from the proposed development. In 

determining whether the development would have severe 

residential cumulative impacts or adverse highway safety 

impacts, Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC) as Local 

Highway Authority has been involved in detail in the proposals.  

7.52 Protracted discussions and negotiations took place between the 

Local Highway Authority and the applicants relating to the 

access matters and the signalised proposals for crossing of the 

East Coast Mainline bridge on Potton Road. Drawing 

31774/5501/SK07 Rev P1 shows a 3m wide pedestrian and 

cycle path northwards from the site access towards the bridge. 

Cyclists will then use a ramp down to the carriageway to join 

vehicles at the signalised junction across the bridge. A pathway 

of 2.3m in width continues across the bridge to connect with the 

existing residential area on Potton Road on the north wide of 

the East Coast Mainline. The signalised junction reduces traffic 

down to single direction only.  

7.53 Full regard and consideration has been given to the committed 

developments of Wintringham Park and the Loves Farm 

extension through the associated Transport Assessment work 

on this planning application. The proposed access 

arrangements have been designed to be safe and achievable 

with or without the adjacent Wintringham Park access on the 

opposite side of Potton Road. Both scheme will work either 

together or separately.  

7.54 The Transport Assessment Team at CCC as Local Highway 

Authority raise no objection to the proposed development and 

the Highway Development Management team have confirmed 

that that the “in principle provision” of the signalised junction 

shown on drawing 31774/5501/SK07 Rev P1 is acceptable to 

the signals team and the installation would be acceptable to the 

Page 46 of 200



transport assessment team in relation to the impact on the 

highway.  

7.55 The proposed “in principle” scheme for the installation of the 

signals, right turn lane and footway connection across the 

bridge to the northwest has passed through a Stage 1 Road 

Safety Audit without issue, but will need to be refined in terms of 

geometric layout at detailed design stage. Permission will also 

need to be obtained from Network Rail for the scheme to be 

forthcoming as it will require works on the bridge.  

7.56 The access proposed demonstrates suitable access geometry 

and vehicle to vehicle visibility, in accordance with the speed of 

the road, and for the development proposed. Given that the 

access and the right turn lane will be street lit, this section of 

highway will automatically have a 30mph speed limit, although 

the applicant will be required to revoke an existing Traffic 

Regulation Order which they will be required to do at their own 

expense. Conditions are recommended to secure appropriate 

details including access design details and a residential Travel 

Plan. 

7.57 With regard to parking provision for the development, full details 

will be submitted and considered at the reserved matters 

application stage. It is however anticipated that the site can 

accommodate the maximum quantum of development sought 

with sufficient car and cycle parking provision.  

7.58 Overall it is considered that given the location of the site within 

the built up area of St Neots and the proximity to a range of 

services and facilities, it is considered that occupiers of the 

proposed development would have a good level of access to 

services and facilities, either on foot, cycle or by bus. It is 

therefore considered that the proposed development is 

sustainable in this regard.  

Page 47 of 200



7.59 It is considered that a safe means of access could be achieved 

for the development and the traffic generated by the proposal 

would not have a severe impact upon the highway network. 

Therefore, in accordance with paragraph 109 of the NPPF 

(2019), the development should not be refused on transport 

grounds. The proposed development complies with the NPPF 

(2019), policy LP16 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 

and policy PT1 of the St Neots Neighbourhood Plan.  

 Ecology and Biodiversity 
7.60 Paragraph 170 of the NPPF (2019) states that ‘the planning 

system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local 

environment’ including by ‘minimising impacts on and providing 

net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent 

ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future 

pressures’.  

7.61 The application is supported by an Ecology Assessment (PEA), 

updated by report in 2018 and Biodiversity Offsetting 

Calculations. The reports conclude that the site comprises a 

ploughed arable field bordered by a species-poor hedgerow, 

plantation woodland, semi-improved grassland, tall ruderal 

vegetation and a small area of broadleaved semi-natural 

woodland that is separated from the field by a wet ditch. The 

only potential impact on designated sites would be through 

increased recreational pressure from new residents, however 

this is considered unlikely to result in any significant effect. The 

findings confirm that the habitats on-site have the potential to 

support nesting birds and foraging / commuting bats.   

7.62 The Wildlife Trust have reviewed the submitted reports and are 

satisfied that there are no significant ecological constraints to 

the proposed development and that the proposed development 

should be able to demonstrate a small net gain in biodiversity. A 

condition is recommended to secure the reserved matters 

Page 48 of 200



submissions relating to landscaping include habitat creation 

areas and a strategy for their ongoing management in line with 

the PEA and a Biodiversity Management Plan which provide 

details of habitat creation and ongoing management to achieve 

a net gain in biodiversity through the development. 

7.63 It is considered that the impacts of the proposed development 

on biodiversity would be minimised such that it would not have 

a significant adverse impact on biodiversity and would ensure 

the provision of measures to achieve net gains. The proposed 

development would accord with paragraph 170 of the NPPF 

(2019) and policy LP30 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 

2036.  

 Health Impact Assessment 
7.64 In accordance with Policy LP29 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan 

to 2036, the application is supported by a Rapid Health Impact 

Assessment. Whilst this identifies that the development would 

not lead to any negative potential health impacts, many of the 

assessment criteria relate to matters which shall only be known 

at reserved matters stage. It is therefore recommended that a 

condition be appended to any consent granted requiring a 

further Rapid Health Impact Assessment to be submitted as 

part of any applications(s) for reserved matters, based on the 

principles set out within the submitted document, to 

demonstrate how the development would facilitate safe, healthy 

and inclusive communities, in accordance with the aims of 

Policy LP29. Subject to the imposition of a condition, the 

proposed development would comply with Policy LP29 of 

Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036. 

  Fire Hydrants 
7.65 Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue have requested that the 

provision of adequate fire hydrants is secured by condition. The 

Page 49 of 200



imposition of such a condition is considered acceptable and 

would meet the statutory tests.  

 Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations 
7.66 Statutory tests require that S106 planning obligations must be 

necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 

terms, directly related to the development and fairly and 

reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. S106 

obligations are intended to make development acceptable 

which would otherwise be unacceptable in planning terms.  

7.67 Without prejudice to the eventual determination of the planning 

application, negotiations have been held with the applicant in 

order to determine the extent of the obligations required to 

make the development acceptable. These negotiations have 

been held in line with the advice within the Regulations and the 

outcome is summarised below. 

7.68 The Developer Contributions SPD sets out within part 2 that in 

determining infrastructure needs, the Council and partners have 

had to translate dwelling numbers into population generation. 

This has been undertaken utilising the anticipated change in 

average household sizes. For the purposes of calculating the 

likely infrastructure requirements, the 2016 average household 

size has been used (2.25 people per household). With the 

application seeking permission for up to 79 dwellings this 

equates to (79 x 2.25) 177.75 people.  

7.69 The planning obligations sought and agreed by the Applicant 

are summarised below. These obligations are all considered to 

meet the statutory tests and are compliant with relevant policies 

and the Developer Contributions SPD: -  

 

 

Page 50 of 200



Affordable housing: 

7.70 The site is over 0.5 ha in size and therefore the development 

should seek to achieve a target of 40% affordable housing in 

accordance with policies LP4 and LP24 of Huntingdonshire’s 

Local Plan to 2036 and the Developer Contributions SPD. With 

the proposed number of dwellings being up to 79 this would 

equate to a maximum total of 31 affordable homes. The policies 

indicate that provision should be made on site and should seek 

to achieve a target tenure split of 70% social rented and 30% 

shared ownership. Policy does however acknowledge that, in 

determining the amount and mix of affordable housing to be 

delivered, site specific considerations and other material 

considerations, including viability, will be taken into account.  In 

this instance, no site specific considerations have been 

submitted and therefore the proposal shall provide policy 

compliant affordable housing provision. Should the pursuant 

reserved matters application(s) seek approval for fewer 

dwellings, then the number of affordable dwellings would 

reduce accordingly, but the target of 40% would remain 

applicable.    

Green Space: 

7.71 In accordance with Policy LP4 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan 

to 2036 and the Developer Contributions SPD (Part B) 

proposals are required to provide the development specific land 

for informal and formal green space. Based on a scheme of up 

to 79 dwellings of unknown size properties and the 

requirements of the Developer Contributions SPD, the 

development generates a requirement for in the region of 

3700m2 of POS including 1400m2 of continuous green space 

where children can stretch their legs and play. The submitted 

illustrative masterplan demonstrates that the full quantum of 

development could be accommodated to meet the requirement. 

Page 51 of 200



As such the on site open space could be provided which 

complies with policy LP4 of Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 

2036, policy P2 of the St Neots Neighbourhood Plan and the 

Developer Contributions SPD. This will secured along with 

maintenance of the land on a formula basis through a S106 

Agreement. This maintenance would comprise either a 

commuted sum following the transfer of the green space to the 

Town Council or the District Council, or the site will be 

maintained by a maintenance company that would be set up by 

the developer and funded through contributions from residents 

of the site (as per the cascade mechanism in the Developer 

Contributions SPD).   

Formal Green Space: 

7.72 Off-site contributions of £226.92 per person (a total of £40,335 

for 79 dwellings) have been sought by HDC Active Lifestyles 

towards relaying the artificial turf pitch at One Leisure ST Neots. 

This specific project is considered to accord with the statutory 

tests in the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations and 

paragraph 56 of the NPPF (2019) i.e. it is considered that a 

formula based contribution is necessary to make the 

development acceptable in planning terms, it is directly related 

to the development and it is fairly and reasonably related in 

scale and kind to the development.   

Residential wheeled bins: 

7.73 Each dwelling will require the provision of one black, blue and 

green wheeled bin. The current cost of such provision is £150 

per dwelling. For flats, communal 1100 litre bins could be 

provided rather than individual bins for each dwellings. The 

current cost for communal bins is £669 each. As such a formula 

based approach is suggested with the scheme and details to be 

secured through the S106 Agreement.  

Page 52 of 200



CIL: 

7.74 The development will be CIL liable in accordance with the 

Council’s adopted Charging Schedule. CIL payments could 

cover infrastructure relating to footpath and access, health, 

community facilities, libraries, lifelong learning and education.  

  Conclusion and Planning Balance 
7.75 The NPPF has at its heart the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development (para 11) and requires the approval of 

development proposals that accord with an up-to-date 

development plan without delay. The presumption in favour of 

sustainable development requires proposals to achieve 

economic, social and environmental gains; as such a balancing 

exercise has to be undertaken to weigh the benefits of the 

scheme against its disadvantages. When considered in the 

round, the proposal would contribute to the economic, 

environmental and social dimensions of sustainability.  

7.76 Consideration has been given to the points previously in this 

report but can be summarised as below: 

7.77 In terms of the economic dimensions of sustainable 

development, the proposal would contribute towards economic 

growth, including job creation – during the construction phase 

and in the longer term through the additional population 

assisting the local economy through spending on local services 

/ facilities. There will also be Council Tax and New Homes 

Bonus receipts arising from the development.  

7.78 Regarding the social dimension, the site appears to have no 

significant constraints and is deliverable. It would also increase 

the supply of housing. There is a local and district identified 

need for both private and affordable housing and whilst the 

Council can demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing 

land, the provision of market housing and a 40% affordable 

Page 53 of 200



provision on the application site would amount to a moderate 

benefit in terms of providing a greater flexibility to the supply of 

housing. The proposals would also make provision for 

contributions towards formal green space, the provision of 

green space and maintenance and community facilities through 

the Community Infrastructure Levy.  

7.79 In terms of the environmental dimension of sustainable 

development, the proposal offers potential for the incorporation 

of energy efficiency measures (to be considered in detail at 

reserved matters stage) as well as the delivery of green space 

and a net gain in biodiversity. The visual impacts of the 

development are considered to be acceptable and the impacts 

from the adjacent noise sources would be made satisfactory for 

new residents. The application site constitutes a sustainable 

location for the scale of development proposed in respect of 

access to local employment opportunities and services and 

facilities within St Neots and the wider Spatial Planning Area; 

accessible by sustainable transport modes.  

7.80 Having fully assessed all three objectives of sustainable 

development; economic, social and environmental within this 

report it is concluded that the development of this site will: 

• Provide a supply of affordable and market housing within 
a sustainable location to help meet needs from current 
and future generations; 

• Maximise opportunities for use of public transport, 
walking and cycling;  

• Minimise pollution;  
• Manage flood risk, drainage, contamination and health 

and safety risks effectively; 
• Provide housing which would provide a high standard of 

amenity for future occupiers;  
• Have no adverse impacts on features of landscape or 

ecological value whilst enabling net gains in biodiversity 
to be achieved;  

• Provide appropriate infrastructure to meet the needs 
generated by the development. 

 

Page 54 of 200



8. RECOMMENDATION  -    APPROVE  
subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Agreement 
relating to affordable housing, green space, formal green 
space and bins and subject to conditions. 

OR 

RECOMMENDATION – REFUSE  
in the event that the S106 Agreement referred to above has 
not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree 
to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds 
that the applicant is unwilling to complete the agreement 
necessary to make the development acceptable. 

Conditions: 

• Approval of Reserved Matters Time Limit and Time Limit 
following last Reserved Matters 

• Timing of permission and submission of Reserved 
Matters 

• Scale parameters – maximum of 70 dwellings 
• Access plan to be adhered to including visibility splays 
• Site levels and finished floor levels detailed as part of 

any reserved matters for layout 
• Surface water drainage scheme and maintenance 

arrangements submitted as part of any reserved matters 
for layout or landscaping 

• Submission of Noise Mitigation Scheme and Ventilation 
Scheme as part of any reserved matters for layout 

• Construction Environmental Management Plan including 
lighting details 

• Tree Survey, protection plan and Arboricultural Impact 
Assessment to be submitted as part of any reserved 
matters for layout or landscaping 

• Off site highway works – detailed engineering scheme 
• Visibility for site access 
• Biodiversity Management Plan submitted as part of any 

reserved matters for layout or landscaping to 
demonstrate net gain in biodiversity 

• Residential travel plan 
• Fire Hydrants  
• Details of road adoption and maintenance 
• External lighting scheme to be provided as part of any 

application for reserved matters 
• Rapid Health Impact Assessment to be submitted as part 

of any application(s) for reserved matters 

Page 55 of 200



If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or 

an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to 

accommodate your needs. 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Enquiries about this report to Louise Newcombe, Development 
Management Team Leader 01480 388490 

Page 56 of 200



46

PHI LIP GARDE NS

12
1

1

11

14

35

45

2

SL
s

50.25

26

39

45c

34

45a

16

11

45
h

7

29

16

33

45f

POTTO N RD

PHILIP GARDENS

1 15

10

162

59

Sub S ta

7

5

Co
 Co

n s
t  &

 U
A 

Bd
y

JAMES  COURT

ANDREW
 ROAD

22

45

57

6

PHI LIP GARDE NS

30

6

10

66

39

54

47

50

14

57

11

63

1

47

5

DRIVE

WILLIAM

78

16

62

21

to

42

CUM BE RLAND WAY

to

27

26

CF

1

LB

1

ED & Ward Bdy

ED & Ward Bdy

61

31

19

MP

7
4

58

ETL

Drain

30.2m

41

7

2

20

15

4

9

15

9
28

50

11

32

17

to

to

SL

RYE CLOS E

to 25

60

6

39

41

19

2

15

5

21

to

Drain

22

27

El

23

43

27. 1m

38

7

12
9

13
7

Drain

MP  50.0

MP  50.0

CW

7

El Sub  S ta

11

12

A4 28

8

38

14

35

29

7

33

3
1

40

34

36

5

12

31

10

Application Ref:16/01507/OUT
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 

Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

1:2,500Scale = 
Date Created: 26/09/2019

Development Management Committee

Location:St Neots

Key
The Site

Conservation Area
Listed Building

Page 57 of 200



Key

Site Boundary

Principal Access Point 

Potential Pedestrian & cycle Links only

Main Vehicular Route

Potential Cycle/Pedestrian Route

Potential Pedestrian Routes

Focal Points

Existing Trees/hedgerow

Indicative Tree Planting

Gateway

LAP (Play area)

Residential Land Parcel

Public Open Space

Overhead Powerline

Swale

Pond

Noise & Vibration Offset

Allotments 

Illustrative Masterplan 
Framework

A428

A428

POTTON ROAD (B1046) 

EA
ST

 C
OA

ST
 M

AI
N

LI
N

E

50
M

50M

3.0m Cycle/footway

6.1m wide all mode access

Refuge

Refuge and 30mph Gateway

3.0m Cycle/footway

3.0m Verge

3.0m Cycle/footway

18.05

17.98

17.56
17.46

18.45
19.22

19.99

20.19

18.42

18.02

18.23

18.30

18.97

18.45

19.85

GCP1

23.06

23.38

23.60

23.70

23.18
PO

21.48

PO

20.09

PO

RS

ST02

ST04

ST03

ST01

29.70

31.43

31.56

31.55

31.65

31.72

31.48

29.24
BL

29.16
BL

29.61

29.45
29.11

29.79

29.60 29.11

29.09

27.52

30.33

30.39

30.39

31.44

31.57

31.54

31.65

31.72

31.81

31.44

30.74 30.62

31.39

30.83

30.63

31.21

30.78
30.84

31.09

31.10

30.66
30.67

31.06

30.85

30.43
30.44

30.78

30.26

30.16

30.49

30.56

30.13
30.15

30.50

30.45

30.10

29.98

30.26

30.31

29.93
29.80

30.15

29.79

30.05 29.70
29.64

30.09

29.92

29.96

29.70

29.53
29.50

29.89
29.46

29.46

29.83

29.66

29.31
29.37

29.67

29.71

29.32

29.33

29.63

29.53

29.24

29.20

29.43

29.49

29.12
29.15

29.30

29.51

29.26

29.08

29.18

29.43

29.02

28.96

29.32

29.46

29.22

28.97

RS

31.78

31.74

31.63

31.52

31.48

31.37

31.25

31.10

30.93

30.77

30.65

30.53

30.42

30.31

30.17

30.11

29.98

29.87

29.76

29.70

29.70

29.66

29.66

29.60

19.31

19.83

19.91

19.92

19.62

29.66

29.09

28.20

28.67

29.14

29.10

28.97

28.52

27.95

27.27

26.54

25.73

24.53

23.64

24.22

25.00

25.78

26.65

27.44

28.15

28.67

28.58

28.52

28.07

27.41

26.51

25.67

24.84

24.04

23.26

22.58

22.01

21.61

21.23

20.93

21.02

21.25

21.74

22.39

22.94

23.61

24.46

25.33

26.17

26.91

27.57

28.11

28.46

28.36

28.24

27.70

27.03

26.37

25.64

24.73

23.89

23.12

22.43

21.81

21.23

20.89

20.63

20.5220.52

20.32

20.17

20.00

20.02

20.26

20.38

20.65

20.81

21.39

21.94

22.68

23.28

24.00

25.02

25.88

26.74

27.39

27.93

27.98

27.94

27.43

26.80

25.99

25.18

24.27

23.57

22.97

22.22

21.58

21.11

20.76

20.46

20.26

20.09

19.97

19.84

33.78
RL

33.06
RL

32.47
RL

30.40
RL

24.46

24.38

24.45

24.77

Wall

Railway Bridge

Retaining Wall

Private Dwelling

Private Dwelling

Private Dwelling

Private Dwelling

A428

A428

Arable Land

Arable Land

RS

Potton Road

Potton Road

Potton Road

Refuge

LA
P

scale 1:1250

0 25m 50m 75m

 ANSARC Limited trading as RUA Architecture + Urban Design, Thistle Down Barn, Holcot Road, Sywell, Northants NN6 0BG. Registered No 7923332

© 

P
age 58 of 200



P
age 59 of 200



Page 60 of 200



Page 61 of 200



PLAN 

NO.
RECEIVED REFERENCE DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION APPLICANT RESPONSE DUE PROPOSER/2ND

SNTC 

DECISION
NOTES

1 08/08/2016 16/01554/HHFUL Single Storey Extension to house 19B The Paddock, Eaton Ford, St Neots, PE19 7SA Mr and Mrs Farmer 29/08/2016
Cllr G Thorpe

Cllr C Maslen
Approved

The development was acceptable to the 

Committee.

2 09/08/2016 16/01507/OUT
Residential Development of site for 79 Dwellings and associated 

Open Space, including new access from Potton Road

Land Between The Railway Line and St Neots Bypass 

and Potton Road, Eynesbury
Mr Richard Banks 30/08/2016

Cllr G Thorpe

Cllr D Wells
Rejected

Rejected on the grounds of traffic generation, 

highway safety and over development.

3 11/08/2016 16/01642/HHFUL Proposed Two Storey Rear Extension 19 Murrell Court, St Neots, PE19 1LL Mr and Mrs Dixon 01/09/2016
Cllr C Maslen

Cllr G Thorpe
Approved

This development will have no outward impact 

on the surrounding area.

4 12/08/2016 16/01313/FUL
Clearance of Existing Remaining Market Garden Structures to allow 

erection of Nine Dwellings (5 Houses, 2 Bungalows & 2 Coach 

Houses) and associated works

Land adjacent 31 Luke Street
AWJ Ushers and Sons 

Ltd
02/09/2016

Cllr G Thorpe

Cllr K Wainwright
Rejected

Rejected on the grounds of loss of privacy 

(owing to height differential of land), highway 

safety, road access and over development.

5 17/08/2016 16/01193/FUL Development of a Non Profit Miniature Railway Miniature Golf Course Riverside Park St Neots Road 

Eaton Ford St Neots Mr Hewlett

27/09/2016

Cllr G Thorpe

Cllr C Maslen Approved

It was felt that this enterprise will be a valuable 

asset to the town, and hopefully help promote 

visitor numbers.

6 05/08/2016 16/01544/HHFUL

Installation of detached timber garden room 23 Field Gate Close, St Neots, PE19 6DG

Mr Alastair Ham 26/08/2016
Cllr B Farrer

Cllr G Thorpe
Deferred

The Council would like to know exactly how 

much of the proposed Garden Room will be 

visible and how much of it will be above the 

fence line that separates the two properties.

7 05/08/2016 16/01547/HHFUL
Proposed conversion of existing garage and erection of single storey 

garage all with pitched roof over. 21 Masefield Avenue, Eaton Ford, St Neots, PE19 7LS
Miss Hill 26/08/2016

Cllr G Thorpe

Cllr C Maslen
Approved

Various other properties in the area have had 

work similar to this done.
8

9

……………………………………….

Chairman

Schedule of Plans - 25th August 2016

P
age 62 of 200

SBrown
Typewritten Text
St Neots Town CouncilPlanning Committee



St Neots Town Council

Planning Committee

Schedule of Plans - 2nd November 2017
PLAN 

NO.
RECEIVED REFERENCE DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION APPLICANT RESPONSE DUE PROPOSER/2ND SNTC DECISION NOTES

1 13/10/2017 17/02084/HHFUL

Single and two storey side and rear extension to the property with associated 

landscaping 38 Wordsworth Avenue, Eaton Ford, St Neots, PE19 7RE Mr & Mrs Tudor 03/11/2017
Cllr Dunford

Cllr Thorpe
Approved

Improves the property.

Satisfactory proposal in terms 

of scale and pattern of 

development.

2 13/10/2017 17/02080/HHFUL

Single and two storey rear extension, first floor side extension (above garage) and 

porch 83 Longsands Road, St Neots, PE19 1TW Ms Sherman 03/11/2017
Cllr Maslen

Cllr Thorpe
Approved

In keeping with locality.

Improves the property.

We consider that the proposal 

would assimilate itself to the 

existing part of the town.

3 13/10/2017 17/019919/TREE

T1-3 Yew - retirm height by at most 50cm to previous pruning points & around 

sides to shape. G1 mixed hedgerow - reduce height to 2.5m to previous pruning 

points & trim up side to clear footpath
2 Manor House Close, Eaton Socon, St Neots, PE19 8JA Bradsworth 03/11/2017

Cllr Usher

Cllr Dunford
Approved

Will have no negative impact 

on the wider landscape 

character of the area.

Tree to be felled over a period 

of time in accordance with best 

arboricultural practice.

4 18/10/2017 17/02026/HHFUL
Demolition of kitchen/garage with replacement single storey extension

26 Berkley Street, Eynesbury, St Neots, PE19 2NB Mr Heng Khoo 08/11/2017
Cllr Maslen

Cllr Usher
Approved

In keeping with locality.

Improves the property.

5 18/10/2017 17/02027/LBC
Demolition of kitchen/garage with replacement single storey extension

26 Berkley Street, Eynesbury, St Neots, PE19 2NB Mr Heng Khoo 08/11/2017
Cllr Maslen

Cllr Usher
Approved

In keeping with locality.

Improves the property.

6 19/10/2017 16/01507/OUT

Residential development of site for 79 dwelling & associated open space, 

including new access from  Potton Road Land Between the Railway Line and St Neots Bypass & Potton Road Eynesbury Mr Richard Banks 08/11/2017
Cllr Dunford

Cllr Maslen
Rejected

Adequacy of 

parking/loading/turning.

Highway safety.

Unsafe pedestrian access. 

Traffic congestion.

Road Access.

Local, strategic, reginal and 

national planning policies.

Disabled persons’ access.

Previous planning decisions 

(including appeal decisions)

7 26/10/2017 1300388OUT

Outline application for the development of up to 1020 dwellings, up to 7.6 has of 

mixed uses including a nursery/crèche (Use Class D1), public house (Use Class A4), 

hotel (Class C1), care accommodation (use Class C2) and employment uses (Use 

Class B1), connections with Loves Farm, on-site roads and pedestrian/cycle routes, 

open space and other related infrastructure.

Site Address: Loves Farm Eastern Expansion Development Area Cambridge Road 

St Neots.

Amended Transport Assessment

Amended Public Transport Note

Junction Arrangements Oct 2017

Loves Farm Eastern Expansion Development Area, Cambridge Road, St Neots Mr David Keyse 11/11/2017
Referred to Full 

Council

……………………………………….

P
age 63 of 200



ST NEOTS TOWN COUNCIL PLANNING COMMITTEE

PLAN 

NO

RECEIVED REFERENCE DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION APPLICANT RESPONSE DUE SNTC DECISION NOTES

1 11/07/2019 19/01389/HHFUL

Proposed two storey side / rear extension and 

front porch to provide ancillary 

accommodation for family member.

9 Bishops Road Eynesbury St 

Neots PE19 2QA
Mrs Martin Merchant 01/08/2019 Approve

Improves the property.

Makes efficient use of its site.

Provides high quality well designed 

family/starter homes.

2 12/07/2019 19/01068/HHFUL
Proposed front extension/porch to provide 

wheelchair access W.C

9 Corunna Close Eaton Ford St 

Neots PE19 7NE
Mr Jon Shine 02/08/2019 Approve

Improves the property.

Minimum impact on neighbours.

Will have no negative impact on the 

wider landscape or character of the 

area.

3 15/07/2019 19/01433/TREE

T1 - Weeping Ash - Remove Ivy, Climbing 

inspection, and reduce back from number 5.

T2 - Weeping Ash - Reduce over car parking 

spaces by 2m and dead wood.

T3 - Christmas tree - Crown raise to gutter 

height.

Audreys Court 153 Great 

North Road Eaton Socon PE19 

8EQ

Mrs Alison Magee 05/08/2019 Approve

The committee are pleased to see 

that the trees are bing 

sympathetically maintained.

4 16/07/2019 18/02448/REM

Application for Reserved Matters approval for 

the creation of a landscape corridor to 

include: hard and soft landscaping, creation 

and upgrade of footpaths and cycleways, and 

all ancillary works, associated infrastructure 

and engineering works.

Amendments received: 12 July 2019

Covering letter.

GA Sheet 1 Ref: BMD 17.0.18.D.R.P 109 

Revision D.

GA Sheet 2 Ref: BMD 17.0.18.D.R.P 110 

Revision D.

GA Sheet 3 Ref: BMD 17.0.18.D.R.P 111 

Revision D.

Ref: BMD 17.0.18.D.R.P 309 Revision C.

Ref: BMD 17.0.18.D.R.P 310 Revision B .

Ref: BMD 17.0.18.D.R.P 311 Revision B .

Issue Sheet

Wintringham Park Cambridge 

Road St Neots

Wintringham Partners LLP C/O 

Urban And Civic

Extension date 

requested

31/07/2019

Approve with 

Conditions

The committee request the steps 

included should be removed as they 

are not accessible for all users and are 

contrary to DDA. Replace the steps 

with and Up/Down ramp.

SCHEDULE OF PLANS - 30 JULY 2019

Date printed 06/08/2019 1 of 2

P
age 64 of 200



ST NEOTS TOWN COUNCIL PLANNING COMMITTEE

PLAN 

NO

RECEIVED REFERENCE DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION LOCATION APPLICANT RESPONSE DUE SNTC DECISION NOTES

5 17/07/2019 18/01598/OUT

Demolition of existing building and erection 

of up to 8 flats (residential development) with 

all matters reserved

Elm Lodge Potton Road 

Eynesbury
Mr David Walsh 31/07/2019 Refuse

Adequacy parking/loading/turning

Scale of development.

Contrary to St Neots Neighbourhood 

Plan.

6 18/07/2019 18/02708/REM

Reserved Matters relating to residential 

parcels 1 and 1a consisting of 128 (parcel 1) 

and 106 (parcel 1a) 1, 2, 3 and 4 bedroom 2, 3 

and 4 storey apartments, mews, semi 

detached and detached dwellings, 

incorporating 38 (parcel 1) and 32 (parcel 1a) 

affordable dwellings and 1200m2 of Public 

Open Space (parcel 1) plus associated 

secondary access arrangements, parking and 

landscaping.

Full suite of amended plans and documents 

received, dated 17 July 2019

Wintringham Park Cambridge 

Road St Neots

Morris Homes Limited (Mr Garry 

Goodwin)
01/08/2019 Approve

Within a sustainable location.

Provides high quality well designed 

family/starter homes.

Will have no negative impact on the 

wider landscape or character of the 

area.

We appreciate that you have listened 

to our previous comments on parking 

and street lighting.

7 22/07/2019 19/01399/LBC

Replacement of front door with step removal 

to provide disabled access and install internal 

secondary glazing to shopfront.

38 High Street St Neots PE19 

1BJ
Lloyds Bank 12/08/2019 Approve

Improves the property.

Makes efficient use of its site.

8 22/07/2019 16/01507/OUT

Residential development of site for up to 79 

dwellings and associated open space with all 

matters reserved except access to be from 

Potton Road

Amended documents received (Ecological 

Appraisal and Transport Assessment)

Land Between The Railway 

Line And St Neots Bypass And 

Potton Road Eynesbury

The Bank Trustees 13/08/2019 Refuse

Lack of pedestrian access.

Highway safety.

9 23/07/2019 19/01421/FUL Installation of a mezzanine
1B Alpha Drive Eaton Socon St 

Neots PE19 8JJ
Mr Peter Harris 13/08/2019 Approve

Improves the property.

Makes efficient use of its site.

Date printed 06/08/2019 2 of 2

P
age 65 of 200



PLANNING CONSULTATION RESPONSE

To  Louise Newcombe
Huntingdonshire District Council
Pathfinder House 
St Marys Street 
Huntingdon
PE29 3TN

Economy, Transport & Environment 

  Highway Development Management
Cambridgeshire County Council
West Highways Division
Stanton House, Stanton Way
Stukeley Road
Huntingdon

  Cambs PE29 6PY  

App Reference: 16/01507/out
Contact: Robin HobbsDate IN : 10/05/19 Date Out : 26/06/19

RE: Application description
Proposal: Residential development of site for 79 dwellings and associated open 
space including new access from Potton Road
Location: Land between the railway line and St Neots Bypass and Potton Road 
Eynesbury

Following the provision of plan number 31774/5501/SK01 rev P1 which is detailed 
and dimensioned with the opposite junction (into Wintringham Park) now omitted I 
would make the following comments.

The transport assessment team have assessed the flows from the proposed site and 
have commented separately.

Consultations confirm that the “in principle provision” of the signals would now be 
acceptable from our signals team and that the installation would be acceptable to the 
transport assessment team in relation to the impact on the highway 

The proposed “in principle” scheme for the installation of the signals, right turn lane 
and footway connection across the bridge to the northwest has passed through a 
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit without issue, but will need to be refined in terms of 
geometric layout at detailed design stage.
Permission will also need to be obtained from Network Rail for the scheme to be 
forthcoming, as it will require works on the bridge.

Page 66 of 200



The access proposed has a suitable access geometry and vehicle to vehicle visibility 
in accordance with the speed of the road, for the development proposed.

Given that the access and the right turn lane will be street lit this section of highway 
will automatically have a 30mph speed limit, although the applicant will be required to 
revoke and existing Traffic Regulation Order which they will be required to do at their 
own expense.

Given the above I have no further requirements regarding the proposed works on the 
highway. But I would reiterate that in order to provide the linking pedestrian 
infrastructure permission from Network Rail will need to be sought for the 
works on the bridge deck.

Given the above I would have no objections to that proposed please append the 
following conditions to any consent granted.

 Before any works hereby permitted are commenced, a detailed engineering 
scheme for the proposed off-site highway works shown in principle on Drawing 
31774/5501 SK07 Rev P1 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to 
the occupancy of the first dwelling

HDMC 01 Prior to the commencement of the development full details (in
the form of scaled plans and/or written specifications) shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority to illustrate the following:

a) The layout of the site, including roads, footways, cycleways,
buildings, visibility splays, parking provision and surface water

drainage.
b) The siting of the building(s) and means of access thereto.
c) Visibility splays
d) Parking provision
e) Turning Area(s)

HDMC 02 No development shall commence until details of the proposed     
arrangements for future management and maintenance of the
proposed streets within the development have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (The
streets shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the
approved management and maintenance details until such time
as an Agreement has been entered into under Section 38 of the
Highways Act 1980 or a Private Management and Maintenance
Company has been established).

       
Reason:  To ensure satisfactory development of the site and to
ensure estate roads are managed and maintained thereafter to
a suitable and safe standard.  

Page 67 of 200



HDMC 14 Prior to the first occupation of the development the vehicular access 
where it crosses the public highway shall be laid out and constructed in accordance 
with the Cambridgeshire County Council construction specification.

Reason:     In the interests of highway safety and to ensure satisfactory access into 
the site.

HDMC 18 Temporary facilities shall be provided clear of the public highway for the 
parking, turning, loading and unloading of all vehicles visiting the site during the 
period of construction. 

Reason:     In the interests of highway safety.

HDMC 19 Prior to the first construction of the development  visibility splays shall 
be provided each side of the vehicular access in full accordance with the details 
indicated on the submitted plan No 31774/5501/SK01 rev P1
The splays shall thereafter be maintained free from any obstruction exceeding 0.6m 
above the level of the adjacent highway carriageway.

Reason:     In the interests of highway safety.

NFORMATIVES

The applicant should be informed that a stage 2 (in detail) safety audit and a section 
278 highways agreement will need to be entered into with the highway authority prior 
to any works being undertaken to the highway.

HDMI 2 The applicant is advised that to discharge Condition HDMC 02 the Local 
Planning Authority requires a copy of a completed agreement between the Applicant 
and the Local Highway Authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or the 
constitution and details of a Private Management and Maintenance Company 
confirming funding, management and maintenance regimes. 

Page 68 of 200



Page 69 of 200



Page 70 of 200



Page 71 of 200



1

From: Newcombe, Louise (Planning)

Sent: 12 September 2019 14:40

To: Newcombe, Louise (Planning)

Subject: FW: 16/01507/OUT - Potton Road, St Neots

From: Allatt David <David.Allatt@cambridgeshire.gov.uk> 
Sent: 12 September 2019 14:33
To: Newcombe, Louise (Planning) <Louise.Newcombe@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>
Cc: Hobbs Robin <Robin.Hobbs@cambridgeshire.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: 16/01507/OUT - Potton Road, St Neots

Thanks Louise, 

Following the receipt of additional information, I was content that the highways issues were the only matters 
remaining, and indeed these have now been addressed as per Robin’s response. 

Subject to the conditioning of a Travel Plan, and highway works (including appropriate commuted sums). 

David

David Allatt
Transport Assessment Manager
Transport Assessment Team
Growth & Economy
Cambridgeshire County Council

Box No SH1315, Shire Hall, Cambridge, CB3 0AP

Tel. 01223 6999 23
Mob. 07411 962 132

Please note we now charge for pre application planning advice. For more information and a copy of the charging 
schedule please visit https://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/business/planning-and-development/developing-new-
communities/

Page 72 of 200



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019 

Case No: 18/01946/FUL  (Full Planning Application) 

Proposal: The erection of three dwellings, change of use of stable 
yard to livery parking area and construction of an 
extension to the access road to the proposed livery 
parking area 

Location: 50 Hamerton Road Alconbury Weston  PE28 4JD 

Applicant: Mr Baker 

Grid Ref: 517643   277104 

Date of Registration:   03.10.2018 

Parish: Alconbury Weston 

RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE subject to conditions 
and a Bin Unilateral Undertaking. 

This application has been referred to Development Management 

Committee as the Parish Councils recommendation of refusal is 

contrary to the Local Planning Authorities recommendation of approval. 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION 

1.1 This application relates to No.50 Hamerton Road, Alconbury 

Weston. The application site currently holds an existing 

residential dwelling known as ‘Salix House’, located in a position 

set back approximately 60 metres into the site, as well as a 

stable block and ménage positioned at the northern extent of the 

site. 

1.2 The site forms part of built up area of Alconbury Weston and is 

located within the Conservation Area. The site is surrounded by 

residential dwellings to the south, west and east whilst directly to 

the north is open countryside. 

Page 73 of 200

Agenda Item 4b



1.3 The site is located within the village of Alconbury Weston which 

is classified as a small settlement in the Local Plan to 2036 and 

therefore subject to the guidance contained within Policy LP9 of 

the Local Plan. 

1.4 In terms of flood risk, the 2017 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 

(SFRA 2017) identifies the site as largely being located within 

Flood Zone 1. A small part of the existing front garden is located 

in Flood Zone 2; however no dwelling is proposed to be located 

in this location. Rationale for using the 2017 SFRA is outlined in 

the ‘Flood Risk’ section below. 

1.5 Planning permission is sought for the erection of three dwellings, 

change of use of stable yard to livery parking area and 

construction of an extension to the access road to the proposed 

livery parking area. Salix House will remain as part of the 

proposal. 

1.6 In terms of the size and scale of the dwellings, the following is 

proposed: 

1.7 Plot 1 – Two storey, 5 bedroom dwelling measuring 15.6 metres 

in width by 14 metres in length. In terms of height, the proposal 

will measure 8.6 metres. In regards to materials the dwelling 

would comprise cream render walls, grey slate tiled roof and 

white timber double glazed windows. 

1.8 Plot 2 - Two storey, 5 bedroom dwelling measuring 12.6 metres 

in width by 14 metres in length. In terms of height the proposal 

will measure 8.6 metres. In regards to materials the dwelling 

would comprise soft cream buff brick walls and natural stained 

timber weatherboard, soft red pantile roof and white timber 

double glazed windows. 

1.9 Plot 3 - Two storey, 5 bedroom dwelling measuring 12.6 metres 

in width by 14 metres in length. In terms of height the proposal 

Page 74 of 200



will measure 8.6 metres. In regards to materials the dwelling 

would comprise cream monocouche render walls and natural 

stained timber weatherboard, soft red pantile roof and white 

timber double glazed windows. 

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2019) sets out 
the three economic, social and environmental objectives of the 
planning system to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 
development. The NPPF confirms that ‘So sustainable 
development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 
Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. The NPPF sets out the Government's planning 
policies for:  

• delivering a sufficient supply of homes;  
• achieving well-designed places;  
• conserving and enhancing the natural environment;  
• conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

2.2 Planning Practice Guide  

For full details visit the government website National Guidance 

3. PLANNING POLICIES 

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 

• LP2: Strategy for Development 
• LP4: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery 
• LP5: Flood Risk 
• LP6: Waste Water Management 
• LP9: Small Settlements 
• LP10: The Countryside 
• LP11: Design Context  
• LP12: Design Implementation 
• LP14: Amenity 
• LP15: Surface Water 
• LP16: Sustainable Travel 
• LP17: Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement 
• LP25: Housing Mix 
• LP30: Biodiversity and Geodiversity  
• LP31: Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows 
• LP34: Heritage Assets and their Settings 

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

• Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2017) 

Page 75 of 200

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government


• Developer Contributions SPD (2011) 

For full details visit the government website Local policies 

4. PLANNING HISTORY 

4.1 None Relevant  

5. CONSULTATIONS 

5.1 Alconbury Weston Parish Council - Recommend Refusal for the 

following reasons: 

• Lack of information available both on the design and style 

of the proposed properties, including building materials 

and finished appearance to establish if they would be in 

keeping with the current built environment and street 

scene. 

• Lack of details on the actual layout within the site for 

where residential parking will be, and how this will work 

with the new properties, existing property and the current 

business that is operating on the site. 

• The location of the site is incorrectly marked on the flood 

map included at appendix 2 of the Planning Statement in 

support of the application 

• Appendix 3 of the Planning Statement is not included in 

the online documents 

• Suitable flood protection/mitigation measures should be 

stated and agreed prior to planning approval. 

• Data quoted within the reports is 20 years old 

• Within the Flood Risk Assessment, a recommendation is 

made to restrict post development discharge from the site 

into Alconbury Brook.  These should be set higher than 

the bare minimum of mitigation measures due to the 

recent and ongoing risk of surface water runoff flooding 

caused to properties along Hamerton Road. 

5.2 Environment Agency – No Objection - Refer to standing advice 

Page 76 of 200

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/


5.3 Internal Drainage Board – No Objection 

5.4 CCC Highways – No objection 

5.5 HDC Urban Design – No objection - Conditions 

5.6 HDC Landscape Officer – No objection – Conditions 

5.7 HDC Conservation – No objection 

5.8 Wildlife Trust – No objection 

6. REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 Four objections have been received stating the following… 

• Increased flood risk 

• Conifers appear to be removed – could lead to 

overlooking of 3 Willow Farm Close 

• Hedging and planting belonging to 1 – 3 Willow Farm 

Close cannot be removed 

• Car park could impact privacy of 3 Willow Farm Close 

7. ASSESSMENT  

7.1 When determining planning applications it is necessary to 

establish what weight should be given to each plan’s policies in 

order to come to a decision. The following legislation, 

government policy and guidance outline how this should be 

done.  

7.2 As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 (Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 (Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the 

Local Planning Authority shall have regard to have provisions of 

the development plan, so far as material to the application, and 

to any other material considerations. This is reiterated within 

Page 77 of 200



paragraph 47 of the NPPF (2019). The development plan is 

defined in Section 38(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as “the development 

plan documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or 

approved in that area”.  

7.3 In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan consists of: 
• Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 (2019) 

• Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Minerals and Waste  

Development Plan Core Strategy (2011) 

• St Neots Neighbourhood Plan 2014-2029 

• Godmanchester Neighbourhood Plan (2017) 

• Houghton and Wyton Neighbourhood Plan (2018) 

• Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan (2019) 

7.4 The statutory term ‘material considerations’ has been broadly 

construed to include any consideration relevant in the 

circumstances which bears on the use or development of the 

land: Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for 

Communities and Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97 

(Admin); [2011] 1 P. & C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting 

that the NPPF does not change the statutory status of the 

Development Plan, paragraph 2 confirms that it is a material 

consideration and significant weight is given to this in 

determining applications.  

7.5 The main issues to consider are: 

• The principle of development 

• Impact upon the character and appearance of the 

conservation area 

• Impact upon residential amenity 

• Highways safety and access 

• Ecology 

• Flooding 

Page 78 of 200



The Principle of Development 
7.6 The proposed site is considered to be within the built up area of 

the small settlement of Alconbury Weston. Therefore Policy LP9 

of the Local Plan to 2036 states that a proposal that is located 

within a built-up area of a Small Settlement will be supported 

where the amount and location of development proposed is 

sustainable in relation to the: 

a. level of service and infrastructure provision within the 

settlement; 

b. opportunities for users of the proposed development to access 

everyday services and facilities by sustainable modes of travel 

including walking, cycling and public transport; 

c. effect on the character of the immediate locality and the 

settlement as a whole 

7.7 Alconbury Weston is supported by no services or facilities, 

however due to its proximity to Alconbury it has easy access to a 

good range of amenities such as a school, public house, doctors, 

shop, pharmacy and sports and social facilities. In this instance 

the site is considered to be within the built up area of the village 

and represents a suitable and efficient use of the land, having 

regard to the availability of the limited services and other facilities 

(as mentioned above) in Alconbury Weston. The proposal does 

not require the demolition of the existing dwelling (No.50) and 

allows for three new units to be constructed in a suitable and 

sustainable location, the principle of which is acceptable within 

the built up area of the small settlement of Alconbury Weston. 

Impact upon the Character and Appearance of the Conservation 
Area  
7.8 The site currently holds a large two storey detached dwelling and 

forms a spacious plot with extensive garden to both the front and 

rear of the dwelling. Despite the extensive grounds surrounding 

the dwelling, the site is well contained with residential 

development to the east and west with Hamerton Road and 

further housing to the south. The extent of the site is terminated 

Page 79 of 200



by the stables to the north that form a boundary to the open 

countryside.  

7.9 In detail planning permission is sought for the erection of three 

dwellings, change of use of stable yard to livery parking area and 

construction of an extension to the access road to the proposed 

livery parking area.  

7.10 The proposal places plot 1 to the south of the Salix House 

(No.50 Hamerton Road) in a position adjacent to the access 

driveway fronting towards Hamerton Road, to create an active 

frontage along the street scene. The dwelling is set back from 

the road to maintain an element of spaciousness and keep the 

dwelling outside of the flood zone.  

7.11 The property will be the main feature readily viewable from the 

public road, as such the property is proposed to be a simple 

design with rendered walls and a grey slate roof tiles to blend 

into the appearance and form of the locality and accord to the 

character of the conservation area. 

7.12 Plot 2 is to be located to the rear of Plot 1 and to the east of the 

existing dwelling (Salix House) and is orientated to front 

southwards with the eastern side elevation alongside the 

driveway.  

7.13 Plot 3 would be located to the rear of the existing dwelling (Salix 

House) and positioned in a secluded position to the south of the 

stables. Both plot 2 and 3 would have a neutral impact upon the 

setting of the conservation and are therefore acceptable in this 

regard. 

7.14 In terms of access (in a conservation context), the site benefits 

from an existing vehicular access onto Hamerton Road that 

would be retained. The character of the street scene would 

therefore remain unaltered in this sense.  

Page 80 of 200



7.15 In regards to materials, plot 1 would comprise cream render 

walls, grey slate tiled roof and white timber double glazed 

windows. Plot 2 would comprise soft cream buff brick walls and 

natural stained timber weatherboard, soft red pantile roof and 

white timber double glazed windows and plot 3 would consist of 

cream monocouche render walls and natural stained timber 

weatherboard, soft red pantile roof and white timber double 

glazed windows. The pallet of materials is considered 

acceptable; however samples of materials would be secured via 

condition to ensure suitability. 

7.16 In Conservation terms, it is considered that the Salix House 

property does not make a favourable contribution to the quality of 

the Conservation Area, principally because the building is dated 

and sits in grounds with little landscaping or planting. This 

contrasts markedly with the surrounding properties which are 

well hedged and scattered with specimen trees and abundant 

garden planting. The frontage with Hamerton Road is weak, with 

interrupted hedging failing to sufficiently screen the main house 

in views from the road. It is considered that development of the 

site is likely to enhance the character and appearance of the 

Conservation Area through reinforcing the street frontage, 

screening the bulk of Salix House and by introducing additional 

planting and landscaping.   

7.17 Turning to urban design and landscaping impacts, HDC Urban 

Design and Landscape Officers have scrutinised the proposal 

and have no objection to the proposal subject to conditions. 

7.18 Policies LP11 and LP12 of the Local Plan to 2036 expect 

developments to be designed sympathetically and in keeping in 

their surroundings, in terms of the detailed design and the 

resultant curtilage size. It is considered that the proposal accords 

to these policies. 

Page 81 of 200



7.19 By virtue of the location of the 3 additional dwellings, it is 

considered to have no significant adverse impact upon the 

existing linear character of development upon Hamerton Road or 

cause any harm to the Conservation Area. Although the scheme 

would change the appearance of the site, this would result in an 

enhancement to this section of the street scene and is therefore 

considered to be acceptable subject to conditions (secure 

appropriate materials and landscaping), and provide an 

opportunity for more efficient use of land within the confines of 

the settlement. The proposal is considered to result in a minimal 

loss of openness given the nearby buildings and the existing 

situation on site. 

7.20 By virtue of the location of the proposal it is considered to have 

no significant adverse impact upon the existing character or 

appearance of the area and cause no harm to the setting of the 

conservation area. Although the scheme would change the 

appearance of the site, it is considered that the proposed 3 

dwellings and sensitive redevelopment results in a more 

comprehensive and coherent development that will enhance the 

immediate  locality and wider area in accordance with policies 

LP11, LP12 & LP34 of the Local Plan to 2036. 

7.21 It is considered necessary to add a materials condition and a 

landscape condition to ensure the proposed materials are 

appropriate to their surroundings and the boundaries are 

acceptable with sufficient hard and soft landscaping. 

Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity 
7.22 The NPPF and the Council’s planning policy LP14 of the Local 

Plan to 2036 seeks to protect amenity of neighbouring users. 

The policy also seeks to ensure residential amenity is not 

harmed as a result of development; the NPPF within the core 

principles states that planning should "always seek to secure 

Page 82 of 200



high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all 

existing and future occupants of land and buildings".  

7.23 The proposal has developed through a number of amendments 

and consultation with the HDC Urban Design officers to result in 

a proposal of only three dwellings that not only accords to the 

character and appearance of the conservation area, but is also 

considered to respect neighbouring residential amenity. The 

proposal is considered to be of a good design, scale, form and 

would appear considerably similar in scale when compared to 

neighbouring properties along Hamerton Road. 

7.24 In terms of its relationship with neighbouring properties, the 

dwellings will sit at depth into the site in a similar fashion to the 

neighbouring dwellings at Willow Farm Close and Spires End. In 

terms of boundary treatment, the majority will remain as existing. 

Landscaping, including boundary treatment will be secured via 

condition to ensure it accords to the appearance of the area and 

provides effective screening to retain private residential amenity 

of the neighbouring properties. 

7.25 A number of concerns have been raised from neighbouring units 

Willow Farm Close in regards to potential impacts upon their 

private residential amenity. It is confirmed that a full landscape 

scheme will be secured via condition, including details of 

boundary treatment in order to protect neighbouring residential 

amenity in terms of overlooking. 

7.26 The unit that is considered to have the greatest impact upon 

Willow Farm Close is plot 2, however this dwelling is orientated 

southwards with the principle windows facing towards Hamerton 

Road. The eastern elevation does contain two windows at first 

floor level, however these windows serve a bathroom and an en-

suite and would be obscure glazed eliminating any possible 

overlooking opportunities. Furthermore the back to back distance 

between plot 2 and Nos 2 and 3 Willow Farm Close is 

Page 83 of 200



considered acceptable and unlikely to cause unacceptable harm 

to their private amenity, especially considering the trees and 

boundary treatment along this section of the site.  

7.27 The relationship with the neighbouring properties is considered 

to be acceptable; furthermore given the scale and orientation of 

the proposal when viewed against the neighbouring properties, it 

is deemed that there will be no significant impact in regards to 

overlooking or overshadowing from the increase in dwellings. 

7.28 The car park adjacent to the stables is also highlighted as a 

potential impact to the amenity of 3 Willow Farm Close, however 

the parking area is already in place and the area of the site can 

be parked on by vehicles at present. It is unlikely that its 

formalisation will have a significant detrimental impact upon the 

amenity of 3 Willow Farm Close.  

7.29 In this sense it is unlikely that there will be any significant impact 

in regards to impacts upon the private residential amenity of the 

neighbouring dwellings to the east, west and internally on site. 

7.30 The proposed dwellings are considered to have acceptable 

levels of private amenity space in the form of a private front and 

rear gardens when viewed against the general character and 

form of the surrounding area. There is sufficient space on site for 

bin stores and cycle store areas and it is considered that the 

gardens are more than sufficient to enable usable rear amenity 

space. 

7.31 Details of hard and soft landscaping and finished floor levels will 

be secured via condition to help bolster and improve the existing 

levels of landscaping.  

7.32 Overall, it is considered that the development will not lead to a 

significant loss of amenity to the adjoining properties. The 

Page 84 of 200



proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy LP14 of 

the Local Plan to 2036. 

Highway Safety  
7.33 In terms of highway safety, access and parking, the development 

proposes to retain the existing access. Off street parking will be 

in the form of in excess of 2 spaces per unit plus a double 

garaging which accords to the councils size standards. 

7.34 The access will remain at a width of 6 metres for a depth of at 

least 12 metres which is deemed appropriate for the proposed 

development. It is considered that the site can be accessed 

safely. CCC Highways have been consulted on the proposal and 

offer no objection and no conditions are requested.  

7.35 There are no maximum or minimum parking standards that need 

to be applied to developments as per the requirements of the 

NPPF. It is shown on the submitted plans that adequate parking 

is provided on site in the form of in excess of 2 spaces per 

property including additional garage parking whilst having regard 

to the scale and nature of the proposed development. It is 

considered that there is sufficient parking space on the site to 

meet the requirements of policies LP16 & LP17 of the Local Plan 

to 2036. 

Ecology 
7.36 The accompanying preliminary ecological assessment by Skilled 

Ecology Consultancy Ltd has been analysed by the Wildlife Trust 

who considered the findings acceptable, and confirmed that the 

site is of limited ecological interest. The proposal will follow the 

mitigation measures set out in the ecological assessment and 

result in net gain in biodiversity …?. The recommendations, 

enhancements and precautionary measures should be carried 

out in full and secured via condition. 

Page 85 of 200



7.37 The proposal is therefore acceptable and complies with policy 

LP30 of the Local Plan to 2036. 

Flood Risk 
7.38 The majority of the developable application site is in Flood Zone 

1 as confirmed by the SFRA 2017, which means it has a low 

probability of flooding. It is deemed that there should be no 

significant additional surface water run-off impacts due to the 

lack of additional hardstanding. The Environment Agency have 

been consulted on the proposal and state that only standing 

advice should be followed and therefore they have no comments 

to make on the proposal.  

7.39 It is noted that part of the southern section is located within Flood 

Zone 2 due to the close proximity of the Alconbury Brook on the 

southern section of Hamerton Road; however no dwelling is 

proposed to be situated in this location.  

7.40 It was highlighted that there are flooding events upon Hamerton 

Road near the brook, however the site is located on higher land 

and set considerably back from the brook. 

7.41 In conclusion the proposed development involves the 

construction of 3 additional dwellings on the garden of Salix 

House with the site largely contained within Flood Zone 1. As a 

result the finished floor levels of the new dwellings will be 18.65m 

or above which is 740mm above the 1 in 100 year flood level and 

325mm above the 1 in 100 year flood level plus 65% climate 

change allowance. The proposal is therefore considered 

acceptable and complies with policies LP5 and LP15 of the Local 

Plan to 2036. 

Housing Mix – accessible and adaptable homes 
7.42 Policy LP25 of the Local Plan to 2036 provides guidance on 

accessible and adaptable homes and states that all proposals for 

housing should include a commitment either in the Planning 

Page 86 of 200



Statement or Design and Access Statement acknowledging their 

intention to design and build the whole proposed scheme to the 

M4(2) standards. 

7.43 The application does not include any information on how the 

proposal will be designed and built to building regulation M4(2) 

standards, however as this is a requirement a condition would be 

placed on any permission to require this standard to be met. 

Other Issues 
7.44 Development Obligations - Part H of the Developer Contributions 

SPD (2011) requires a payment towards refuse bins for new 

residential development.   

7.45 A Unilateral Undertaking will need to be submitted to meet the 

requirements of Policy CS10 of the Core Strategy 2009.  

7.46 There are no other material planning considerations which have 

a significant bearing on the determination of this application. 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL): 
7.47 The development will be CIL liable in accordance with the 

Council’s adopted charging schedule; CIL payments will cover 

footpaths and access, health, community facilities, libraries and 

lifelong learning and education. 

7.48 There are no other material planning considerations which have 

a significant bearing on the determination of this application. 

Conclusion 
7.49 In this instance the proposal is not considered to cause 

significant harm that would outweigh the economic, social and 

environmental benefits of the proposal, therefore given the 

current policy position, the proposed development is considered 

to be compliant with relevant national and local planning policy 

as: 

Page 87 of 200



• The principle of the development of this site for residential 
purposes is acceptable. 

• The proposal is acceptable in terms of flood risk. 
• The proposed development would have no significant 

adverse impact on the overall character of the area due to 
its scale, bulk and massing.  

• The proposal would satisfactorily safeguard the amenities 
of neighbouring dwellings.   

• There are no overriding highway safety issues. 
• The proposal would safeguard wildlife on site. 
• There are no other material planning considerations which 

have a significant bearing on the determination of this 
application. 

7.50 Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, 

and having taken all relevant material considerations into 

account, it is therefore recommended that planning permission 

should be granted. 

8. RECOMMENDATION – Approve subject to a satisfactory Bin 
UU received and conditions to include those listed below. 

• Time Limit 

• Approved Plans 

• Materials 

• Architectural details 

• Accessible and Adaptable homes M4(2) 

• Levels 

• Hard and soft landscaping including boundary treatments 

• Tree Plan 

• In accordance with Ecology Report 

• In accordance with Flood Risk Assessment 

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or 

an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to 

accommodate your needs. 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Enquiries about this report to Peter Baish Senior Development 
Management Officer 01480 388680 

Page 88 of 200



1

Huntingdonshire DC Public Access

From: Alison Benfield <parishclerk@alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk>

Sent: 24 October 2018 21:13

To: DevelopmentControl

Cc: Lindsay, Sheila (Plan. Serv.)

Subject: 18/01946/FUL - Alconbury Weston response

Alconbury Weston Parish Council make the following comments on 18/01946/FUL The erection of three dwellings. 50 
Hamerton Road Alconbury Weston Huntingdon PE28 4JD

Recommend refusal of the application on the following grounds:-
 Lack of information available both on the design and style of the proposed properties, including building 

materials and finished appearance to establish if they would be in keeping with the current built environment 

and street scene.

 Lack of details on the actual layout within the site for where residential parking will be, and how this will work 

with the new properties, existing property and the current business that is operating on the site.

 The location of the site is incorrectly marked on the flood map included at appendix 2 of the Planning 

Statement in support of the application

 Appendix 3 of the Planning Statement is not included in the online documents

 Suitable flood protection/mitigation measures should be stated and agreed prior to planning approval.

 Data quoted within the reports is 20 years old

 Within the Flood Risk Assessment, a recommendation is made to restrict post development discharge from 

the site into Alconbury Brook. These should be set higher than the bare minimum of mitigation measures due 

to the recent and ongoing risk of surface water runoff flooding caused to properties along Hamerton Road.

Kind regards

Alison Benfield BA(Hons) FSLCC
Parish Clerk
Alconbury Weston Parish Council
Turves Barn
Whitepost Road South
Eye
Peterborough
PE6 7SW
Tel: 01733 223002
www.alconburywestonparishcouncil.co.uk

Please note I work part time and so there may be a delay in my responding to both email and telephone calls.

The information in this message should be regarded as confidential and it is intended for the addressee only unless 
otherwise stated. If you received this message in error, please delete it and notify the sender. Any views expressed 
in this message are personal and not necessarily those of Alconbury Weston Parish Council, unless otherwise stated.

Page 89 of 200



33

38

1

21

Ford

Thorns

18.0m

SP
IRE

S E
ND

Cottage

72

The Spinney
5

FB

44

50

58

WILL
OW

 FA
RM

17.8m

2

70

78

Gate

5

HIGH STREET

Salix House

17.2m

74

14

76

Drain

CLOSE

HAMERTON ROAD
HIGH STREET

16.5m 1

Ford

12

15a

15

Grange
Farm

Thorns Farm

Ford

Path

Pump House

Application Ref:18/01946/FUL
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 

Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

1:1,250Scale = 
Date Created: 01/10/2019

Development Management Committee

Location:Alconbury Weston

Key
The Site

Conservation Area
Listed Building
2017 SFRA Flood_Zone_3b

2017 SFRA Flood_Zone_3a
2017 SFRA Flood_Zone_2

Page 90 of 200



P
age 91 of 200



P
age 92 of 200



P
age 93 of 200



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019 

Case No: 19/01476/S73  (Renewal of Consent/Vary Conditions) 

Proposal: Removal of condition 3 (deregister common land) for 

application 18/02381/FUL 

Location: Land South Of Bridge Place Car Park Bridge Place  

Godmanchester   

Applicant: HDC Estates Department (Mr Colin Luscombe) 

Grid Ref: 524397   271271 

Date of Registration:   20.08.2019 

Parish: Godmanchester 

RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE subject to conditions. 
This application is reported to the Development Management 
Committee in accordance with the current Scheme of Delegation 
as the Applicant is Huntingdonshire District Council.  

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION 

1.1 The site is an area of vacant land (common land) located in a 

Conservation Area and on land liable to flood (Flood Zone 3a as 

per the Councils Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 2017).  

1.2 The application site is part of a larger site allocation in the Local 

plan to 2036 (HU14 RGE Engineering, Godmanchester). The 

Allocation seeks to secure residential development (on part of 

the site that is not in flood zone 3a) and retention of part of the 

site as public car park.  The allocation HU14 suggests 

approximately 90 dwellings and recognises the need to re-

provide part of the site as a public car park. 

1.3 In May 2019 Members may recall granting planning permission 

under ref: 18/02381/FUL for the change of use of the land to a 

car park of 103 spaces including two disabled parking spaces 

and 10 motorcycle spaces. 

Page 95 of 200

Agenda Item 4c



1.4 This current application is to remove condition 3 (deregister 

common land) of 18/02381/FUL. 

1.5 Condition 3 of planning permission 18/02381/FUL states: “No 

development shall take place without the consent of the 

Secretary of State for the Department for Environment, Food and 

Rural Affairs to deregister the application land as Common 

Land”. 

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2019) sets out 

the three objectives - economic, social and environmental - of the 

planning system to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 

development. The NPPF 2018 at paragraph 10 provides as 

follows: 'So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive 

way, at the heart of the Framework is a presumption in favour of 

sustainable development (paragraph 11).'  

2.2 The NPPF 2019 sets out the Government's planning policies for 

(amongst other things):  
• delivering a sufficient supply of homes;  
• achieving well-designed places;  
• conserving and enhancing the natural environment;  
• conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

2.3 Planning Practice Guidance is also relevant and a material 

consideration. 

For full details visit the government website National Guidance 

3. PLANNING POLICIES 

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 
• LP5: Flood Risk 
• LP11: Design Context 
• LP12: Design Implementation 
• LP14: Amenity 
• LP32: Trees, woodland, hedges and hedgerow 
• LP35: Heritage Assets and their Settings 

Page 96 of 200

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government


 
3.2 Godmanchester Neighbourhood Plan 

Local For full details visit the government website Local policies 

4. PLANNING HISTORY 

4.1 18/02381/FUL – change of use of vacant land to car park. 

Permission granted 22.05.19. 

5. CONSULTATIONS 

5.1 Godmanchester Town Council (GTC) - do not approve (copy 

attached) GTC have stated concern regarding the ownership of 

the land. 

Officer response - the correct certificate (certificate B) of 

ownership was submitted with the application. The Applicant has 

also provided the necessary documents to evidence land 

ownership, as follows (quote): The Freemen do not have any title 

documents to the land upon which you hope to build the new car 

park. That does not mean they don’t have a title or do not own 

the land. Jeffrey Mills Solicitors has spent some time 

investigating title and considers that the Godmanchester 

common land was transferred to the Freemen of 

Godmanchester, their heirs and successors by the Crown. The 

first reference to this is in a Charter granted by King John in 1213 

and the Grant has continued through successive Royal Charters 

including that in 1604 by James I and by various Acts of 

Parliament thereafter including The Municipal Corporation Act 

1835 and subsequent Parliamentary Acts amending it. 

The Deed of Compromise dated 25 November 1974 

acknowledged that the Freemen and the Huntingdon District 

Council jointly owned the land and would jointly apply for the land 

to be registered as Commons under the Commons Registration 

Act 1965. It is clear therefore from this Deed of Compromise that 

Page 97 of 200

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/


the Freemen acknowledged that the Huntingdon District Council 

had an interest in the land. 

The Freeman disposed of parts of the land for the buttresses for 

the A14 and the Freemen deduced title by providing a statutory 

declaration. This was clearly sufficient for the land registry to 

prove the Freemen own the land (subject to the interest of 

Huntingdon District Council) because they gave the Highways 

England an absolute title when they registered their title to the 

A14 buttresses in 2015. 

The legal Title for the existing car park states HDC as proprietor. 

5.2 CCC Highways - no comment. 

5.3 CCC Archaeology (CCCA) - CCCA do not object. 

5.4 Environment Agency (EA) – no comment. 

5.5 CCC Rights of Way (ROW)- The ROW raise no objection to the 

removal of the condition as the land is already regulated by the 

Commons Act 2006. 

5.6 HDC Environmental Health (EH) – no comment. 

6. REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 There have been no third party representations received 

regarding this proposal. 

7. ASSESSMENT 

7.1 The main issues considered by Members on 20 May 2019 under 

planning reference 18/02381/FUL (attached as Green Papers) 

were: 

• Principle 
• Design and visual amenity / impact on conservation area 
• Trees 

Page 98 of 200



• Residential amenity  
• Parking provision/Highway safety 
• Flood risk.  

7.2 This application proposes the removal of condition 3 of 

18/02381/FUL to deregister common land. In this regard the only 

issue to consider is the necessity of the condition that was 

applied to the previous approval. 

Necessity of the condition 
7.3 At the time of application 18/02381/FUL, the report to the 

Development Management Committee (DMC) included the 

following consultation response “The County Council, as the 

Commons Registration Authority, seeks a condition to be added 

to the application which states the following: “No development 

shall take place without the consent of the Secretary of State for 

the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs to 

deregister the application land as Common Land”. 

7.4 In accordance with that consultation response, the 

recommendation to DMC included a recommended condition to 

“deregister the application land as Common Land”. The decision 

then included a condition (condition 3) which stated that “No 

development shall take place without the consent of the 

Secretary of State for the Department for Environment, Food and 

Rural Affairs to deregister the application land as Common 

Land.” 

7.5  It is now clear that it was not, and is not, HDC’s (as the 

Applicant) intention to deregister the land. Instead, it is proposed 

that an application will be made to the Secretary of State (under 

S38 of the Commons Act 2006) to construct a car park on the 

Common i.e. if approved it would remain as common land albeit 

with a car park on it. 

7.6 The reason that the Applicant has applied to remove the 

condition  rather than vary the wording is that planning 

Page 99 of 200



conditions should not duplicate consents required by other 

regimes, and therefore contend that as consent would be 

required under the Commons Act it is not necessary for this to be 

duplicated on a planning permission. 

Conclusion 
7.7 The proposed development is considered to be compliant with 

the relevant national and local policy as it: 

• is on land that forms part of an allocated site within the Local 
Plan to 2036 

• is for a change of use that will re-provide part of the allocated 
site as a car park. 

• does not require condition 3 to make the proposal acceptable in 
planning terms 

7.8 Taking national and local planning policies into account, and 

having regard for all relevant material considerations, it is 

recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to 

the imposition of appropriate conditions carried forward from the 

previous approval, except for the condition to deregister the 

common land. 

8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to 
conditions to include the following 

• time limit 

• approved plans 

• soft and hard landscaping pre-commencement to ensure it is 

included within the final scheme 

• lighting details 

• details of kedel fencing 

• details of pedestrian gates and vehicle barrier 

• archaeology condition 

• in accordance with mitigation measures proposed in the 

submitted Design and Access Statement (prepared by TPS Ltd 

and dated November 2018) 

• tree protection plan pre-commencement 

• Arboricultural method statement pre-commencement 

• cadent gas informative 

Page 100 of 200



• electricity charging points and recycling facilities 

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio 

version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate 

your needs. 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Enquiries about this report to Dallas Owen Senior Development 
Management Officer 01480 388468 

 

 

Page 101 of 200



1  

 

From: Town Clerk 
Sent: 23 September 2019 13:13 
To: Owen, Dallas (Planning Serv.) <Dallas.Owen@huntingdonshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: FW: Planning Permission Consultation - Land South Of Bridge Place Car Park Bridge Place Godmanchester 
(ref 19/01476/S73) 

 
Good afternoon Dallas, 

 
The Town Council met last Thursday and would like clarification on the ownership of the land. The application refers 
to the Freemen of Godmanchester being the owner/tenant could you confirm which they one they are? 

 
Kind regards, 

 
 

Vicky Pryce 
Town Clerk 
--------------------------------------------- 
The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the recipient 
and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution 
or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. 

 
This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived 

Page 102 of 200

mailto:Dallas.Owen@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


El Sub Sta
Tank

Westside

Rive
rsi

de 
Mill

Silos

22

Car Park

9

THE AVENUE

10.7m

8

2

1a
 to

 40
a

Drain

10.9m

BR
ID

GE
 PL

AC
E

BRIDGE PLACE

Ppg Sta

Common

2b

5

3 
to

 5

Coo
k's

 St
rea

m

ESS

ESSs

Tank

El Sub Sta

39
b

1b
to

Application Ref:19/01476/S73
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 

Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

1:1,250Scale = 
Date Created: 01/10/2019

Development Management Committee

Location:Godmanchester

Key
The Site

Conservation Area
Listed Building

Page 103 of 200



 

0m       10m       20m.       30m.    40m 

 

 
Site Location Plan 

 
Estates Department 

Proposed Car Park 
The Avenue 

Godmanchester 
PE29 2AF 

 
 
 

Drawing: 
TPS.17560.01 

Scale: 
1:1250@A4 

Date: 
October 2018 

OS License: 
100047474 

 

 

Town Planning Services 

The Exchange 
Colworth Park 

Sharnbrook 
Bedfordshire 

MK44 1LQ 

01234 924920 

www.townplanning.services 

N 

Application Site 
 
Other land in Applicant's Control 
 

Bridge Place Car Park 

RGE Engineering 

P
age 104 of 200



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019 

 

Case No: 18/00717/FUL  (Full Planning Application) 

Proposal: First floor domestic accommodation and erection of a 

conservatory to the rear 

Location: The Centurian Hall High Street  Somersham  Huntingdon 

Applicant: Mr Masood Sadique 

Grid Ref: 536240   277817 

Date of Registration:   27.04.2018 

Parish: Somersham 

RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSE 

This application has been referred to Development Management 
Committee as the Parish Councils recommendation of APPROVAL 
is contrary to the Local Planning Authorities recommendation of 
REFUSAL. 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION 

1.1 This application relates to the Centurian Hall, High Street, 

Somersham. The application site holds a large detached building 

use by the Royal British Legion Club for an entertainment venue, 

social club and takeaway. There is a large car park to the rear of 

the building and an existing access from the High Street. The site 

is located within the centre of Somersham Conservation Area 

and within close proximity to a number of listed buildings 

identified as No 44 and Nos. 59-61 High Street. 

1.2 The site forms part of the built up area of Somersham and is 

surrounded by residential development in all directions. The 

settlement of Somersham is classified as a Key Service Centre 

in the Local Plan to 2036 and as such Policy LP8 of the Local 

Plan is particularly relevant to this proposal. 

Page 105 of 200

Agenda Item 4d



1.3 In terms of flood risk, the 2017 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 

(SFRA 2017) identifies the site as being located within Flood 

Zone 1. Rationale for using the 2017 SFRA is outlined in the 

‘Flood Risk’ section below. 

1.4 Planning permission is sought for the addition of a first floor to 

the existing building and a further single storey conservatory to 

the rear. In terms of size the first floor extension would measure 

21.4 metres in width by 5.1 metres in depth. In regards to height 

the first floor extension would sit on top of the flat roofed single 

storey building and raise the height from 3 metres to 6.2 metres 

overall. The proposed conservatory would be located at the rear 

of the building and measure a total of 3 metres in height and at a 

width of 11.3 metres and a depth of 4 metres.  

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2019) sets out 

the three economic, social and environmental objectives of the 

planning system to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 

development. The NPPF confirms that ‘So sustainable 

development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 

Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development. The NPPF sets out the Government's planning 

policies for:  

• delivering a sufficient supply of homes;  

• achieving well-designed places;  

• conserving and enhancing the natural environment;  

• conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

2.2 Planning Practice Guide  

For full details visit the government website National Guidance 

3. PLANNING POLICIES 

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 

Page 106 of 200

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government


• LP2: Strategy for Development 
• LP4: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery 
• LP5: Flood Risk 
• LP6: Waste Water Management 
• LP8: Key Service Centres 
• LP11: Design Context  
• LP12: Design Implementation 
• LP14: Amenity 
• LP15: Surface Water 
• LP16: Sustainable Travel 
• LP17: Parking Provision and Vehicle Movement 
• LP25: Housing Mix 
• LP30: Biodiversity and Geodiversity  
• LP31: Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerows 
• LP34: Heritage Assets and their Settings  

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance 

• Huntingdonshire Design Guide (2017) 
• Developer Contributions SPD (2011) 

For full details visit the government website Local policies 

4. PLANNING HISTORY 

4.1 17/02397/FUL - First floor domestic accommodation - 

08.03.2018 

5. CONSULTATIONS 

5.1 Somersham Parish Council - Recommend Approval 

5.2 Environmental Health – No Objection 

5.3 CCC Highways – No objection - The existing access to the 

proposed new domestic accommodation is very poor in geometry 

and width, and if it were not already historically used as a car 

park, access would be most unsuitable, however given its current 

use it would be difficult to defend at appeal the movements 

produced by the proposed dwellings. It is noted that the applicant 

has indicated that the car park is underused at the present time, 

has any information been submitted to the planning authority 

indicating this as such? This would also help inform the LPA’s 

Page 107 of 200

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/


decision as to if the number of spaces is still adequate for both 

uses. 

Officer comment: The issues/questions raised are covered in the 

main body of the report. 

5.4 HDC Conservation - Objection 

6. REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 Fourteen representations have been received (some from the 

same address) stating the following: 

• Overlooking potential impact 

• Covenant on building stating no part can be lived in 

• No need for staff to live there 

• Ugly, obtrusive and out of keeping with the surrounding 

area 

• Access is dangerous 

• Parked cars and traffic along this section of the High 

Street 

• Despite the boundary treatment, views from neighbouring 

properties will be clear into the site and vice versa 

• Noise from the club is excessive and loud 

• Impact on conservation area and grade II listed buildings 

6.2 Five of the representations were in support of the application; 

however these were in the same handwriting on the same note 

paper. It is noted that these did have individual signatures. The 

letters in support stated: 

• Ample Parking 

• No concerns with traffic 

• Good access 

• Neighbouring buildings will not be affected 

• It will improve place and business 

• Good for local community 

Page 108 of 200



7. ASSESSMENT 

7.1 When determining planning applications it is necessary to 

establish what weight should be given to each plan’s policies in 

order to come to a decision. The following legislation, 

government policy and guidance outline how this should be 

done.  

7.2 As set out within the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 (Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 (Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the 

Local Planning Authority shall have regard to have provisions of 

the development plan, so far as material to the application, and 

to any other material considerations. This is reiterated within 

paragraph 47 of the NPPF (2019). The development plan is 

defined in Section 38(3)(b) of the 2004 Act as “the development 

plan documents (taken as a whole) that have been adopted or 

approved in that area”.  

7.3 In Huntingdonshire the Development Plan consists of: 

• Huntingdonshire’s Local Plan to 2036 (2019) 

• Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Minerals and Waste  

Development Plan Core Strategy (2011) 

• St Neots Neighbourhood Plan 2014-2029 

• Godmanchester Neighbourhood Plan (2017) 

• Houghton and Wyton Neighbourhood Plan (2018) 

• Huntingdon Neighbourhood Plan (2019) 

7.4 The statutory term ‘material considerations’ has been broadly 

construed to include any consideration relevant in the 

circumstances which bears on the use or development of the 

land: Cala Homes (South) Ltd v Secretary of State for 

Communities and Local Government & Anor [2011] EWHC 97 

(Admin); [2011] 1 P. & C.R. 22, per Lindblom J. Whilst accepting 

that the NPPF does not change the statutory status of the 

Development Plan, paragraph 2 confirms that it is a material 

Page 109 of 200



consideration and significant weight is given to this in 

determining applications.  

7.5 The main issues to consider are: 

• The principle of development 

• Impact upon the Character and Appearance of the 

Conservation Area and nearby listed buildings Impact 

upon residential amenity 

• Highways safety and access 

• Flooding 

The Principle of Development 
7.6 Somersham is defined as a 'Key Service Centre' in Policy LP8 of 

the Local Plan (2019). The policy states that development on a 

site which is additional to those allocated in the Local Plan will be 

supported where it is located within the built up area. 

7.7 The extents of the settlements' built-up areas are not defined on 

maps, but are to be judged on a site-by-site basis. 

7.8 The Local Plan defines the built up area as a distinct group of 

buildings that includes 30 or more homes. Land which relates 

more to the group of buildings rather than to the surrounding 

countryside is also considered to form part of the built-up area. 

The Local Plan goes on to state that the built up area includes 

“Individual plots and minor scale development opportunities 

which would provide infill and rounding off opportunities on land 

which is physically, functionally and visually related to existing 

buildings”. 

7.9 In this instance there is no disputing that the site is located firmly 

within the built up area of the settlement. The site is surrounded 

in all directions by residential land uses, therefore the proposal 

for residential development on the site purely from a land use 

perspective is considered appropriate and acceptable in 

principle. 

Page 110 of 200



Impact upon the Character and Appearance of the Conservation 
Area and nearby listed buildings  
7.10 The Centurian Hall is a detached building, used by the Royal 

British Legion Club for an entertainment venue, Social Club and 

Take-away. The Centurian Hall stands within a historically 

sensitive area, on the main street of the village, among a number 

of historic and Listed buildings and within the Conservation Area, 

not far from the main crossroads of the historic village centre and 

the Parish Church, and north of a Scheduled Monument, the site 

of the Bishop of Ely’s Palace (List entry No 1010475). 

7.11 Number 44 High Street is a Grade II Listed Building which stands 

adjacent to The Centurian Hall and to the south-east. It is 

described in the listing as an early 19th century two storey house 

of gault brick with hipped slate roof with various surviving 

decorative and historic features. It stands back from High Street 

and aligns with the rear car park of The Centurian Hall. 

7.12 Opposite The Centurian Hall, across High Street, stand The 

Grange, 65 High Street (Grade II Listed Building), a mid-18th 

century and early 19th century house of two storeys and attics of 

red brick with tiled roof and surviving historic features. 

7.13 Also opposite The Centurian Hall, across High Street, stands 59 

and 61 High Street (Grade II Listed Buildings), a pair of late 17th 

century cottages of Flemish bond gault brick and tiled roof. Also 

57 High Street (Grade II Listed Building) a mid 19th century 

house of gault brick and slate roof with mid-19th century shop 

front and entry. 

7.14 The Heritage Statement states that the building was constructed 

as a sheet clad, steel framed building in the early 20th century 

and describes it as having a history but provides no further 

details, although states that it was extended in the late 20th 

century. The Ordnance Survey map of 1887 shows the site 

location to be an open field from High Street southwards, running 

Page 111 of 200



alongside 44 High Street (Grade II Listed Building). The OS map 

of 1924 shows an L-shaped building at this location, of similar 

length and width as the existing, although without the triangular 

extension, marked as ‘Picture Theatre’ (records at 

Huntingdonshire DC). 

7.15 Centurian Hall is mostly a modern, flat roofed, large, brick 

building, sprawling to the rear. A 1920 OS map shows the 

Picture Theatre at this location, so it may have a core which is 

historic but that is not apparent from the existing building. It has a 

short brick frontage with mock traditional features with a pitched 

slate roof. This is built onto the main building which is of brick to 

the front and side but has corrugated metal sheeting roof and a 

corrugated metal gable end to the rear. Along the east side and 

rear (south) a large, triangular, brick, flat roofed single storey 

extension has been previously added. This eastern extension is 

of a standard modern brick construction in Stretcher Bond with a 

flat roof and standard modern doors and windows. It is of 

standard modern utilitarian design and quality and clearly 

intended for business or commercial use rather than domestic. A 

canopy with a glazed or uPVC roof supported on posts is 

attached to the rear elevation. 

7.16 The car park at the rear of Centurian Hall has a tarmac surface 

and a boundary of timber fencing on concrete posts and its 

eastern boundary runs alongside the rear garden and buildings 

of the Listed Building, No 44. The vehicular and pedestrian 

access from High Street to the car park runs alongside the east 

side of the Centurian Hall building and also has a timber fence 

on concrete posts running along this east boundary which 

adjoins the front garden of the Listed Building, No 44. 

7.17 In the Design and Access Statement the applicant states that 

there is no proposed increase in the area of the ground floor and 

the proposed extension is intended to be built on the existing 

Page 112 of 200



structure, described as a brick built single storey extension to 

main Club Room. The proposed drawing shows that a new 

ground floor conservatory extension at the rear of the building is 

also proposed. 

7.18 The proposed first floor has the appearance of a rectangular 

block, with a flat roof and straight rear and side elevations. A 

single narrow horizontal window is proposed to each side 

elevation, which is otherwise featureless, and a series of long 

windows to the rear elevation, the two central windows have the 

appearance of double doors. 

7.19 Full details of the proposed design and materials have not yet 

been submitted but references are made to a flat roof of modern 

synthetic or Bitumen System, and materials and proposed 

features to match the colour of the existing. Also proposed is a 

grey coloured cement based wood grain cladding material on the 

front and side of the first floor elevations. Details of proposed 

cladding illustrate that the cladding appears to be attached to a 

post or frame (full details of construction have not been 

submitted) and would give the new first floor the appearance of 

an edge to edge timber boarded structure. 

7.20 The proposed rear ground floor extension, has the appearance 

of a conservatory with a flat roof, and glazing to all elevations on 

a plinth, but no details of construction or materials have been 

submitted. 

7.21 Policies LP11 and LP12 of the Local Plan to 2036 expect 

developments to be designed sympathetically and in keeping in 

their surroundings, in terms of the detailed design and the 

resultant curtilage size. It is considered that the proposal does 

not accord to these policies due to the proposed design which is 

not in keeping with the character and appearance of the area. 

Page 113 of 200



7.22 The 1990 Act gives local planning authorities a general duty to 

preserve Listed Buildings and to preserve or enhance the 

character or appearance of Conservation Areas (s.66 Planning 

(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990). The 

National Planning Policy Framework 2019 states that Local 

planning authorities need to take account of the desirability of 

sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets 

(Para 192). The NPPF 2019 also states that great weight should 

be given to the conservation of a heritage asset (Para 193) and 

that any harm to or loss of significance should require clear and 

convincing justification (Para 194). The NPPF 2019 states that 

where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial 

harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this 

harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the 

proposal including securing its optimum viable use (Para 196). 

The NPPF 2019 requires that an applicant should describe the 

significance of any heritage assets affected, including any 

contribution made by their setting and that the detail should be 

sufficient to understand the potential impact of the proposal on 

their significance (Para 189). 

7.23 High Street, Somersham to the east and west from Centurian 

Hall contains mostly historic detached and terraced town houses 

dating from the early 19th century, and indeed earlier, and are of 

brick or render. Between the detached houses to the west, and 

along the east and west sides of Centurian Hall, there are views 

through to the back gardens, yards and rear buildings relating to 

the High Street. 

7.24 In particular, the Listed Building, No. 44, stands back from the 

road, adjacent to the Centurian Hall car park and with its large 

front garden alongside and east of the Centurian Hall building. 

The garden of No 44 has a low brick wall forming its front 

boundary and trees within it. The Listed Building is visible to 

travellers along High Street between the boundary trees, and is 

Page 114 of 200



viewed within its open front garden, laid to lawn. The Centurian 

Hall is also seen in views of this Listed Building from High Street, 

and the main Centurian Hall building and its eastern extension re 

in the foreground in views from the north and west  

7.25 Centurian Hall and its existing single storey extension are clearly 

visible to travellers along High Street, through the entranceway, 

across High Street from the Listed Buildings opposite (59-61 

High Street) and within views of the High Street from east and 

west. From the east it is seen within the setting of the Listed 

Building, No 44, and also those Listed Buildings opposite. 

7.26 The Centurian Hall is considered to be a negative element within 

the Conservation Area because of its scale, design and 

materials. It is also considered to have a negative impact on the 

settings of the Listed Buildings, No 44 and 59-61 High Street. 

7.27 This proposal will add a first floor to the existing building, 

increasing its scale, bulk and height. The proposed extension will 

be of a similar design to the existing utilitarian modern design of 

the existing eastern extension and so increase the negative 

impact of the existing building. The proposed materials are also 

of poor quality and appearance and are not sympathetic to the 

character of the historic buildings on High Street nor that of the 

adjacent Listed Building, No 44 or its front garden, nor those 

Listed Buildings opposite Centurian Hall on High Street. 

7.28 For those reasons the proposed new first floor extension is 

considered harmful to the Conservation Area, and the settings of 

identified Listed Buildings, No 44, and 59-61 High Street and 

therefore contrary to policies LP11, LP12 and LP34 of the Local 

Plan to 2036. Although that harm is considered to be less than 

substantial, the proposed extension is for the benefit of the users 

of the entertainment venue, Social Club and Take-away and 

there is no public benefit identified to outweigh the harm to these 

heritage assets. 

Page 115 of 200



7.29 The site plan indicates that an area of the existing car park is to 

be allocated for the location of wheelie bins, and the parking of 

cycles and mopeds. This area is adjacent to the Listed Building 

so this part of the proposal is also considered to have a harmful 

impact on the setting of the Listed Building, No 44 High Street. 

There is also insufficient information submitted to be able to 

assess the potential impact of the proposed single storey rear 

extension. 

7.30 It is therefore considered that the harm caused by the proposal 

to both the Conservation Area and the setting of the 

neighbouring listed buildings would be contrary to policies LP11, 

LP12 and LP34 of the Local Plan to 2036. 

Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity 
7.31 The NPPF and the Council’s planning policy LP14 of the Local 

Plan to 2036 seeks to protect amenity of neighbouring occupiers. 

The policy also seeks to ensure residential amenity is not 

harmed as a result of development; the NPPF within the core 

principles states that planning should "always seek to secure 

high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all 

existing and future occupants of land and buildings".  

7.32 In terms of its relationship with neighbouring properties, the 

proposal has raised some concerns and objections from 

neighbouring residents. Following amendments, the stairs to the 

flats will be internal and although there are a number of windows 

along the rear elevation of the first floor extension, due to 

separation distances (over 34 metres between the proposal and 

the closest dwelling at No.14 Crane Close to the south) and the 

relatively good level of boundary treatment in the form of trees 

and hedgerows, it is considered that there will not be any 

significant impact upon the private residential amenity of the 

neighbouring residential dwellings, and it is also considered that 

Page 116 of 200



the proposal will result in no significant overlooking or 

overbearing relationship with the neighbouring properties. 

7.33 Overall given the scale and orientation of the proposal when 

viewed against the neighbouring properties, it is deemed that 

there will be no significant impact in regards to overlooking or 

overshadowing. Details of hard and soft landscaping including 

boundary treatments could be secured via condition. It is 

considered that the development will not lead to a significant loss 

of amenity to the adjoining properties. The proposal is 

considered to be in accordance with Policy LP14 of the Local 

Plan to 2036. 

Highway Safety  
7.34 In terms of highway safety, access and parking, the proposal 

would utilise an existing access that is currently used for the 

development. 

7.35 Cambridgeshire County Council Highways have been consulted 

and offer no objection in terms of highways safety, however they 

do state that the existing access to the proposed new domestic 

accommodation is very poor in geometry and width, and if it were 

not already historically used as a car park access would be most 

unsuitable, however given its current use it would be difficult to 

defend at appeal the movements produced by the proposed 

dwellings.  

7.36 There are no maximum or minimum parking standards that need 

to be applied to developments as per the requirements of the 

NPPF. It is shown on the submitted plans that adequate parking 

and turning can be achieved on site, having regard to the scale 

and nature of the proposed development. It is considered that 

there is sufficient parking space on the site to meet the 

requirements of policies LP16 & LP17 of the Local Plan to 2036. 

Page 117 of 200



Flood Risk 
7.37 The application site is in Flood Zone 1 as confirmed by the SFRA 

2017, which means it has a low probability of flooding. It is 

deemed that there should be no additional surface water run-off 

impacts. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable and 

complies with policies LP5 and LP15 of the Local Plan to 2036. 

Housing Accessible and Adaptable Homes 
7.38 Policy LP25 of the Local Plan to 2036 provides guidance on 

accessible and adaptable homes and states that all proposals for 

housing should include a commitment either in the Planning 

Statement or Design and Access Statement acknowledging their 

intention to design and build the whole proposed scheme to the 

M4(2) standards. 

7.39 The application does not include any information on how the 

proposal will be designed and built to building regulation M4(2) 

standards, however as this is a requirement a condition would be 

placed on any permission to require this standard to be met, and 

preferably only when additional information has been submitted 

by the applicant confirming that the proposal will be designed 

and built to building regulation M4(2) standards. 

Other Issues 
7.40 Development Obligations - Part H of the Developer Contributions 

SPD (2011) requires a payment towards refuse bins for new 

residential development.   

7.41 A Unilateral Undertaking will need to be submitted to meet the 

requirements of Policy CS10 of the Core Strategy 2009.  

7.42 There are no other material planning considerations which have 

a significant bearing on the determination of this application. 

Page 118 of 200



Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL): 
7.43 The development will be CIL liable in accordance with the 

Council’s adopted charging schedule; CIL payments will cover 

footpaths and access, health, community facilities, libraries and 

lifelong learning and education. 

7.44 There are no other material planning considerations which have 

a significant bearing on the determination of this application. 

Conclusion 
7.45 The NPPF has at its heart the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development. To be sustainable, development must, 

as noted in paragraph 6 of the NPPF, strike a satisfactory 

balance between the economic, environmental and social 

considerations. 

7.46 The NPPF highlights that heritage assets are an irreplaceable 

resource and indicates that they should be conserved so that 

they can be enjoyed for the contribution to the quality of life of 

existing and future generations.  

7.47 The proposed new first floor extension is considered harmful to 

the Conservation Area, and the settings of identified Listed 

Buildings, No 44, and 59-61 High Street and therefore contrary to 

policies LP11, LP12 and LP34 of the Local Plan to 2036. 

Although that harm is considered to be less than substantial, the 

proposed extension is for the benefit of the users of the 

entertainment venue, Social Club and Take-away and there is no 

public benefit identified to outweigh the harm to these heritage 

assets. 

7.48 Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, 

and having taken all relevant material considerations into 

account, it is therefore recommended that planning permission 

should be refused. 

Page 119 of 200



8. RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSAL for the 
following reasons 

Reason 1: The proposal, by reason of its scale, bulk, appearance and 

height would result in harm to the special character and appearance of 

the Somersham Conservation Area and the settings of identified Listed 

Buildings, No 44, and 59-61 High Street. In accordance with paragraph 

193 of the NPPF great weight should be given to the conservation of 

Somersham Conservation area and the settings of the identified listed 

buildings in consideration of paragraph 196 the harm caused to the 

significance of these designated heritage assets is not outweighed by 

the proposed public benefits of the scheme. Accordingly the 

development fails to preserve the character or appearance of the 

Conservation Area and the setting of the identified listed buildings. The 

proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP11, LP12 and LP34 of the 

Local Plan to 2036. 

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or 

an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to 

accommodate your needs. 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Enquiries about this report to Peter Baish Senior Development 
Management Officer 01480 388680 

Page 120 of 200



1

Huntingdonshire DC Public Access

From: developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Sent: 17 May 2018 11:31

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 18/00717/FUL

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 11:30 AM on 17 May 2018 from Mrs Penelope Bryant.

Application Summary

Address:
The Centurian Hall High Street Somersham Huntingdon 
PE28 3EE 

Proposal:
First floor domestic accommodation and erection of a 
conservatory to the rear 

Case Officer: Peter Baish 

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Penelope Bryant

Email: clerk@somersham-pc.gov.uk

Address:
The Norwood Building, Parkhall Road, Somersham PE28 
3HE

Comments Details

Commenter 
Type:

Town or Parish Council

Stance:
Customer made comments in support of the Planning 
Application

Reasons for 
comment:

Comments: Councillors could see no reason to object to the 
proposals, the plans/designs look acceptable and the 
village has a shortage of this type of accommodation.

Page 121 of 200



1 to 5

7

6

378.4m
PL

AC
E

CR
AN

FIE
LD

28
23

15

7

1

5

42

44

2

8

Depot

46

4

39

55

2

7

11

El 
Su

b S
ta

32

WAY 14

1

STREET

HIGH

CL
OS

E
CR

AN
E

16
Sw

all
ow

s

1

52b

89

68a

3

2

8

7

1

1

21
22 11

1

15

70 66

60

13

30

Meml
War

HAMMOND

WHISTON CLOSE

PW

89

9

5 69b

46
a

Barns
Grange

4

1

End
Orchard

GrangeThe

BIS
HO

PS
 YA

RD

Mo
rto

ck

Midway

28

26

1110

71

1

3

69

65

63

61

57

34
36

44

46

73

83

48

67

65
69

8

1

32

StaEl Sub

HEREFORD CLOSE

81

4

2

Co
tta

ge
Pe

ac
h

56a

15

13

17 16
14

18

20

Application Ref:18/00717/FUL
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 

Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

1:1,250Scale = 
Date Created: 26/09/2019

Development Management Committee

Location:Somersham

Key
The Site

Conservation Area
Listed Building

Page 122 of 200



 

Richard Biddle 
Member of Chartered Institute of Builders 
 
Telephone & Fax: 
01480 493918    Mob:07801 688266 

 
Email: biddle945@btinternet.com  
 

 
Proposed alterations at 
The Centurian Club 
The Royal British Legion Trust Hall  
High Street,  
Somersham,  
Cambs PE28 3JB  
 
Location and Site Plans 
 
Scales: 1/1250, 1/250 
 
Sheet No: 1 
 
Date: 2 Apr 18 
 
 
 
 

     
   

 

 

A3 

 N 
Existing parking  
spaces shown               
hatched 

Parking dedicated 
for use by occupants 
of flats shown in pink 

Area shown in green to be 
dedicated for location of wheelie 
bins, together with cycle and 
moped racks. This area to be for 
sole use by occupiers of flats 

SITE PLAN   Scale 1/250 

LOCATION PLAN   Scale 1/1250 

 N 

Curtilage of No 44  

Curtilage of No 46 

P
age 123 of 200



P
age 124 of 200



P
age 125 of 200



P
age 126 of 200



 

Richard Biddle 
Member of Chartered Institute of Builders 
 
Telephone & Fax: 
01480 493918    Mob:07801 688266 

 
Email: biddle945@btinternet.com  
 

Proposed alterations at 
The Centurian Club 
The Royal British Legion Trust Hall  
High Street,  
Somersham,  
Cambs PE28 3JB  
 
Existing elevations 
 
Scale 1/100 
 
Sheet No: 7 
 
Date: 2 Apr 18 
 
 
THIS DRAWING NOT TO BE 
SCALED FOR CONSTRUCTION 
PURPOSES 

 

A3 

REAR ELEVATION 
PARTIAL SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION 

P
age 127 of 200



 

Richard Biddle 
Member of Chartered Institute of Builders 
 
Telephone & Fax: 
01480 493918    Mob:07801 688266 

 
Email: biddle945@btinternet.com  
 

 
Proposed alterations at 
The Centurian Club 
The Royal British Legion Trust Hall  
High Street,  
Somersham,  
Cambs PE28 3JB  
 
Existing ground floor plan 
 
Scale 1/100 
 
Sheet No: 2 
 
Date: 2 Apr 18 
 
THIS DRAWING NOT TO BE 
SCALED FOR CONSTRUCTION 
PURPOSES 

 

A3 

Bar Area 

Bar Area 

British 
Legion 
Hall 

Take Away 

Take Away 

Lobby 

Male 

Male 

Female 

Female 

Cellar 

Kitchen 

Bar 

GROUND FLOOR PLAN 

P
age 128 of 200



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019 

Case No: 19/01168/FUL  (Full Planning Application) 

Proposal: Amendments to water based activity centre allowed by 

appeal; including alterations to approved changing rooms, 

and construction of a storage building, viewing hut and 

control shed. 

Location: Lake Ashmore Gore Tree Road  Hemingford Grey   

Applicant: Liquid Skillz 

Grid Ref: 529764   269646 

Date of Registration:   14.06.2019 

Parish: Hemingford Grey 

RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE 

This application is referred to the Development Management 

Committee (DMC) in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation as 

Hemingford Grey Parish Council’s recommendation of refusal is 

contrary to the officer recommendation of approval and at the request of 

Cllr Dew, local member for Hemingford Grey and Houghton. 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION 

1.1 The site the subject of this application compromises of an access 

lane, land and a small part of a lake at Lake Ashmore, Gore Tree 

Road, Hemingford Grey, currently used by “Liquid Skillz” (the 

applicant).The site in question is located to the south east of the 

village of Hemingford Grey. The lake forms part of a County 

Wildlife Site (Marsh Lane Gravel Pits County Wildlife Site) and is 

thought to have been created by mineral extraction with trees 

Page 129 of 200

Agenda Item 4e



surrounding the lake. The Environment Agency flood zone map 

shows the site at a high probability of being flooded (flood zone 

3a), as does the Council’s Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. A 

gravel surfaced vehicle access leads to the lake from Gore Tree 

Road. 

1.2 Public Footpath 9 follows the route of this access before 

diverging and extending northwards along Long Lane and into 

the village. 

1.3 Retrospective planning permission is sought for a proposal 

described as “amendments to a water based activity centre 

allowed by appeal; including alterations to approved changing 

rooms and construction of a storage building viewing hut and 

control shed. This is in additional to an existing planning consent 

on the site, allowed at appeal for the installation of a 

wakeboarding cable and proposed changing rooms together with 

retention of car park and access track. 

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2019) sets out 

the three economic, social and environmental objectives of the 

planning system to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 

development. The NPPF confirms that ‘So sustainable 

development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 

Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development. The NPPF sets out the Government's planning 

policies for:  

• delivering a sufficient supply of homes;  
• achieving well-designed places;  
• conserving and enhancing the natural environment;  
• conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

3. PLANNING POLICIES 

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 – adopted May 2019 

• LP1: Amount of Development  

Page 130 of 200



• LP2: Strategy for Development 

• LP4: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery 

• LP5: Flood Risk 

• LP6: Waste Water Management 

• LP9: Small Settlements 

• LP10 The Countryside 

• LP11: Design Context 

• LP12: Design Implementation 

• LP14: Amenity 

• LP15: Surface Water 

• LP16: Sustainable Travel 

• LP17: Parking Provision and vehicle movement 

• LP23: Tourism and Recreation 

• LP30: Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

• LP31: Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerow. 

• LP34: Heritage Assets and their Settings 

3.2 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and Guidance: 

• Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD (2017) 
• Huntingdonshire Townscape and Landscape Assessment 

SPD 2007 
• Developer Contributions SPD 2011 
• Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2017 
• Huntingdonshire Tree Guidance Note 3 
• December 2017 Annual Monitoring Review regarding 

housing land supply.  

For full details visit the government website National Guidance 

4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

4.1 1201122FUL - Change of use of land for camping and 

caravanning, erection of boat house and two holiday chalets and 

erection of zip wire for water skiing – Refused, Appeal 

Dismissed. 

Page 131 of 200

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government


4.2 1300002FUL - Installation of wakeboarding cable and proposed 

changing rooms together with retention of car park and access 

track. – Refused, Appeal Allowed 

4.3 1400719FUL - Retention of access to lake – Approved 

4.4 18/80055/COND - Condition information for 1300002FUL - C5 

(make and model of rescue boat), C6 (scheme of landscaping 

works), C8 (ecological management plan), C9 (flood contingency 

plan) – Part Approved 

5. CONSULTATIONS 

5.1 Hemingford Grey Parish Council (PC) – Object, comments 

summarised below: 

• The PC wishes to emphasise the importance of submitting 

planning applications in advance of development taking 

place.  

• The buildings on site represent a larger area than that 

allowed by appeal, and does not feel that this is justified.  

• The appearance of the buildings is not in keeping with the 

semi-rural nature of the area and they are publicly visible  

• The Parish Council asks that a condition be imposed that 

the porta cabins are clad in a material more appropriate to 

a semi-rural environment and porta cabins should not be 

set on top of another. 

• The Parish Council also wishes to ask Huntingdonshire 

District Council to clarify permitted development rights. 

5.2 Cambridgeshire County Council Local Highway Authority – No 

Objections, comments summarised below: 

• Please append all highways conditions from appeal 

number APP/H0520/W/15/3132500 to any granted 

consent. 

Page 132 of 200



5.3 Cambridgeshire County Council Definitive Map team – No 

Objections, comments summarised below: 

• The applicant should be aware of the presence of the 

public footpath, its legal alignment and width which may 

differ from what is available on the ground. 

• The footpath must remain open and unobstructed at all 

times. Building materials must not be stored on Public 

Rights of Way and contractors’ vehicles must not be 

parked on it. 

• A number of informatives were requested. 

5.4 Environment Agency – No Objection, comments summarised 

within the report below 

5.5 HDC Landscape officer – No objection – Recommend 

landscaping condition 

5.6 HDC Environmental Health – No comments received 

5.7 Wildlife Trust – No comments received 

5.8 HDC Sports and Development Officer, In looking at the changing 

room designs they do not look to comply with Sport England 

guidance:  

• There is no screening on the door entrance - so people 

can see straight in.  

• One single toilet does not seem adequate 

• Is there the need for showers?  

• There is no accessible / disabled toilet or changing 

facilities?  

Officer Comment: Following the submission of amended plans, 

the sports and development officer was re-consulted, however 

no further comments have been received. 

Page 133 of 200



6. REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 11 representations have been received with 10 objections and 1 

in support, these comments are summarised below: 

• Concern about the nature and size of the development 

• Not a small scale enterprise there is now a cafe/restaurant 

on site advertised as “OPEN TO ALL”  

• What impact will this have on the pubs, shop, small cafes 

and restaurants already existing in both the Hemingfords. 

• Recognise that water sports people may well enjoy the 

facilities but as the venture expands the influence on the 

rest of the village will not be beneficial. 

• Disappointed the works have been carried out 

retrospectively 

• A colour brochure from Liquid Skillz itemising the wide-

ranging activities being offered to the pubic:- Wake-

Boarding, Inflatable Rides, Stand Up Paddle Boarding, 

Open Water Swimming, Beach Area, Restaurant facilities, 

jet skis have also been used 

• Other than Wake-Boarding, none of these activities were 

acceptable under the Inspector's clear Conditions. 

• A smart brick building on the site with a tiled roof 

purporting to be a "hay barn" that everyone can see will 

eventually be made into the main reception building 

approved under the agricultural application as Permitted 

Development (1301970AGDET). 

• The owners are pushing the boundaries of the 

development and are growing the site "by stealth" (e.g. 

applying for retrospective planning permission), without 

regard for local residents. 

• On Appeal APP/H0520/W/15/3132500, permission was 

granted “in accordance with the terms of the application” 

but subject to conditions. The Inspector was satisfied that 

limited use of the zip wire (one person at a time) would 

allow the development to be viewed as a “leisure 

Page 134 of 200



development” rather than a “visitor facility”. Such 

proposed limited use meant that it was not necessary to 

show a need or demand for the facility or that it would be 

financially viable. 

• The developer does appreciate the requirements of NPPF 

paragraph 28. The proposal is much more like their 

original 2012 proposal (1201122FUL) which had been 

refused by HDC and at appeal. 

• More vehicles are using the access track, often throwing 

up large clouds of dust and inconveniencing walkers on 

the adjacent designated public footpath. 

• The developer claims on his/her website that “we work 

closely with British Waterski and Wakeboard (BWSW) and 

all our staff are fully trained and qualified. All the team 

have valid firs aid licences and have been CRB checked.” 

In fact, British Waterski and Wakeboard (the national 

governing body for this activity) have confirmed that there 

is no such accreditation in relation to this site or its 

operators. It is even more worrying that requests by 

BWSW to the operators of this site to undertake 

appropriate training and certification have been 

consistently ignored. 

• Lake Ashmore is a real asset to the village and area. It 

provides much needed space and amenities to children 

and families to use the lake recreationally in a safe, well 

run, well-kept environment.  

7. ASSESSMENT 

7.1 As set out in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

(Section 38(6)) and the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

(Section 70(2)) in dealing with planning applications the Local 

Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 

development plan, so far as material to the application, and to 

any other material considerations. This position is repeated in the 

NPPF. The development plan is defined in Section 28(3)(b) of 

Page 135 of 200



the 2004 Act as “the development plan documents (taken as a 

whole) that have been adopted or approved in that area” – See 

Planning Policy section above). 

7.2 The report addresses the principal, important and controversial 

issues which are in this case: 

• Principle of development  

• Impact on the character of the area 

• Residential Amenity 

• Flood Risk  

• Access and Transport 

• Ecology 

Principle of development  
7.3 The site is located outside of the Small Settlement of Hemingford 

Grey and within the open countryside as classified in Policy LP10 

of the Local Plan to 2036 which states that development within 

the countryside will be restricted to the limited and sporadic 

opportunities as provided for in other policies of the plan. 

Amongst other requirements, development must protect the 

intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside and not give rise 

to noise, odour, obtrusive light or other impacts that would 

adversely affect the use and enjoyment of the countryside by 

others. 

7.4 Policy LP23 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036: states a 

proposal for a new or expanded tourism, sport or leisure use 

within the countryside will be supported where it is:  

• Well related to a defined settlement unless there are 

robust operational or sustainability reasons why it needs 

to be located elsewhere 

• Does not cause harm to, and where appropriate enhances 

ecological, landscape and heritage significance of the 

proposed location 

Page 136 of 200



• The impact of the scale, character and location of the 

development on both its immediate surroundings and 

wider landscape are minimised  

• Adequate servicing can be provided including water 

supply, electricity and for sewage and waste disposal 

• It would not have an adverse impact on a designated 

wildlife site through increased visitor pressure. 

7.5 The retrospective proposal is for additional facilities to the 

already established Liquid Skillz which has planning permission 

(allowed on appeal - appeal reference 

APP/H0520/W15/3132500) for the installation of a wakeboarding 

cable and proposed changing rooms together with retention of 

car park and access track. The principle of recreation on the site 

has already been established. The proposed amendments 

include alterations and improvements to the changing rooms and 

portakbin, construction of a small storage building, viewing hut 

and control sheds. The proposal does not include any increase in 

the proposed water sports. 

7.6 Within the recent appeal the Inspector clarified the appeal 

proposal was leisure development. Paragraph 28 of the then 

2012 NPPF supports rural leisure developments that benefit 

businesses, communities and visitors and respect the 

countryside. This is consistent in Paragraph 83 of the current 

2019 NPPF and with the adopted local plan policy LP23 

discussed above. The Inspector in his report highlighted that the 

site would constitute a leisure development rather than a visitor 

facility referring to the Oxford dictionary which defines a ‘visitor’ 

as someone who is visiting a place or person. It does not invoke 

the same sense of physical activity as leisure. A visitor attraction 

would be something that primarily facilitates a person to stay or 

enjoy a particular area such as a hotel, museum or park. A 

wakeboarding facility is unlikely to attract people who are not 

Page 137 of 200



users of the facility, or family/friends of users of the facility, or 

have no interest in wakeboarding.   

7.7 A number of representations have commented that leaflets have 

been distributed advertising a number of activities which have 

not been authorised on the site, including other sporting activities 

and a café which has been referred to as “open to all”. Whilst 

officers appreciate the frustrations particularly with unauthorised 

works or activities, officers can only take into account what has 

been specifically applied for as part of the current application. 

There is no mention of a café as part of the proposal. If a café is 

on site and open to the wider general public then the applicant 

may have to submit a separate planning application and/or be 

subject to enforcement action. A number of representations have 

commented on the fact the applicant has applied for the 

application retrospectively and has shown disrespect towards the 

planning process and permission should not be granted. 

However, regardless of whether an application is retrospective or 

not, an LPA has to assess the proposal put in front of them, and 

such a proposal will be judged on its own planning merits. If a 

retrospective application was to be refused and a subsequent 

appeal dismissed, the applicant would be subject to enforcement 

action from the Council. 

7.8 The current proposal for a small number of buildings and 

amendments to the previously approved portakabin is fairly 

minor scale development and considered to be ancillary to the 

development allowed at appeal. Therefore it is considered to be 

in accordance with Policy LP23 of the Huntingdonshire Local 

Plan to 2036, and the relevant parts of the NPPF as identified 

above. In land use terms, there is also not considered to be a 

material change of use compared to what was allowed on 

appeal.  

Page 138 of 200



7.9 Reference has also been made with regards to the approved 

plans of the appeal reference APP/H0520/W/15/3132500, 

specifically condition 2 of the appeal decision. Whilst 

representations are correct that the current proposal is not in 

accordance with the approved plans of the appeal, the applicant 

has the right to apply for additional development via planning 

permission. 

Impact on the character of the area 
7.10 As stated in the previous report for planning application ref 

1300002FUL, the proposal “could probably have been 

ameliorated by the imposition of conditions”. The same 

conclusion applies now to this proposal. The application site 

forms a transition between the edge of the settlement of 

Hemingford Grey to the north and the A14 to the south. There 

are trees around the margins of the existing lake and beyond and 

an agricultural hay barn adjacent to the car park. 

7.11 The Council’s sports development officer initially commented on 

the layout of the portakbin which would host changing rooms, 

stating they should be in accordance with Sports England’s 

changing room guidance as stated in the consultations section 

above. Following the submission of amended plans, although the 

Council’s sports and development officer was reconsulted and 

did not make any further comment, officers are happy the floor 

plans are now in accordance with the Sport England  guidance 

discussed above. 

7.12 In terms of the buildings i.e. the larger portakabin, the storage 

building, control shed and viewing hut, they are all of modest size 

and scale, single storey in height and are not considered to 

significantly adversely impact the openness of the countryside or 

rural character of the area. It is considered that visually, the 

proposed porta cabin would benefit from a change of 

appearance from the existing blue to a more rural finish and 

Page 139 of 200



neutral colour (such as dark green or black) which would provide 

a more sympathetic finish in the countryside.  

7.13 The developer has agreed to the change in materials for the 

portakabin and this could be secured by condition. The Council’s 

landscaping officer has no objections to the proposal from a 

visual amenity point of view however did recommend a 

landscaping condition. It is considered reasonable and 

necessary to add this to the decision notice should the 

application be approved.  

7.14 No changes are proposed to the existing access or car park and 

following the comments made by the inspector in the previous 

appeal (ref APP/H0520/W15/3132500) an external lighting 

condition was not deemed necessary, therefore a condition is not 

recommended on the current application. 

7.15 Subject to the above condition, the proposal is therefore 

considered to accord with the NPPF and policies LP11, LP12 

and LP23 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036. 

Residential Amenity 
7.16 The previous application (ref 1300002FUL and appeal decision 

APP/H0520/W/15/3132500) discuss the issue of noise generated 

from the application site at length. The officer report for 

application ref 130002FUL states that noise impacts could 

probably be ameliorated by the imposition of conditions. Whilst 

the Council’s Environmental Health officer has not commented 

on the current application, they have confirmed on previous 

applications that the operation of the electrical motor to propel 

the zip wire would not cause unacceptable harm to neighbour 

amenity and they are satisfied that conditions previously imposed 

on the appeal scheme have made the development acceptable 

in noise terms.  The appeal permission remains valid and the 

operators of the site have a responsibility to comply with those 

Page 140 of 200



conditions, as well as the conditions recommended here (should 

planning permission be granted). 

7.17 The area does not have any formal status in relation to 

tranquillity, paragraph 180 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework 2019 states that decisions should avoid noise giving 

rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life as 

a result of new development. When the inspector visited the site 

at the previous appeal, consideration was given to the 

background noise generated from the A14 approximately 400 

metres away from part of the site, and it was considered that the 

noise generated from the recreational activities on the lake and 

the activates on the site itself would not have an unacceptable 

impact on the nearest residential property Mulberry Cottage over 

100m away from the site or any other residential property. 

7.18 It is not considered that the ancillary buildings and their 

associated uses forming part of the current retrospective 

application, would alter previous conclusions with regards to 

impacts of residential amenity on the site. The proposal would 

not generate any significant overlooking, overbearing or loss of 

light impacts. 

7.19 Within the appeal APP/H0520/W/15/3132500 a number of 

conditions were added with regards to limiting the proposed 

wakeboarding and recreational use and also prohibited external 

broadcasting of music. Although this proposal is a retrospective 

application about amendments and new buildings only, it is 

considered necessary to re-apply these conditions or ensure 

they are carried out with already approved details, given this is a 

new planning permission for different ancillary buildings 

compared to the appeal scheme. 

7.20 The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the NPPF, 

and policy LP14 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 

Proposed Submission 2017. 

Page 141 of 200



Flood Risk 
7.21 The application site forms part of flood zone 3a and is liable to 

flood. The land has a 1 in 100 years or greater annual probability 

of river flooding; or a 1 in 200 years or greater annual probability 

of sea flooding. The National Planning Policy Framework states 

under Paragraph 155 that inappropriate development in areas at 

risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development away 

from areas at highest risk (whether existing or future). Where 

development is necessary in such areas, the development 

should be made safe for its lifetime without increasing flood risk 

elsewhere.  

7.22 Paragraph 156 of the NPPF states that the Strategic Flood Risk 

Assessment (SFRA) will provide the basis for applying the 

sequential test and the SFRA 2017 follows the guidance in the 

Government’s Planning Policy Guidance.  Existing raised 

defences, which the SFRA specifically does not take account of, 

provide some protection to existing properties in this area. The 

presence of flood defences is not considered to be reason to 

approve an application. Flood defences are only as good as their 

weakest link and the NPPF requires developments to be safe for 

their lifetime, which in the case of housing should be considered 

to be a minimum of 100 years according to the Government’s 

Planning Policy Guidance. Whilst defences may reduce the 

likelihood of an area flooding, it can increase the consequences 

of flooding because the rapid onset of flooding with little or no 

warning can result if a breach does occur.  Areas that benefit 

from flood defences are still in an area of higher flood risk as 

there is a residual risk that the flood defence could fail.      

7.23 Paragraph 158 of the NPPF aims to steer development to land 

with the lowest risk of flooding using the sequential test. 

Developments in Flood Zones 3 will not be permitted unless it is 

not possible, consistent with wider sustainability objectives, for 

the development to be located in zones with a lower probability 

Page 142 of 200



of flooding. This applies to defended as well as undefended 

areas within Flood Zones 2 and 3. 

7.24 Paragraph 160 of the NPPF states the exception test should be 

informed by a strategic or site-specific flood risk assessment, 

depending on whether it is being applied during plan production 

or at the application stage. For the exception test to be passed it 

should be demonstrated that:  

a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to 

the community that outweigh the flood risk; and  

b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of 

the vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk 

elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood risk overall.  

7.25 The application is for further ancillary development to an existing 

site within Flood Zone 3a as designated by the Councils 2017 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment. Given the recreation nature of 

Liquid Skillz and the existing wakeboarding activity, it would 

therefore be unreasonable for the Council to expect the applicant 

to find alternative sites within the district which has limited other 

opportunities for water based recreation, therefore the sequential 

and exception tests will be based on the application site itself. It 

should also be noted that the proposed development is for 

ancillary buildings in support of a water compatible land use, and 

for water based recreation. In principle in terms of flood risk, 

development is therefore considered appropriate.  

7.26 A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted and the 

Environment Agency has no objection on flood risk grounds. 

They commented that the proposal should be subject to the 

sequential test, but this has been addressed above. In terms of 

the exception test, the uses of the respective buildings can be 

classes as ‘less vulnerable’ in a flood risk context, as such site 

would be safe in terms of flooding. In terms of sustainability, the 

Page 143 of 200



site provides a unique opportunity locally for water based 

recreation for local people to both have fun learn new skills. 

7.27 The proposal would be considered to be in accordance with the 

NPPF and Policy LP5 of the Huntingdonshire District Council 

Local Plan to 2036. 

Access and Transport 
7.28 The Cambridgeshire County Council Local Highway Authority 

has no objections to the application. The previous proposal was 

refused and then later allowed though the appeal process. With 

the additions that the applicant is proposing it is unlikely that it 

will result in any significant increase to the daily traffic 

movements to and from the site. However the Local Highway 

Authority did recommend that conditions were added from the 

appeal ref APP/H0520/W/15/3132500 with regards to the 

access. This is considered reasonable.  

7.29 The County Council’s Definitive Mapping team has no objections 

to the proposal with regards to the impact on the adjacent public 

right of way and consider the proposal would not have a 

significant adverse impact. However they did recommend a 

number of informatives which are considered reasonable and will 

be added to the decision notice. 

7.30 The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the NPPF, 

policies LP16 and LP17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 

2036. 

Ecology 
7.31 The application site is within Marsh Lane Gravel Pits County 

Wildlife Site (CWS) and therefore in line with local and national 

planning policy, it is important that the potential impacts on the 

CWS are adequately assessed and mitigated and that proposed 

management and enhancements are appropriate to the CWS. 

Page 144 of 200



The Wildlife Trust has made no comments on the current 

proposal. 

7.32 However, in the recent appeal APP/H0520/W/15/3132500, the 

inspector made reference to the ecology and the fact 

wakeboarding use would be confined to a relatively small 

proportion of the lake. He was mindful that private water skiing 

already takes place albeit infrequently. An ecological survey was 

submitted with the previous planning application 130002FUL and 

the Wildlife Trust was satisfied that ecological assets can be 

safeguarded through the use of a planning condition. That 

condition was applied to the appeal decision. 

7.33 Given this retrospective application is for small ancillary 

buildings, the County Wildlife Site mainly covers the lake itself 

rather the land to the West where the buildings are sited. Given 

the fact the Wildlife Trust have not objected to the proposal, 

there is no evidence before officers to suggest there would be an 

adverse impact on ecology. The condition on the previous appeal 

decision for an ecological management plan was discharged as 

part of 18/80055/COND. The current proposal should be carried 

out in accordance with those details. The proposal is therefore 

considered to be in accordance with Policy LP30 of the 

Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036. 

Other Matters 
7.34 The Parish Council requested information on the site’s permitted 

development rights. Given the non-residential nature of the site, 

permitted development rights are more restricted.   

7.35 A comment has also been made on whether the development 

and use of the applications site is accredited by the British 

Waterski and Wakeboard (BWSW).  This is covered under 

separate legislation and therefore not a material planning 

consideration. 

Page 145 of 200



7.36 A comment was made about the existing agricultural barn 

approved previously under application ref 1301970AGDET. 

However the agent has confirmed this barn is not being 

materially altered within the current application.  

Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations 
7.37 The Infrastructure Business Plan 2013/2014 (2013) was 

developed by the Growth and Infrastructure Group of the 

Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership. It helps to identify 

the infrastructure needs arising from the development proposed 

to 2036 through the Core Strategy 

7.38 Statutory tests set out in the Community Infrastructure 

Regulations 2010 (Regulation 122) require that S106 planning 

obligations must be: 

• Necessary to make the development acceptable in 

planning terms; 

• Directly related to the development; and 

• Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 

development 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL): 
7.39 As this planning application is for a minor development, the 

development may be CIL liable in accordance with the Council's 

adopted charging schedule; CIL payments will cover footpaths 

and access, health, community facilities, libraries and lifelong 

learning and education.  

Conclusion and Planning Balance 
7.40 The NPPF has at its heart the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development. To be sustainable, development must, 

as noted in paragraph 6 of the NPPF, strike a satisfactory 

balance between the economic, environmental and social 

considerations.  

Page 146 of 200



7.41 In terms of the economic dimension of sustainable development, 

the proposal would contribute towards economic growth, by 

providing paid and volunteer jobs and importantly will assist 

jobseekers in preparing for work and finding employment in a 

similar field, it will have multiplier or knock on effect in 

employment terms. It will also contribute to the Councils 

Business rate revenue stream. 

7.42 In terms of the environmental dimension of sustainable 

development, and having regard to the appeal decision and a 

previously discharged condition, the proposal is considered to 

preserve and enhance biodiversity and not adversely impact the 

rural character of the area. 

7.43 In terms of the social dimension, the site offers an outdoor 

recreation facility that has the potential to improve health and 

well-being. 

7.44 The proposed development is considered to be compliant with 

relevant national and local planning policy as it:  

• Is an appropriate expansion of a recreational activity 

• Is acceptable in terms of highway safety 

• It would not have a significant detrimental impact on the 

amenity of neighbours. 

• Acceptable in terms of Flood Risk 

• Acceptable in terms of ecology and biodiversity 

• There are no other material planning considerations which 

lead to the conclusion that the proposal is unacceptable. 

7.45 Taking national and local planning policies into account, and 

having regard for all relevant material considerations, it is 

recommended that planning permission be granted, subject to 

the imposition of appropriate conditions. 

Page 147 of 200



8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to 
conditions to include the following 

• Approved Plans 

• Materials of Portakabin 

• Landscaping 

• No broadcasting of music 

• Wakeboarding limitations 

• Rescue boat details 

• Access details 

• FRA compliance 

• Ecology management plan compliance 

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or 

an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to 

accommodate your needs. 

CONTACT OFFICER: 

Enquiries about this report to William Tysterman, Senior 
Development Management Officer 01480 388411 

Page 148 of 200



From: Doug Dew (Cllr) <Doug.Dew@huntingdonshiredc.org.uk>  
Sent: 07 July 2019 23:00 
To: Jaarsma, Jacob (Planning) <Jacob.Jaarsma@huntingdonshire.gov.uk>; Keane, David (Cllr) 
<David.Keane@huntingdonshire.gov.uk> 
Subject: Fwd: Lake Ashmore - Planning Application 19/01168/FUL 
 
Hello Jacob, 
 
Please may I request that this application be considered before DMC. 
 
This site is of great local interest and with the perceived flouting of the planning laws it would be 
best if the decisions were seen to be made in a public forum . 
 
Please confirm. 
 
Regards as always,  
 
Doug  
 
Douglas Dew 
District Councillor for Hemingford Grey, Houghton and Wyton and Wyton on the Hill 
Huntingdonshire District Council 
 

Page 149 of 200

mailto:Doug.Dew@huntingdonshiredc.org.uk
mailto:Jacob.Jaarsma@huntingdonshire.gov.uk
mailto:David.Keane@huntingdonshire.gov.uk


1

From: developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Sent: 10 July 2019 10:20

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 19/01168/FUL

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 10:20 AM on 10 Jul 2019 from Mrs Gail Stoehr.

Application Summary

Address: Lake Ashmore Gore Tree Road Hemingford Grey 

Proposal:

Amendments to water based activity centre allowed by 
appeal; including alterations to approved changing 
rooms, and construction of a storage building, viewing 
hut and control shed. 

Case Officer: Will Tysterman 

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Gail Stoehr

Email: katie@lgs-services.co.uk

Address:
30 West Drive, Highfields Caldecote, Caldecote, 
Cambridgeshire CB23 7NY

Comments Details

Commenter 
Type:

Town or Parish Council

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Reasons for 
comment:

Comments: The PC wishes to emphasise the importance of 
submitting planning applications in advance of 
development taking place. Hemingford Grey Parish 
Council recommends refusal on the grounds that the 
buildings on site represent a much larger area than that 
allowed by the Appeals Inspector, and does not feel that 
this is justified. The appearance of the buildings is not in 
keeping with the semi-rural nature of the area and they 
are visible from the public footpath. If Huntingdonshire 
District Council is minded to approve the application, the 
Parish Council asks that a condition be imposed that the 
portacabins are clad in a material more appropriate to a 
semi-rural environment and that a condition also be set 
that a portacabin should not be set on top of another 
portacabin. The Parish Council also wishes to ask 
Huntingdonshire District Council to clarify permitted 
development rights in relation to this development.

Page 150 of 200



Mulberry

Foxes Close Farm

Cottage

Gallop

Tra
ck

Cottage

Gore Tree

GO
RE

TR
EE

 R
OA

D

Dr
ain

Dr
ain

SilosDr
ain

25

LO
NG

 LA
NE

 (T
RA

CK
)

Application Ref:19/01168/FUL
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 

Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

1:2,500Scale = 
Date Created: 01/10/2019

Development Management Committee

Location:Hemingford Grey

Key
The Site

Conservation Area
Listed Building

Page 151 of 200



Water Activity Centre  
Lake Ashmore, Gore Tree Road,
Hemingford Grey

Liquid Skillz

Location Plan

CWM

22/05/19 11/45/CR4

Suite 2, Clare Hall
St Ives Business Park
Parsons Green
St Ives
Cambs  PE27 4WY

C

Tel:    01480 494969
email: enquiries@planningandarchitecture.co.uk

PARTNERS 
in PLANNING
and ARCHITECTURE

1:2500 @ A1

P
age 152 of 200

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
DWG. No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
REVISION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
COPYRIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
120



N

Water Activity Centre 
Lake Ashmore, Gore Tree Road,
Hemingford Grey

Liquid Skillz

Block Plan

CWM

22/05/19 11/45/CR3

Suite 2, Clare Hall
St Ives Business Park
Parsons Green
St Ives
Cambs  PE27 4WY

C

Tel:    01480 494969
email: enquiries@planningandarchitecture.co.uk

PARTNERS 
in PLANNING
and ARCHITECTURE

W

a

k

e

b

o

a

r

d

 

C

a

b

l

e

 

(

A

p

p

r

o

v

e

d

 

b

y

 

A

p

p

e

a

l

A

P

P

/

H

0

5

2

0

/

W

/

1

5

/

3

1

3

2

5

0

0

)

1:500 @ A1

A

p

p

r

o

v

e

d

 

A

c

c

e

s

s

 

R

o

a

d

Gravel Access Track

Existing

Barn

Gravel

Car Park

Proposed Changing

Rooms and Toilets

Timber

Decking

Proposed

Storage

Building

Proposed

Viewing

Hut

Proposed

Control

Shed

Lake

2

5

.

9

9

4

3

9

.

6

3

4

1

4

.

6

6

7

2

5

.

5

0

9

1

0

9

.

8

9

6

1

2

.

4

7

3

6

.

2

7

9

3

.

6

8

8

P
age 153 of 200

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
DWG. No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
REVISION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
COPYRIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
15



P
age 154 of 200



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019 

Case No: 19/01300/OUT  (OUTLINE APPLICATION) 

Proposal: ERECTION OF THREE DWELLINGS WITH GARAGING 

(ONE DETACHED AND TWO SEMI-DETACHED) 

(ACCESS MATTERS ONLY) 

Location: LAND SOUTH OF 75 HERNE ROAD  RAMSEY ST 

MARYS   

Applicant: LEGRANT BUILDING SERVICES 

Grid Ref: 525556   287814 

Date of Registration:   24.06.2019 

Parish: RAMSEY 

RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSE 

This application is referred to the Development Management 
Committee as the proposed development represents a departure 
from the Development Plan and Ramsey Town council has an 
opposing view to that of the planning officer. 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION 

1.1 The application site is agricultural land to the south of 75 Herne 

Road, Ramsey St Marys. Herne Road is characterised by 

dwellings sited in a linear pattern, sometimes with sporadic gaps 

in between. The site is also located within Flood Zone 3 of the 

Environment Agency's Flood Mapping, Flood Zone 3 of 

Huntingdonshire District Council's Strategic Flood Risk 

Assessment Maps (2017) but in flood zone 2 of the 2010 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment Mapping for the Middle-level 

Commissioners Areas.  

1.2 The site would be accessed via Herne Road and the proposed 

development would be sited in line with the existing development 

Page 155 of 200

Agenda Item 4f



within the area. There is a hedge along the front boundary of the 

site and a footpath.  

1.3 Outline permission is sought for three dwellings, with access 

being considered at this stage. Appearance, scale, layout and 

landscaping will be dealt with at Reserved Matters stage. The 

application is accompanied by a flood risk assessment (FRA).  

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE 

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF 2019) sets out 

the three economic, social and environmental objectives of the 

planning system to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 

development. The NPPF confirms that 'So sustainable 

development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 

Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development. The NPPF sets out the Government's planning 

policies for:  

• delivering a sufficient supply of homes;  

• achieving well-designed places;  

• conserving and enhancing the natural environment;  

• conserving and enhancing the historic environment. 

2.3 Planning Practice Guidance is also relevant and a material 

consideration. 

For full details visit the government website National Guidance 

3. PLANNING POLICIES 

3.1 Huntingdonshire's Local Plan to 2036 (2019) 

• LP1: Amount of Development  
• LP2: Strategy for Development 
• LP4: Contributing to Infrastructure Delivery 
• LP5: Flood Risk 
• LP6: Waste Water Management 
• LP9: Small Settlements 
• LP10: The Countryside 
• LP11: Design Context 

Page 156 of 200

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-communities-and-local-government


• LP12: Design Implementation 
• LP14: Amenity 
• LP15: Surface Water 
• LP16: Sustainable Travel 
• LP17: Parking Provision and vehicle movement 
• LP31: Trees, Woodland, Hedges and Hedgerow. 
• LP34: Heritage Assets and their Settings 

3.2 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and Guidance: 

• Huntingdonshire Design Guide SPD (2017) 
• Huntingdonshire Townscape and Landscape Assessment 

SPD 2007 
• Developer Contributions SPD 2011 
• Cambridgeshire Flood and Water SPD 2017 
• December 2018 Annual Monitoring Review regarding 

housing land supply.  

For full details visit the government website Local policies 

4. RELEVANTPLANNING HISTORY 

4.1 19/00050/OUT - erection of three dwellings. Withdrawn. 

4.2 1301961OUT - planning permission refused for the erection of 11 

dwellings, and subsequently dismissed on appeal 

4.3 1300263OUT - planning permission refused for the erection of 11 

dwellings 

5. CONSULTATIONS 

5.1 Ramsey Town Council - Recommend Approval (COPY 

ATTACHED) unanimously approved for the following reasons: 

• no impact on neighbour amenity 

• sufficient car parking 

• development in keeping with the area 

5.2 CCC Local Highway Authority (LHA): No objection and 

recommended the following conditions  

• Permitted Development rights removed for gates 

• visibility splays 

Page 157 of 200

https://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/


• vehicle access gradients 

• access width, parking and turning areas,  

• access construction and drainage  

Officer response: the conditions are considered to be reasonable 

5.3 Environment Agency - No objection on flood risk grounds, 

development should be subject to the sequential test and the 

Internal Drainage Board (IDB) should be consulted with regard to 

flood risk associated with watercourses under their jurisdiction 

and surface water drainage proposals. 

5.4 IDB / Middle Level Commissioners - no comments received 

5.5 Cadent Gas Ltd - do not object to the proposal 

5.6 HDC Environmental Health (EH) - as it is for access matters only, 

EH do not have any comments to make 

6. REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 There has been one third party representation received objecting 

on the following grounds: 

• drainage 
• more housing will impact on wildlife 
• loss of views 

Officer response: the application is in outline considering access 

only, and therefore detailed drainage matters are not for 

consideration at this stage. Loss of views is not a material 

planning consideration. Wildlife impacts are discussed in the 

main body of the report. 

7. ASSESSMENT 

7.1 This report assesses the following principal, important and 

controversial issues: 

Page 158 of 200



• Principle of development  

• Flood Risk 

• Impact on the character of the area 

• Residential Amenity 

• Access and Transport 

• Trees and Landscaping  

• Contamination 

• Infrastructure requirements and Planning Obligations 

Principle of development  
7.2 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (Section 

38(6)) identifies that planning applications should be determined 

in accordance with the Development Plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. This is reiterated within the 

NPPF 2019. Under section 70(2) of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 when dealing with planning applications, the 

Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of 

the development plan, so far as material to the application, and 

to any other material considerations. 

7.3 The development plan is defined in Section 28(3)(b) of the 2004 

Act as "the development plan documents (taken as a whole) that 

have been adopted or approved in that area". 

7.4 The application site is located outside the built up area of 

Ramsey St Marys. The site is located directly to the south of No 

75 and can therefore considered to be well related to the built up 

area, albeit clearly outside the built up area. Policy LP2 supports 

limited growth and new market dwellings within the built up areas 

of small settlements. Policy LP9 identifies Ramsey St Marys as a 

Small Settlement. Policy LP9 identifies that "A proposal for 

development on land well-related to the built-up area may be 

supported where it accords with the specific opportunities 

allowed for through other policies of this plan". 

Page 159 of 200



7.5 Paragraph 4.107 of the supporting text of LP9 identifies that 

"Proposals for development of land well-related to the built-up 

area will be considered subject to the provisions of policies 'The 

Countryside', 'Rural Economy', 'Local Services and Community 

Facilities', 'Tourism and Recreation', 'Rural Exceptions Housing', 

'Rural Buildings' and 'Water Related Development'". 

Taking each of the above in turn: Water Related Development (LP38) 

7.6 Paragraph 8.76 of the supporting text of LP40 identifies 

development proposals which may fall under the definition of 

Water Related Development. The proposed development for 3 

residential units is not considered to represent Water Related 

Development. 

 Rural Buildings (LP33) 

7.7 The proposed development for 3 residential units does not 

involve the conversion of a building in the countryside.  

 Rural Exceptions Housing (LP28) 

7.8 For a proposal to be considered under LP30, a minimum of 60% 

of the site area should provide for affordable housing for people 

with a local connection. 3 Market dwellings are proposed. 

7.9 The proposal would not be required to provide affordable 

housing. As such, the proposed cannot be considered under the 

provisions of policy LP28.  

Tourism and Recreation (LP23) 

7.10 The proposed development for 3 residential units does not 

involve a new or expanded tourism, sport or leisure use in the 

countryside. 

Page 160 of 200



Local Services and Community Facilities (LP22) 

7.11 Paragraph 6.45 of the supporting text of LP22 identifies 

development proposals which may fall under the definition of 

Local Services and Community Facilities. The proposed 

development 3 residential units is not considered to represent a 

Local Service/Community Facility.  

7.12 The proposed development for 3 residential units does not 

involve new business development, the expansion of an existing 

business or farm diversification.  

The Countryside (LP10) 

7.13 Policy LP10 states that development in the countryside will be 

restricted to the limited and specific opportunities as provided for 

in other policies of the plan; and all development in the 

countryside must seek to use lower agricultural value land 

avoiding irreversible loss where possible and avoiding Grade 1 

agricultural land unless there are exceptional circumstances 

where the benefits outweigh the loss; and recognise the instrinsic 

character and not give rise to adverse impacts.  …  The proposal 

for 3 market dwellings on this site outside the built up area and in 

the countryside is therefore a departure from the development 

plan, and has been advertised as such.  

Principle of Development - Summary 
7.14 The proposal represents a departure from the development plan 

as there is an identified conflict with Policies LP2, LP9 and LP10 

of the Local Plan, for the reasons set out above. The proposed 

development is therefore not acceptable in principle.  

Flood Risk: 
7.15 The site is within the Environment Agency's Flood Zone 3 and 

Flood Zone 3a in the Council's 2017 Strategic Flood Risk 

Assessment (SFRA). The National Planning Policy Framework 

Page 161 of 200



states that the SFRA will provide the basis for applying the 

sequential test and the SFRA 2017 follows the guidance in the 

Government's Planning Policy Guidance.  Existing raised 

defences, which the SFRA specifically does not take account of, 

provide some protection to existing properties in this area. 

7.16 In September 2017 the Huntingdonshire District Council 

Development Management Planning Committee agreed the 

following:  

7.17 Some villages, including some of the Ramsey villages, are 

entirely within Zone 3 in the 2017 SFRA. New development 

within settlements, including market housing, can in some cases 

help enhance or maintain the vitality of a rural community and 

this is a key objective of the Council's Planning Strategies and 

the NPPF. Therefore, for those villages which are entirely within 

Flood Zone 3 as defined in the 2017 SFRA only, the 2010 SFRA 

which took account of flood defences will be used as the basis 

for decision making, and general market housing will only be 

permitted in areas shown as being in Flood Zone 1 as defined in 

that document. This approach follows discussions with the 

Environment Agency and the Middle Level Commissioners and 

will ensure that regard is still given to flood risk but will also allow 

some development to be approved in these villages to maintain 

their vitality. For villages that are not entirely within Zone 3 in the 

2017 SFRA, the application of the Flood Zones in 2017 will allow 

some development to be approved in these villages to maintain 

their vitality whilst also having regard to the most recent 

information on flood risk. 

7.18 As the entire village of Ramsey St Marys is within flood zone 3, 

as stated above, the 2010 SFRA will be used. The Council's 

2010 SFRA maps shows a section of the site is within Flood 

Zone 2, and a section is within Flood Zone 3, with the north and 

east boundaries of the proposed site within the SFRA 2010 

Page 162 of 200



Flood Zone 1. Due to the small scale nature of the site and the 

character of the land (flat) it is not inconceivable that if part of the 

site were to flood, the rest of the site would be affected. 

Therefore the Council maintain its position the site is within Flood 

Zone 3a.  

7.19 The Environment Agency has no objection to the development 

on Flood Risk grounds (subject to the LPA carrying out the 

sequential test). The site is within the proximity of watercourses 

under the jurisdiction of the Internal Drainage Board, and no 

comments have been received from the IDB in respect of 

flooding and surface water drainage proposals. 

7.20 The Council, through its recently adopted Local Plan, has 

demonstrated that they can meet their objectively assessed 

housing need on sites with a lower risk (i.e flood zone 1). The 

proposed development therefore fails the Sequential Test as set 

out in the NPPF (as the District's housing need can be met by 

developments in areas at lower risk of flooding). It is therefore 

not necessary to do the Exception Test.  

7.21 The proposed development is therefore contrary to policy LP5 of 

the Local Plan to 2036; and NPPF paragraphs 155-164 which 

seek to steer new development to areas with the lowest 

probability of flooding.   

Impact on the character of the area 
7.22 Ramsey St Marys is characterised by predominantly linear 

development, with rows of housing fronting both sides of Herne 

Road which is typical of many settlements in the area. 

Immediately to the South and West of the site is open 

countryside. Immediately to the north of the site there is ribbon 

development on the west side of Herne Road with more sporadic 

residential development on the east side of Herne Road. 

Page 163 of 200



7.23 Herne Road comprises an intermittent mix of ribbon 

development, which becomes more irregular further south along 

Herne Road, travelling away from the centre of the village. The 

site is an undeveloped open field, which contributes to the open 

countryside and the irregular character of Herne Road. Whilst the 

submitted scheme is for a smaller number of units (3 compared 

to 11 previously proposed), it is still considered to result in built 

development into the countryside. As already stated above, the 

principle of development is therefore not supported. 

7.24 The application is in outline form with access to be considered at 

this stage, so details of appearance, scale, layout and 

landscaping have not been submitted at outline stage. A 

preliminary sketch proposal has been submitted with the 

application that provides a sketch layout and elevations of the 

proposed dwellings. Whilst the proposed dwellings would follow 

the existing linear pattern, the proposal will still result in new 

development in open countryside, which will be harmful to the 

the open character of the area.  The proposal is therefore 

contrary to policies LP9, LP10, LP11 and LP12 of the 

Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036. 

Residential Amenity 
7.25 Relevant part of the NPPF and the Council's planning policy 

LP14 of the Local Plan to 2036 seeks to protect the amenity of 

neighbouring properties. The policy also seeks to ensure 

residential amenity is not harmed as a result of development; the 

NPPF, within its core principles states that planning should 

"always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard 

of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and 

buildings".  

7.26 It is considered that the submitted drawings demonstrate that the 

site could accommodate the amount of development proposed 

without having an adverse impact on residential amenity through 

Page 164 of 200



overlooking, overbearing or loss of light. The dwellings would be 

on the same building line with other properties so any impacts 

would be no greater than the existing relationship between 

properties on Herne Road. 

7.27 The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the NPPF, 

policy LP14 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036. 

Access and Transport 
7.28 Paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework sets 

the test that "development should only be prevented or refused 

on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts of 

the development would be severe". 

7.29 The main issue is whether there would be any severe adverse 

effects on highway safety and traffic flow arising from the 

proposed development of up to 3 homes.  In determining 

whether the development would have severe residual cumulative 

impacts, Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC) has been 

consulted. The Local Highway Authority has no objections to the 

application, but would require details of visibility splays that could 

be conditioned if members are minded to approve the application 

contrary to officer recommendation. 

7.30  The proposal is therefore considered to accord with the NPPF, 

and policies LP16 and LP17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 

2036. 

Biodiversity and trees / hedgerow 
7.31 The site is bounded to Herne Road by a mature hedge which 

includes several trees. There is no arboricultural survey or 

ecological survey to indicate that the development would not 

result in harm to protected species or habitats or other 

associated matters. As such the applicant has failed to 

demonstrate that the proposal will not have a harmful effect on 

trees and ecology. As such it is contrary to policies LP30 and 

Page 165 of 200



Lp31 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 which requires 

all potential adverse impacts on biodiversity and geodiversity to 

have been investigated. 

Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations 
7.32 The Infrastructure Business Plan 2013/2014 (2013) was 

developed by the Growth and Infrastructure Group of the 

Huntingdonshire Local Strategic Partnership. It helps to identify 

the infrastructure needs arising from the development proposed 

to 2036 through the Core Strategy 

7.33 Statutory tests set out in the Community Infrastructure 

Regulations 2010 (Regulation 122) require that S106 planning 

obligations must be: 

• Necessary to make the development acceptable in 

planning terms; 

• Directly related to the development; and 

• Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 

development 

7.34 The application is accompanied by a satisfactory completed 

unilateral undertaking for the provision of wheeled bins in 

accordance with the Developer Contributions SPD (2011). 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL): 
7.35 As this planning application is for a minor development, the 

development will be CIL liable in accordance with the Council's 

adopted charging schedule; CIL payments will cover footpaths 

and access, health, community facilities, libraries and lifelong 

learning and education.  

Conclusion and Planning Balance 
7.36 The NPPF has at its heart the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development. To be sustainable, development must, 

as noted in paragraph 6 of the NPPF, strike a satisfactory 

Page 166 of 200



balance between the economic, environmental and social 

considerations.  

7.37 In terms of the economic dimension of sustainable development, 

the proposal would very modestly contribute towards economic 

growth, including job creation - during the construction phase 

and in the longer term through the additional population assisting 

the local economy through spending on local services/facilities. 

There will also be Council Tax receipts arising from the 

development. The loss of this relatively small parcel of 

agricultural land is outweighed by the modest positive economic 

benefits of this development, in this location.  

7.38 Regarding the social dimension, the site itself appears to have 

no significant physical constraints and is deliverable. It would 

also marginally increase the supply of housing, although the 

Council can demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing 

land, the provision of three market dwellings on the application 

site is afforded very limited weight. The proposal would be within 

cycling distance of the limited facilities of Ramsey St Marys 

including the primary school, post office and a public house. 

However given the lack of other viable sustainable transport 

options, future residents would be reliant on increased private 

car use to access further facilities. The lack of visibility splay 

evidence to ensure the proposal would have an adverse impact 

on highway safety and also weighs against the proposal.  

7.39 In terms of the environmental dimension of sustainable 

development, there is environmental harm on the rural character 

of the area due to part of the site encroaching into the 

countryside. The visual impact of the proposal would intensify the 

sporadic nature and openness within the countryside. As a 

result, the development would have an adverse impact on the 

rural character of the area.   

Page 167 of 200



7.40 Having assessed all three dimensions of sustainable 

development; economic, environmental and social within this 

report it is concluded that the proposal is considered to result in 

environmental harm, and the applicant has failed to demonstrate 

that safe and adequate vehicular, cycle and pedestrian access 

can be achieved. There is only a minor benefit of one unit of 

market accommodation. However, section 38(6) of the Planning 

and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning 

applications be determined in accordance with the development 

plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

7.41 The scheme would therefore conflict with the NPPF which states 

that it does not change the statutory status of the development 

plan as the starting point for decision making. Officers consider 

that the creation of an additional dwelling here would not accord 

with the above mentioned policies of the up-to-date 

Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036, and, as outlined in the 

preceding sections of this report, there are no other material 

considerations which would provide an overriding reason to 

disregard the development plan.  Accordingly, it is recommended 

that planning permission should be refused for the following 

reasons: 

8. RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSAL for the 
following reasons 

Reason 1: The proposal lies in Flood Zone 2 and 3 in 

Huntingdonshire District Council's Strategic Flood Risk 

Assessment (2010) and Flood Zone 3 in the Environment 

Agency Flood Maps for Planning. The aim of national and local 

planning policy is to steer development away from areas at 

highest risk of flooding in the first instance. Further, the national 

Planning Practice Guidance recognises new residential dwelling 

houses as being more vulnerable development and inappropriate 

in flood Zone 3 areas unless the sequential and exception tests 

are passed.  This proposal would result in non-essential 

Page 168 of 200



development in an area at high risk of flooding and therefore fails 

to pass the sequential and exception tests, and as such is 

contrary to Paragraph 155 - 164 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework (2019), policies LP2 and LP5 of Huntingdonshire's 

Local Plan to 2036 and the Cambridgeshire Flood and Water 

SPD (2017). 

Reason 2: The proposed residential development would 

represent an encroachment of built development in the 

countryside outside the built up area of Ramsey St Marys in an 

unsustainable location. The proposal does not meet any of the 

other specific opportunities identified with in the Huntingdonshire 

Local plan to 2036 and the proposal would therefore be contrary 

to the NPPF 2019, and Polies LP2, LP9 and LP10 of the 

Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036. 

Reason 3: The proposed residential dwelling would intensify the 

existing sporadic and ribbon residential development within the 

countryside outside the village of Ramsey St Marys. This would 

have a harmful impact on the rural character and sporadic nature 

of development in the vicinity. The proposal is therefore 

considered to be contrary with policies LP9, LP10, LP11 and 

LP12 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036. 

Reason 4: No Arboricultural Survey and Impact Assessment to 

BS5837:2012 or ecological information has been provided to 

accompany the application. Therefore the applicant has failed to 

provide an assessment of the impacts on protected habitats and 

species. The proposal would therefore cause significant and 

demonstrable harm to biodiversity and trees which would be 

contrary to Paragraph 170 of the NPPF, policies LP30 and LP31 

of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan to 2036 (Adopted May 2019). 

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or 

an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to 

accommodate your needs. 

Page 169 of 200



CONTACT OFFICER: 

Enquiries about this report to Dallas Owen Senior Development 
Management Officer 01480 388468 

Page 170 of 200



1

From: developmentcontrol@huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Sent: 12 July 2019 10:50

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 19/01300/OUT

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided below.

Comments were submitted at 10:49 AM on 12 Jul 2019 from Mr Gary Cook.

Application Summary

Address: Land South Of 75 Herne Road Ramsey St Marys 

Proposal:
Erection of three dwellings with garaging (one detached 
and two semi-detached) (access matters only) 

Case Officer: Dallas Owen 

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mr Gary Cook

Email: gcook@ramseytowncouncil.org.uk

Address: 7A Church Green, Ramsey, Huntingdon PE26 1DW

Comments Details

Commenter 
Type:

Town or Parish Council

Stance:
Customer made comments in support of the Planning 
Application

Reasons for 
comment:

Comments: Unanimously approved, no impact on neighbouring 
amenity. Sufficient car parking provision has been 
made. No harm caused by proposed development which 
is in keeping with the character of the area.

Page 171 of 200



4

97

B 660

Drain

8

-0.2m

0.3m

Dr
ain

83

17

CLOSE

Drain

4

HE
RN

E R
OA

D

0.3m

35

Dr
ain

45

1

86

11

Dr
ain

84

75

0.1m

ESTELLE

19

0.1m

Middle Moor

37

Drain

7

Dr
ain

Application Ref:19/01300/OUT
© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 

Ordnance Survey HDC 100022322

1:1,944Scale = 
Date Created: 30/09/2019

Development Management Committee

Location:Ramsey

Key
The Site
Conservation Area

Listed Building

SFRA - Flooding Extents
Flood Extents (produced by Mott MacDonald)

1 in 20 Yr Flood Extent (Functional Floodplain)
1 in 100 Yr Flood Extent
1 in 100 Yr Flood Extent (with climate change allowance)

1 in 100 Yr Extent (derived from eng. judgement)
Other Forms Of Flooding

Page 172 of 200



P
age 173 of 200



T
his page is intentionally left blank



DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE  14 October 2019 

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL’S SCHEME OF 
DELEGATION (SoD)  

(Report by the Planning Service Manager – Development 
Management) 

1. BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

1.1 As a result of the Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) 

restructure and as part of a wider review of the delegations to 

specific posts, updates and changes to the Scheme of 

Delegation are necessary.  In addition, as part of the wider 

review it is proposed that further changes to the Scheme as 

listed below be approved. In summary, the further changes 

include:  

• To delegate final decisions to officers on all applications 

outside conservation areas and proposing up to 9 dwellings 

within the built up area of market towns, up to 5 dwellings 

within the built up area of key service centres, and up to 3 

dwellings within the built up area of small settlements, 

unless called in by the Ward Councillor and within the 

stipulated time, and provided the request is accompanied 

by material planning reasons relating to planning matters 

(see Appendix 1) 

• To delegate final decisions to officers on all Departures 

from the local plan associated with the A14 Improvement 

Scheme where there are no objections from anyone or any 

statutory body (including town or parish councils or statutory 

consultees) 

• Under (d) page 5 of Appendix 1, include the words ‘relevant 

to the matter(s) under consideration’ – see remarks section 

adjacent (on page 5 of Appendix 1) for clarity. 

Page 175 of 200

Agenda Item 5



• Extend delegated authority on matters (n), (x), (y) and (z) to 

the HDC Arboricultural Officer 

          and Appendix 1 also provides updates and clarity on: 

• Those officers who have authority to determine that it is not 

expedient to take planning enforcement action; 

• That when making and confirming immediate Article 4 

Directions consultation takes place with the Chairman or 

Vice-Chairman of the Development Management 

Committee, rather than both; 

• The job titles of the relevant officers that decisions are 

delegated to and in the context of the forthcoming changes 

in the Council’s SLT structure  

1.2 Appendix 1 shows the currently approved Scheme of Delegation 

with the proposed changes shown as ‘tracked changes’ (all 

underlined).  An update in relation to the changes required in 

relation to the current references to ‘Legal Services Manager’ – 

references highlighted in yellow in Appendix 1 (this will not be 

obvious on a printed version of the agenda as the council only 

print in black ink) – will be provided prior to or at the meeting.  

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the Committee approves the Scheme of Delegation as set 

out in Appendix 1. 

Contact Officer – enquiries about this report to Jacob Jaarsma, 
Planning Services Manager (Development Management) 01480 
388402 

 

Page 176 of 200



1 
 

POWERS DELEGATED BY OR ON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
The Town and Country 
Planning (Permission in 
Principle) (Amendment) Order 
2017 
 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
 
 
Planning (Listed Building & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 

Applications for Permission in Principle: 
 
To delegate final decisions on all Permission in 
Principle applications to the Head of 
Development, Planning Services Managers 
(Development Management and Policy, 
Implementation and Strategic Developments), 
Service Manager (Growth), Development 
Management Team Leaders and Senior 
Development Management Officers 
UNLESS the proposal is recommended for 
approval and contrary to the adopted and draft 
development plan. 
 
 
Applications for planning permission in 
respect of:  
♦ To delegate final decisions on all 

applications outside conservation areas 
and proposing up to 91 dwellings within the 
built up area of market towns, up to 5 
dwellings within the built up area of key 
service centres, and up to 3 dwellings 
within the built up area of small settlements 
outside conservation areas to the Head of 
Development, Planning Services Managers 
(Development Management and Policy, 
Implementation and Strategic 
Developments), Development Management 
Team Leaders and Senior Development 
Management Officers:- 
UNLESS the application is called in to 

the Development Management 
Committee by the Ward Councillor 
within 28 days of the publication of the 
weekly Planning Register of 
Applications  Requests must include 

Head of Development, Planning Services 
Managers (Development Management and Policy, 
Implementation & Strategic Development), Service 
Manager (Growth), Development Management 
Team Leaders and Senior Development 
Management Officers 

 

P
age 177 of 200



2 
 

material planning reasons for the 
request which must be planning 
matters, relevant to the duties and 
responsibilities of the Council as Local 
Planning Authority.  The reasons given 
will be reported to the Committee when 
it considers the application 

 
♦ householder development and related 

applications for listed buildings  
♦ temporary planning permission (subject to 

a maximum 3 year time limit) and related 
applications for listed building and 
conservation area consent 

 

♦ applications that are technically incomplete 
or technically deficient/insufficient 

 

♦ applications that have lain dormant within 
the Planning system for 12 months or more 

 

♦ applications for, or proposals to grant, one 
year temporary permissions for small scale 
business uses (operating from dwellings of 
less than 100 square metres) 

 

P
age 178 of 200



 

3 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning (Listed Building & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 
 
(cont'd) 

♦ applications for alterations to shop fronts 
including the installation of external 
shutters and ATM's and other related 
applications 

  

♦ applications for the change of use of a 
single shop, or other unit, and any 
associated alterations to the building within 
any of defined market town centres and 
other related applications 

 

♦ applications for the erection of stables, 
field shelters, storage containers, or other 
small scale agricultural buildings (under 
1000 square metres in floor space) 

 

♦ applications for the erection, alteration or 
replacement of plant and machinery 
(including the installation of flues or other 
types of extraction equipment) 

 

♦ applications for other alterations to existing 
buildings including proposals for the 
installation of windows, roof lights, solar 
panels, wind turbines, other 
microgeneration equipment, satellite 
dishes, antennas and adaptations to 
provide disabled access and related 
applications for listed building consent 

 

♦ applications for a means of access or 
means of enclosure, including gates and 
boundary walls 

♦ applications for kiosks 

 

P
age 179 of 200



 

4 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning (Listed Building & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 
 
(cont'd) 
 

♦ applications for listed building consent for 
internal alterations and any other works 
that do not require a planning application 

♦ Advertisement Consent Applications 
♦ All Departures from the local plan 

associated with the A14 Improvement 
Scheme where there are no objections 
from anyone or any statutory body 
(including town or parish councils or 
statutory consultees). 
 

  

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning (Listed Building & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
Planning and 
Compulsory 
Purchase Act 
2004 

Subject to the delegation above and specifically 
not to include those category of applications 
referred to the determination of all other planning 
applications and applications for listed building 
consent except an application: 
 

Head of Development, Planning Services Manager 
(Development Management and Policy, 
Implementation & Strategic Development), Service 
Manager (Growth), Development Management 
Team Leaders and Senior Development 
Management Officers 

 

(a) which is contrary to the provisions of the 
Approved and Draft Development Plan, 
and which is recommended for approval 
(and subject to the stipulation described 
in the remarks column 

 

 

P
age 180 of 200



 

5 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning (Listed Building & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory 
Purchase Act 
2004 
 
(cont'd) 

(b) which is contrary to other approved 
Council Planning Policies or  
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
Documents, and which is recommended 
for approval 

 

  

(c) which any Member requests in writing to 
the Head of Development, Planning 
Services Manager (Development 
Management), Service Manager (Growth) 
or Development Management Team 
Leaders within 28 days of the publication 
of the weekly Planning Register of 
Applications, or such longer period as 
may be determined by the Head of 
Development, Planning Services 
Manager (Development Management), 
Service Manager (Growth) or 
Development Management Team 
Leaders should be the subject of 
consideration by the Development 
Management Committee (see note (i) 
below) 

 

 

(d) on which recommendation (of approval or 
refusal) supported by material 
planning reason(s) relevant to the 
matter(s) under consideration (that is 
contrary to the applicable Officer 
recommendation) has been received in 
writing on or within the last day of the 
public consultation (whichever is the 
latest) OR on or within a mutually agreed 
extension of time , from statutory 
consultees (including Parish/Town 
Councils), which has not been resolved 
by negotiation or through the imposition 
of conditions  

The reference to material 
planning reason(s) being 
“relevant to the matters 
under consideration” is in 
acknowledgement that not 
all matters may be up for 
consideration under the 
current application.  For 
example, for a reserved 
matters application where 
access was agreed at the 
outline stage, a 
recommendation of refusal 
based solely on the access 
would not be a material 

P
age 181 of 200



 

6 
 

planning reason(s) 
“relevant to the matter(s) 
under consideration”.   

P
age 182 of 200



 

7 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning (Listed Building & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory 
Purchase Act 
2004 
 
(cont'd) 

(e) submitted by or on behalf of a Councillor 
of the Authority (or their spouse/partner 
or another direct relative) or by any 
member of the Council’s staff (or their 
spouse/partner) who is involved in the 
planning or development process 

 

  

(f) submitted by or on behalf of the Council 
for its own developments, except for the 
approval of ‘minor’ developments to 
which no objection has been received 

 

 

(g) which the Head of Development, 
Planning Services Manager 
(Development Management and Policy, 
Implementation & Strategic Development) 
or Service Manager (Growth) considers 
should be presented to the Committee for 
decision 

 

 

NOTES  

(i) In respect of (c) above, written requests 
must include material planning reasons 
for the request which must be planning 
matters, relevant to the duties and 
responsibilities of the Council as Local 
Planning Authority.  The reasons given 
will be reported to the Committee when it 
considers the application 

 

 

P
age 183 of 200



 

8 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning (Listed Building & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory 
Purchase Act 
2004 
 
(cont'd) 
 

   

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 
 
(cont'd) 

The determination of the following planning 
matters, except any matter falling within the 
categories below, which the Head of 
Development, Planning Services Manager 
(Development Management and Policy, 
Implementation & Strategic Development), 
Service Manager (Growth) or Development 
Management Team Leaders considers should be 
presented to the Development Management 
Committee for determination - 
 

Head of Development, Planning Services 
Managers (Development Management and Policy, 
Implementation and Strategic Development), 
Service Manager (Growth)  or Development 
Management, and Implementation Team Leaders, 
Senior Development Management Officers and 
HDC Arboricultural Officer (relevant to (n), (x), (y) 
and (z) only) . 

 

(a) approval of conditions and matters 
previously reserved in granting a planning 
and associated consents and 
amendments to such permissions and 
consents, except where this conflicts with 
any of the exceptions in the delegation 
above 

 

 

P
age 184 of 200



 

9 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 
 
(cont'd) 

(b) to accept and agree or decline 
amendments to submitted applications 

 

  

(c) whether or not planning permission is 
required for any proposed development, 
operation or change of use 

 

 

(d) applications for Certificates of Lawful Use 
or Development, after consultation with 
the Legal Services Manager 

 

 

(e) the extent of non-statutory neighbour or 
general public consultations on planning 
applications and planning matters in 
accordance with the Council’s policy 

 

 

(f) the level of detail required with an outline 
planning application under Article 3(5) of 
the Town & Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) 
Order 20151995 

 

 

P
age 185 of 200



 

10 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 
 
(cont'd) 

(g) following consultation with the relevant 
Ward Member, the use and content of 
agreements under Section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in 
relation to 

 

  

 (i) Agreements imposing occupancy 
restrictions on the permission e.g. 
agricultural 

 

 

 (ii) Agreements to secure the non-
implementation of previous planning 
permissions 

 

 

 (iii) Agreements to provide for the 
commutation of car parking 
provision in connection with town 
centre developments 

 

 

 (iv) Agreements varying or supplemental 
to existing Agreements 

 

 

 (v) Agreements involving the payment 
of financial contributions of less than 
£100,000 

 

 

 (vi) Affordable Housing in accordance 
with adopted or draft policy 

 

 

P
age 186 of 200



 

11 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 
 
(cont'd) 

(h) 
 
 
(i) 

♦  Discharge of s106 
obligations 
 
whether or not development 
is EIA development 
(Screening) under Part 4, 
Article 6 of the Town & 
Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact 
Assessment) (England & 
Wales) Regulations 2017 
and subsequent 
amendments 
 

  

 ♦  to request the submission of 
additional information where 
a planning application is 
accompanied by an 
environmental statement 
and to determine the 
adequacy or otherwise of the 
submitted material under 
Part 5 Article 25 of the 
Town & Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact 
Assessment) (England & 
Wales) Regulations 2017 
and subsequent 
amendments 
 

 P
age 187 of 200



 

12 
 

 ♦  to provide a formal opinion 
on the information to be 
provided in the 
environmental statement 
(Scoping)   should a person 
is minded to make an EIA 
application under Part 4 
Article 15 of the Town & 
Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact 
Assessment) (England & 
Wales) Regulations 2017 
and subsequent 
amendments 

  

P
age 188 of 200



 

13 
 

Source The Power Delegated Delegated to Remarks 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 
 
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (S. 198 and 201) 
 
(cont'd) 

(j) all types of prior notification applications 
 

 
 
 

 

(k) applications for Certificates of Appropriate 
Alternative Development 

 

 

(l) the Council’s response to consultations on 
proposals for the erection or modification 
of overhead power lines and ancillary 
equipment 

 

 

(m) the Council’s response to consultations on 
planning applications in adjacent districts 
or those made by the County Council or by 
Government Departments or those to be 
determined by the County Council (County 
Matter applications) 

 

 

(n) Notifications of works to trees in 
conservation areas 

 

 

(o)       To determine application for the felling or 
lopping of trees subject to a TPO… 

 

(p)      The making, varying or revocation of Tree 
Preservation Orders. 

 

(q)       The confirmation of opposed and un-
opposed Tree Preservation Orders. 

 

(r) Notices to remove hedgerows 
 

 

(s) Response to other formal Notices under 
Planning or related legislation 

 
 

 

 (t)      Applications in respect of footpaths and 
bridleways affected by development 

 

 

 (u)      Applications for hazardous substances 
consent under the Planning (Hazardous 
Substances) Act 1990 

  

P
age 189 of 200



 

14 
 

 (v)       Applications for the retention of mobile 
buildings in those circumstances where 
the relevant town/parish council has not 
raised material planning objections to the 
proposal 

 

 (w)     Applications for non-material amendments 
 

 

 (x)     Determination of applications for works to 
protected trees (Where no objections have 
been received or refusal is recommended) 

 

 (y)  Determination of Hedgerow removal 
notifications (where no objection are 
received and no retention notice is to be 
served) 

 

 (z)   Respond to Forestry Commission Felling 
Licence consultations 

 

   
Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 
 

To decide whether agricultural consultant advice 
or special consultant advice is required to assist 
in the determination of applications where 
agriculture is a factor 
 

Head of Development, Development Planning 
Services Manager (Development 
Management), Service Manager (Growth) or 
Development Management Team Leaders 

In these circumstances, 
when consultant advice is 
requested, all applications 
should be subject to a 
desk top assessment by 
the appropriate consultant 

Head of Development, Development Planning 
Services Manager (Development 
Management), Service Manager (Growth) or 
Development Management Team Leaders 

Site visits only to be 
undertaken if requested 
and paid for by the 
applicant but should a site 
visit be considered 
necessary the cost of the 
visit be met by the Council 
 

To refuse an application for development where 
the proposal is acceptable in all other respects 
and there is no other reason under the Scheme of 
Delegation to refer it to the Development 
Management CommitteePanel but the obligation 
to provide waste storage containers (wheeled 
bins) has not been met 
 

Head of Development, DevelopmentPlanning 
Services Manager (Development Management), 
Service Manager (Growth),  or Development 
Management Team Leaders 

 

The Town & Country Planning To determine and submit to the Secretary of State Head of Development, DevelopmentPlanning  

P
age 190 of 200



 

15 
 

(Appeals) (Written 
Representations Procedure) 
England Regulations 2000, 
The Town & Country Planning 
(Inquiries Procedure) 
(England) Rules 2000 
 

the extent and the details of the relevant 
development plan policies in respect of appeals 
against non-determination 

Services Manager (Development Management), 
Service Manager (Growth) or Development 
Management Team Leaders 

The Town & Country Planning 
(Appeals) (Written 
Representations Procedure) 
England Regulations 2000, 
The Town & Country Planning 
(Inquiries Procedure) 
(England) Rules 2000 

To submit statements on behalf of the Local 
Planning Authority in respect of appeals against 
non determination where the officer 
recommendation accords with a recommendation 
(of approval or refusal) supported by material 
planning reasons(s) received in writing and in the 
stipulated timespan from statutory consultees 
(including parish/town councils), and in other 
instances where it is impractical to seek the 
Development Management CommitteePanel’s 
decision within the prescribed time period for the 
submission of the Statement. 

Head of Development, DevelopmentPlanning 
Services Manager (Development Management), 
Service Manager (Growth) or Development 
Management Team Leaders 

 

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (S.196A) 
(S.196B)(S.196C) 
(S.214B) (S.214C) 
(S.214D)(S.324) 
(S.325) 
 

To authorise in writing appropriate officers to 
enter on to land for the purposes of the Act 

Head of Development, and the Development 
Planning Services Manager (Development 
Management) and Service Manager (Growth) 

 

Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 
 

To authorise in writing appropriate officers to 
enter on to land for the purposes of the Act 

Head of Development, and the 
DevelopmentPlanning Services Managers for 
(Development Management) and Policy Service 
Manager (Growth) 

 

Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
(S.88A) (S.88B) 
 

To authorise in writing appropriate officers to 
enter on to land for the purposes of the Act 

Head of Development, and the 
DevelopmentPlanning Services Managers for 
(Development Management) and Policy Service 
Manager (Growth) 

 

Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 
 

To request Secretary of State to ‘spot’ listing and 
de-listing of building 

Head of Development and the 
DevelopmentPlanning Services Manager 
(PolicyDevelopment Management) and Service 
Manager (Growth) 

 

Various To take the following enforcement action 
under the legislation specified 

Head of Development, and the 
DevelopmentPlanning Services Manager 

 

P
age 191 of 200



 

16 
 

 
(a) to investigate breaches of planning 

control 
 
(b) to authorise the issue and/or service 

of statutory notices under 
 
 (i) Section 16 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and 
Section 330 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (to 
ascertain details of land 
ownership) 

 
 (ii) Section 171C of the Town & 

Country Planning Act 1990 
(Planning Contravention 
Notices to obtain information 
about operations being 
carried out on land) 

 
 (iii) Section 187A of the Town & 

Country Planning Act 1990 
(Breach of Condition Notices) 

 
 (iv)      Section 97 of the Building Act 

1984 (Requiring Works to 
Ruinous and Dilapidated 
Buildings) 

 
 (v)    Section 97 of the Environment 

Act 1995 and Hedgerow 
Regulations 1997(Hedgerow 
Retention and Replacement 

(Development Management) and Service Manager 
(Growth) 

P
age 192 of 200



 

17 
 

Notices) 

  (vi) Sections 220 and 224 of the 
Town & Country Planning 
Act 1990 and Town and the 
Country Planning (Control of 
the Advertisements) 
Regulations 1992 

  (vii) Section 225 of the Town & 
Country Planning Act 1990 
(Power to Remove or 
Obliterate Placards and 
Posters) 

 (viii) Section 24 of the Planning 
(Hazardous Substance) Act 
1990 (to serve a Hazardous 
Substances Contravention 
Notice)  

 
 (ix) Section 94 of the Town & 

Country Planning Act 1990 
(Completion Notices)  

  

Various To issue and/or serve Statutory Notices 
under the following legislation 
 
(i) Enforcement Notices under Section 

172 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 

 
(ii) Section 187A of the Town & 

Country Planning Act 1990 (Breach 
of Condition Notices) 

 
(iii) Listed Building Enforcement 

Legal Services Manager  

P
age 193 of 200



 

18 
 

Notices under Section 38 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990) 

 
(iv) Urgent Works Notices under 

Section 54 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 

 
(v) Untidy state of Land Notices under 

Section 215 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990 

 

Various To authorise the issue and/or service of the 
following Statutory Notices under the 
legislation specified 
 
(i) Enforcement Notices under 

Section 172 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1990 

 
(ii) Listed Building Enforcement 

Notices under section 38 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

 
(iii) Urgent Works Notices under 

Sections 48 and 54 of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990 

 
(iv) Untidy state of Land Notices 

under Section 215 of the Town 
& Country Planning Act 1990 

 

Head of Development and the 
DevelopmentPlanning Services Manager 
(Development Management) and Service Manager 
(Growth) 

After consultation with the 
Legal Services Manager 

 P
age 194 of 200



 

19 
 

(v) Completion Notices under Sections 
94 and 95 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 

 
 

General Permitted 
Development Order - Article 4 

To make and confirm immediate Article 4 
Directions to withdraw permitted development 
rights 

Head of Development and the 
DevelopmentPlanning Services Manager 
(Development Management) and Service Manager 
(Growth) 

To minimise delay and 
after consultation with the 
Head of Development and 
the Development Services 
Manager (Development 
Management) and 
Chairman orand Vice-
Chairman of the 
Development Management 
CommitteePanel and 
subject to a report thereon 
to the ensuing meeting of 
the CommitteePanel 
 

Various To take prosecution action under the legislation 
specified:- 
 
The Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990, the Environment Act 1995 and 
any Regulations made thereunder 

Head of Development and the 
DevelopmentPlanning Services Manager 
(Development Management) and Service Manager 
(Growth) 

 

Subject to the Legal 
Services Manager being 
satisfied with the evidence 
and circumstances 
justifying prosecution 
 

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 S.172 
 
Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 
 

To withdraw Enforcement Notices upon 
compliance 

Legal Services Manager  

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 S.183 
 
Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 

To authorise, issue and/or serve Stop Notices Legal Services Manager In respect of Stop Notices 
to minimise delay and after 
consultation with the Head 
of Development and the 
Planning Services 
Manager (Development 
Management) or Service 
Manager (Growth), and the 

P
age 195 of 200



 

20 
 

Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the 
Committee,Panel 
(consultation with both the 
Chairman or Vice-
Chairman will be 
attempted) and subject to 
a report being submitted 
thereon to the ensuing 
ordinary meeting of the 
CommitteePanel  
 

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 S.171 E-H 

To authorise, issue and/or serve Temporary Stop 
Notices 

Legal Services Manager To minimise delay and 
after consultation with the 
Head of Development, or 
Planning Services 
Manager (Development 
Management) or Service 
Manager (Growth), and the 
Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the 
Development Management 
Committee,Panel 
(consultation with both the 
Chairman and Vice-
Chairman will be 
attempted) and subject to 
a report being submitted 
thereon to the ensuing 
ordinary meeting of the 
CommitteePanel 
 

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 S.187B 
 
Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 
 

To seek injunctions 
 

Legal Services Manager To minimise delay and 
after consultation with the 
Head of Development, or 
Planning Services 
Manager (Development 
Management) or Servive 
Manager (Growth), and the 
Chairman or Vice-

P
age 196 of 200



 

21 
 

Chairman of the 
Committee,Panel 
(consultation with both the 
Chairman and Vice-
Chairman will be 
attempted) and subject to 
a report being submitted 
thereon to the ensuing 
ordinary meeting of the 
CommitteePanel 

Various To make a decision that it is not expedient to take 
planning enforcement action 

Planning Service Manager (Development 
Management), Service Manager (Growth), 
Development Management Team Leaders, 
Planning Enforcement Team Leader and Planning 
Enforcement Officers 

 

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 S.106 
 
Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 
 
 

To enter into S106 Agreements 
  

Legal Services Manager 
 

 

Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (S.198 and 201) 

To determine applications for the felling or lopping 
of trees protected by Tree Preservation Orders 
and the making of Tree Preservation Orders  
 

Head of Development and the 
DevelopmentPlanning Services Managers 
(Development Management) and Service Manager 
(Growth)Policy 

 

Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) 

To designate appropriate Officers to discharge 
the powers and duties of the Council as set out in 
the Act and any Codes of Practice and 
Regulations made thereunder 
 

Legal Services Manager  

Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management 
Procedure (England) Order  

To make necessary changes to the 'local list' in 
response to Government guidance and changes 
in local policy or circumstances 

Planning Service Manager (Development 
Management) and Service Manager (Growth) 

 

P
age 197 of 200



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Planning Appeal Decisions Since August 2019 Committee 

Ref No Appellant Parish Proposal Site Original 
decision 

Delegated 
or DMC 

Appeal 
Determination 

Date of 
determination 

Costs 
decisio
n 

19/0042

0/PIP 

Mr David 

Hopkins 

Pidley-

cum-

Fenton 

Permission in Principle 

for the Demolition of an 

existing Nissen Hut and 

erection of a single 

dwellinghouse. 

Land East Of 

Strawberry Field 

House, Warboys 

Road, Pidley 

Refused Delegated Dismissed 03/09/2019 N 

18/0189

5/FUL 

Mr J 

Wilks 
St Ives Extension to dwelling to 

form additional dwelling 

122 Hill Rise 

St Ives 

PE27 6SG 

Refused Delegated Dismissed 11/09/2019 N 

19/0011

5/PIP 

Mr David 

Hopkins 

Pidley-

cum-

Fenton Permission in Principle 

for up to 3 Dwellings 

Land North East 

Of Gloucester 

Barn 

Fen Road 

Pidley 

Refused Delegated Dismissed 13/09/2019 N 

18/0268

4/FUL 

Mr 

Stephen 

King 

Earith 
Five bedroom detached 

house with double 

garage 

Land South East 

Of Newfields 

Earith Road 

Colne 

Refused Delegated Dismissed 12/09/2019 N 

19/0011

6/PIP 

Mr David 

Hopkins 

Pidley-

Cum-

Fenton 

Permission in Principle 

for up to 2 Dwellings 

Land North Of Fen 

Road Industrial 

Estate 

Fen Road 

Pidley 

Refused Delegated Dismissed 12/09/2019 N 

P
age 199 of 200

A
genda Item

 6



17/0268

1/FUL 

AWJ 

Usher 

and Sons 

Ltd 

St. 

Neots 

Erection of eight 

dwellings; 1 x 

farmhouse, 1 x cottage, 

1 x detached barn & 5 x 

sub-divided barn style 

properties, detached car 

barn and associated 

access and landscaping 

works 

Old Dairy Nursery, 

Luke Street, 

Eynesbury, St 

Neots, Cambs, 

PE19 2DZ 

Refused DMC Dismissed 27/09/2019 N 

19/0009

3/FUL 

Mr 

Garnet 

Benson 

Wistow 
Erection of a single 2 

bedroom cottage 

bungalow 

Land South West 

of Mill Farm 

Cottage, Mill Road, 

PE28 2QQ 

Refused Delegated Dismissed 27/09/2019 N 

 

P
age 200 of 200


	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3a Warboys - 19/01449/HHFUL
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  -  APPROVE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Design and Visual Amenity
	Residential Amenity
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following

	CONTACT OFFICER:


	4a St Neots and Abbotsley - 16/01507/OUT
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE
	subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to affordable housing, green space, formal green space and bins and subject to conditions.
	OR

	RECOMMENDATION – REFUSE
	in the event that the S106 Agreement referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the agreement necessary to mak...
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	The Principle of Development
	Loss of Agricultural Land
	Indicative Layout
	Landscape and Visual Impact
	Trees and Open Space
	Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity
	Archaeology
	Flood Risk and Drainage
	Access and Highway Safety
	Ecology and Biodiversity
	Health Impact Assessment
	Fire Hydrants
	Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations
	Conclusion and Planning Balance


	8. RECOMMENDATION  -    APPROVE
	subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to affordable housing, green space, formal green space and bins and subject to conditions.
	OR

	RECOMMENDATION – REFUSE
	in the event that the S106 Agreement referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the agreement necessary to mak...
	Conditions:
	CONTACT OFFICER:


	ADPB010.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE
	subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to affordable housing, green space, formal green space and bins and subject to conditions.
	OR

	RECOMMENDATION – REFUSE
	in the event that the S106 Agreement referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the agreement necessary to mak...
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	The Principle of Development
	Loss of Agricultural Land
	Indicative Layout
	Landscape and Visual Impact
	Trees and Open Space
	Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity
	Archaeology
	Flood Risk and Drainage
	Access and Highway Safety
	Ecology and Biodiversity
	Health Impact Assessment
	Fire Hydrants
	Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations
	Conclusion and Planning Balance


	8. RECOMMENDATION  -    APPROVE
	subject to the prior completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to affordable housing, green space, formal green space and bins and subject to conditions.
	OR

	RECOMMENDATION – REFUSE
	in the event that the S106 Agreement referred to above has not been completed and the applicant is unwilling to agree to an extended period for determination, or on the grounds that the applicant is unwilling to complete the agreement necessary to mak...
	Conditions:
	CONTACT OFFICER:




	4b Alconbury Weston - 18/01946/FUL
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE subject to conditions and a Bin Unilateral Undertaking.
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	The Principle of Development
	Impact upon the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area
	Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity
	Highway Safety
	Ecology
	Flood Risk
	Housing Mix – accessible and adaptable homes
	Other Issues
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION – Approve subject to a satisfactory Bin UU received and conditions to include those listed below.


	ADP7CD0.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE subject to conditions and a Bin Unilateral Undertaking.
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	The Principle of Development
	Impact upon the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area
	Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity
	Highway Safety
	Ecology
	Flood Risk
	Housing Mix – accessible and adaptable homes
	Other Issues
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION – Approve subject to a satisfactory Bin UU received and conditions to include those listed below.




	4c Godmanchester - 19/01476/S73
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE subject to conditions.
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Necessity of the condition
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER:



	4d Somersham - 18/00717/FUL
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	The Principle of Development
	Impact upon the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area and nearby listed buildings
	Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity
	Highway Safety
	Flood Risk
	Housing Accessible and Adaptable Homes
	Other Issues
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSAL for the following reasons
	CONTACT OFFICER:


	ADPC82F.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	The Principle of Development
	Impact upon the Character and Appearance of the Conservation Area and nearby listed buildings
	Impact upon Neighbouring Residential Amenity
	Highway Safety
	Flood Risk
	Housing Accessible and Adaptable Homes
	Other Issues
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
	Conclusion

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSAL for the following reasons
	CONTACT OFFICER:




	4e Hemingford Grey - 19/01168/FUL
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Principle of development
	Impact on the character of the area
	Residential Amenity
	Flood Risk
	Access and Transport
	Ecology
	Other Matters
	Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
	Conclusion and Planning Balance

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER:


	ADP5ABE.tmp
	From: Doug Dew (Cllr) <30TUDoug.Dew@huntingdonshiredc.org.ukU30T>  Sent: 07 July 2019 23:00 To: Jaarsma, Jacob (Planning) <30TUJacob.Jaarsma@huntingdonshire.gov.ukU30T>; Keane, David (Cllr) <30TUDavid.Keane@huntingdonshire.gov.ukU30T> Subject: Fwd: La...

	Block Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	Site Location.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	ADP8820.tmp
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Principle of development
	Impact on the character of the area
	Residential Amenity
	Flood Risk
	Access and Transport
	Ecology
	Other Matters
	Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
	Conclusion and Planning Balance

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - APPROVAL subject to conditions to include the following
	CONTACT OFFICER:




	4f Ramsey - 19/01300/OUT
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 15 OCTOBER 2019
	RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSE
	1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
	2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE
	3. PLANNING POLICIES
	4. RELEVANTPLANNING HISTORY
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. REPRESENTATIONS
	7. ASSESSMENT
	Principle of development
	Principle of Development - Summary
	Flood Risk:
	Impact on the character of the area
	Residential Amenity
	Access and Transport
	Biodiversity and trees / hedgerow
	Infrastructure Requirements and Planning Obligations
	Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL):
	Conclusion and Planning Balance

	8. RECOMMENDATION  - REFUSAL for the following reasons
	CONTACT OFFICER:



	5 Changes to Scheme of Delegation
	DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE   14 October 2019
	PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL’S SCHEME OF DELEGATION (SoD)
	(Report by the Planning Service Manager – Development Management)
	1. BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS
	2. RECOMMENDATION



	6 APPEAL DECISIONS



